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ADRIAN CITY COMMISSION
AGENDA

PRE-MEETINGSTUDY SESSION
OCTOBER18, 2010

5:30P.M.

TheCity Commissionwill meetfor apre-meetingstudysessiononMonday,October18, 2010at
5:30p.m. at theCity ChambersBuilding, 159E. MaumeeSt., to discussthe following:

1. AnnualRecapof LenaweeEconomicDevelopmentCorp.
- Jim Gartin, PresidentandCEO

II. OtherItemsasTime Permits
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AGENDA
ADRIAN CITY COMMISSION

OCTOBER 18, 2010
7:00 P.M.

I. MOMENT OF SILENCE AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

I I. ROLL CALL

I I I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 4, 2010 REGULAR MEETING OF
THE ADRIAN CITY COMMISSION

I V. PRESENTATION OF ACCOUNTS

V. PRESENTATION

1. Thomas Skrobola, representing the Government Finance
Officers Association of the United States & Canada, will present
the GFOA Award for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the
City of Adrian. This is the highest form or recognition for the
provision of public financial information and is accorded to
fewer than five (5%) percent of the almost 1,800 Michigan
municipalities,

V I. COMMUNICATION

1. C-l. Finance Department. Report from Finance Director
regarding the Michigan Government Finance Officers
Association's G1st Annual Fall Training Institute

VII.

V I I I.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

CONSENT AGENDA

A. RESOLUTIONS

1. CR10-06S. Planning Commission. Resolution to approve the
appointment of Chuck Jacobson to the Planning Commission to
fill the unexpired term of Ken Tokarz. Term will expire in 2012.

2. CR10-066. Engineering Department. Resolution
designating Kristin Bauer, City Engineer, as the street
administrator to represent the City of Adrian in transactions
with the State Transportation Department, pursuant to Section
13(9) of Act 51, Public Acts of 1951 adopted.

3. CR10-067. Utilities Department. Resolution to award bid for
replacement of 29 commercialj industrial meters that will be
equipped with radio-read devices.

I X. REGULAR AGENDA



A. SPECIAL ORDERS

1. 50-1. Community Development. Public Hearing to hear and
consider comments to an application for an Obsolete Property
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for property at 125 E.
Maumee St. owned by AI and Phyllis Wilkerson.

2. 50-2. Community Development. Public Hearing to hear and
consider comments to an application for an Obsolete Property
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for property at 149 N. Main
St. owned by David & Kim Horstman.

3. 50-3. Finance Department. Public Hearing to hear and
consider comments to approval of the Special Assessment
District for downtown parking lots to partially defray the
operating expenses of the lots.

B. RESOLUTIONS

1. Rl0-124. Community Development. Resolution to approve
an application for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation
Certificate for property at 125 E. Maumee St., owned by AI &
Phyllis Wilkerson, for a period of nine (9) years.

2. Rl0-125. Communitv Development. Resolution to approve
an application for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation
Certificate for property at 149 N. Main St., owned by David &
Kim Horstman, for a period of nine (9) years.

3. R10-126. Finance Department. Resolution to approve a
Special Assessment District for downtown parking lots to
partially defray the operating expenses of the lots.

4. Rl0-127. Engineering Department. Resolution to grant a
Metro Act Permit to Merit Network, Inc. for use of certain City
of Adrian street right-of-ways for maintenance and installation
of telecommunication facilities.

5. Rl0-128. Engineering Department. Resolution to award
the annual bid for snow removal from private walks,
miscellaneous city properties and along 13 railroad properties.

6. Rl0-129. Engineering Department. Resolution to retain
Associated Engineers for design/survey work on the Beecher
Street Project (from Treat to city limits), to waive the bid
process and approve the resulting budget amendments.

7. R10-i30. Utilities Department. Resolution to award bid for
a boiler installation at the Water Treatment Plant and approval
of the resulting budget amendments.

8. R10-i31. Community Development. Resolution to rescind
a resolution approved May 18, 1998 for installation of awning at
132-140 S. Main Street and allowing city staff to pursue the



removal of the awning. Business has not been in operation for
10 years and awning has become a visual nuisance and
detraction from surrounding businesses.

9. Rl0-132. City Commission. Resolution authorizing the City
Administrator to enter into an agreement with the Adrian
Ecumenical Forum for use of city-owned properties for use as
community gardens.

10. Rl0-133. Engineering Department. Resolution to approve
a change order to the contract with Smith Paving to include
additional concrete behind City Hall, additional islands on the
east and west side of the S. Toledo St. lot and cement work for
the flag poles and light foundations.

11. Rl0-134. Parks & Recreation. Resolution to approve a land
exchange between the City of Adrian and the property owner of
513 Merrick Street and authorizing the City Administrator to
complete, sign and file all documents relative to the property
exchange transaction. Property exchange will enable
implementation of the pedestrian bridge to Riverside Park, as
well as completion of the sanitary sewer project.

12. Rl0-135. Finance Department. Resolution to approve a
modified special assessment and payment plan for a water line
extension to the Country Club Professional Park located at 1136
Country Club Road.

13. Rl0-136. Finance Department. Resolution to approve a
modified special assessment and payment plan for a sanitary
sewer extension to the Country Club Professional Park located
at 1136 Country Club Road.

X. MISCELLANEOUS

1. Departmental Report
2. Fire Department Report
3. Bohn Pool 10-Year Summary Comparison

X 1. PUBLIC COMMENTS

X I 1. COMMISSION COMMENTS



MINUTES



MINUTES
ADRIAN CITY COMMISSION

OCTOBER 4,2010
7:00 P.M.

Official proceedings of the October 4 t 2010 regular meeting of the City Commission,
Adrian t Michigan.

The regular meeting was opened with a moment of silence and the Pledge of
Allegiance to the Flag.

PRESENT: Mayor McDowell, Commissioners Clegg, DuMars t Warren, Carrico,
Osborne and Steele

Mayor McDowell in the Chair.

Commissioner DuMars moved to approve the minutes of the September 20, 2010
regular meeting of the Adrian City Commission, seconded by Commissioner Clegg, motion
carried by a unanimous vote.

PRESENTATION OF ACCOUNTS

Utility Department Receiving Fund
Voucher #3337 through #3344

General Fund
Vouchers #20089 through #20110

Clearing Account Vouchers
amounting to

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

$ 54,751.88

$342.689.91

$798.771.40

On motion by Commissioner DuMars, seconded by Commissioner Carrico t motion
carried by a unanimous vote.

COM MUNICATIO NS

1. C-1. Finance Department. Report on FY2010-11 Special Assessment -
Auto Parking Financial Plan and Work Program

PUBLIC COMMENTS
No comments

CONSENT AGENDA

RESOLUTION CR10-061

RE: FINANCE DEPARTMENT - Downtown Parking Special Assessment - Notice of
Intent

Commissioner Carrico requested that Consent Resolution CRI0-061 be removed from the
Consent Agenda and placed on the Regular Agenda (Resolution RIO-123).



RESOLUTION CR10-062

RE: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT - RESCHEDULE PUBLIC HEARING DATE FOR AN
OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION ACT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE - 125
EAST MAUMEE STREET, ADRIAN

WHEREAS, on September 20, 2010, the Adrian City Commission adopted Resolution
CR10-059 to set a Public Hearing date of October 4, 2010 to hear and consider comments to
approval of an application for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act Exemption Certificate
for 125 E. Maumee Street, owned by AI and Phyllis Wilkerson; and

WHEREAS, due to unforeseen circumstances, it is necessary to reschedule the
hearing to Monday, October 18, 2010; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission, by resolution,
hereby sets an official Public Hearing for the Regular Meeting of the Adrian City Commission
to be held on Monday, October 18, 2010 at 7:00 PM in the City Commission Chambers, 159
East Maumee Street, Adrian, Michigan 49221, to discuss the application of an Obsolete
Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate from Mr. & Mrs. Wilkerson, property owners of
125 East Maumee Street; and

BE IT, FURTHER, RESOLVED that the Adrian City Clerk will proVide official notice via
United States Postal Service Certified Mail to the legislative bodies of each taxing unit that
levies ad valorem property taxes in the qualified local governmental unit in which the
obsolete facility is located, and to the applicant submitting the exemption certificate.

RESOLUTION CR10-063

RE: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT - RESCHEDULE PUBLIC HEARING DATE FOR AN
OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION ACT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE - 149
NORTH MAIN STREET, ADRIAN

WHEREAS, on September 20, 2010, the Adrian City Commission adopted Resolution
CR10-060 to set a Public Hearing date of October 4, 2010 to hear and consider comments to
approval of an application for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act Exemption Certificate
for 149 N. Main Street, owned by David and Kim Horstman; and

WHEREAS, due to unforeseen circumstances, it is necessary to reschedule the
hearing to Monday, October 18, 2010; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission, by resolution,
hereby sets an official Public Hearing for the Regular Meeting of the Adrian City Commission
to be held on Monday, October18, 2010 at 7:00 PM in the City Commission Chambers, 159
East Maumee Street, Adrian, Michigan 49221, to discuss the application of an Obsolete
Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate from Mr. & Mrs. Horstman, property owners of
149 N. Main Street; and

BE IT, FURTHER, RESOLVED that the Adrian City Clerk will provide official notice via
United States Postal Service Certified Mail to the legislative bodies of each taxing unit that
levies ad valorem property taxes in the qualified local governmental unit in which the
obsolete facility is located, and to the applicant submitting the exemption certificate.



RESOLUTION CR10-064

RE: CITY COMMISSION - Authorizing Votes to be Cast for Nominees to Serve as
Directors of the Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool

WHEREAS, the Michigan Municipal League Board of Trustees has approved six (6)
nominees to serve as Directors of the Liability and Property Pool for three (3) year terms
beginning January 1, 2011; and

WHEREAS, Article 3, Section 1, of the Pool's By-Laws state, 'The vote for each
member for Pool Director shall be cast as may be determined by the governing body of the
member."

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission authorizes its
vote to be cast to elect six (6) nominees as indicated on the official ballot by the Board of
Trustees of the Michigan Municipal League.

On motion by Commissioner DuMars, seconded by Commissioner Warren, Consent
Resolutions CR10-062 through CR10-064 were adopted by a unanimous vote.

REGULAR AGENDA

RESOLUTION Rl0-120

RE: DEPARTMENT OF PARKS 8r. RECREATION - Revised Annual T-Shirt Bid
Recommendation

WHEREAS, the Adrian City Commission, by Resolution #Rl0-082 dated July 7, 2010,
authorized the Parks & Recreation Department to purchase t-shirts and sweatshirts for
various Recreation programs from Austin, Inc, Milford, MI at an estimated cost (depending
on volume purchased) of $8,000-$10,000; and

WHEREAS, Austin, Inc., due to increased cost of sales, can no longer honor the
original bid price, increasing their unit price from $3.11 to $5.09, equivalent to an increase
of 64%; and

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Office respectfully recommends termination of the Austin,
Inc. purchase order contract and substitution of the next lowest bidder, Pro Med Uniform,
Adrian, MIl at an increased cost of 25% ($3.90/shirt), with an estimated cost between
$10,000 and $12,500 depending on volume; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Director indicates that sufficient funds are available in the
FY2010-11 Parks & Recreation Operating Budget for this purpose in the appropriate sub-
accounts for the individual activities; and

WHEREAS, the City Administrator recommends approval of this resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission by this
resolution hereby approves the termination of the Austin, Inc. purchase order contract for
Parks & Recreation T-shirt purchase and substitution of the next lowest bidder, Pro Med
Uniform, Adrian, MI, at the following unit prices:



$3.90/shirt - Light
$4.20/shirt - Dark

BE IT, FURTHER, RESOLVED that the City Attorney make every effort to recover the
resultant increased cost owing to the terminated purchase order contract.

On motion by Commissioner DuMars, seconded by Commissioner Carrico, this
resolution was adopted by a unanimous vote.

RESOLUTION Rl0-121

RE: POLICE DEPARTMENT -UTILIZATION OF DRUG FORFEITURE FUNDS FOR THE
K9 UNIT

WHEREAS, the Adrian Police Department uses its police dog, Copper, to deter and
detect drugs in the City of Adrian,

WHEREAS, OMNI Team III, in appreciation for the many times Copper has been of
assistance to the team, has purchased a device to allow the remote operation of the K9
unit's doors; and

WHEREAS, installation of the device has been performed by Continental Service of
Adrian, for $597.75,

WHEREAS, the Police Chief is desirous of using drug forfeiture funds to defray the
cost of this expense; and

WHEREAS, Public Act 368 of 1978 (the Public Health Code) specifies that all
forfeiture monies distributed by the Court to the seizing agency "shall be used to enhance
law enforcement activities"; and

WHEREAS, the City of Adrian currently has a total of $29,614 in a Trust Account as a
result of Court-distributed drug forfeiture property seizures; and

WHEREAS, Public Act 368 further specifies that the forfeiture funds shall be
"appropriated by the entity (City Commission) having budgetary authority over the seizing
agency (Police Department).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that $600 be appropriated from the Drug
Forfeiture Trust Fund (701-000.00-280.000) and that the FY2010-11 Budget be amended as
follows:

GENERAL FUND (101)
Police Department:
Revenue:
(101-301.00-676.701) Contribution - Trust Fund
Expenditures:
(101-301.00-801.000) Contract Services

Total

Amount
$600

600
$ -0-

On motion by Commissioner DuMars, seconded by Commissioner Clegg, this
resolution was adopted by a unanimous vote.



RESOLUTION Rl0-122

RE: COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT- Vibrant Small
Cities Grant Amendment - Pearl Street Properties Demolition Revised

WHEREAS, the Adrian City Commission, by Resolution #R10-111 dated September 7,
2010, authorized the utilization of Vibrant Small Cities Grant funds to engage Beal, Inc.,
Ann Arbor, MI for the demolition of five (5) properties in the Pearl Street area of downtown
at a cost not to exceed $48,375; and

WHEREAS, said grant program is expiring this month with all work to be
accomplished, paid and reimbursement requested from the Office of Community
Development Michigan State Housing Development Authority (MSHDA) by October 29,
2010; and

WHEREAS, the City of Adrian Community Development Director has determined that
Beal, Inc. is unable to perform the requested services within the required timeframe and,
therefore, recommends that the City Commission authorize the next lowest bidder,
Slusarski Excavating, Adrian, MI for engagement in the City's Standard Professional
Services Contract to perform such services at a cost not to exceed $53,890; and

WHEREAS, the Vibrant Small Cities Grant funds will defray fifty (50%) percent of the
aforementioned cost or $26,945, with the balance coming from local matching funds; and

WHEREAS, $24,187.50 was appropriated for both the grant and local match in the
original resolution, leaving $2,757.50 to be appropriated from each due to the increased
cost; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Director indicates that sufficient funds are available for the
City's 50% matching requirement ($2,757.50) in the Vibrant Small Cities Initiative Grant
Fund Unreserved Fund Balance, and the State's 50% share ($2,757.50) should be added to
Estimated Revenue, with the appropriations made to the folloWing expenditure accounts in
the FY2010-11 Budget, (283-484.00-801.007) and (283-484.00-801.008), respectively;
and

WHEREAS, The Office of Community Development - Michigan State Housing
Development Authority (MSHDA) has reviewed the bid documents and agrees to the
reassignment of work to the next lowest bidder, Slusarski Excavating, Adrian, MI; and

WHEREAS, the City Administrator recommends approval of this resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission, by this
resolution, hereby approves the selection and engagement of Slusarski Excavating, Adrian,
MI in the City's Standard Professional Services Contract for the purpose of providing
demolition services in the Pearl Street area at a cost not to exceed $53,890, the properties
being 218 W. Church Street, 236 W. Church Street, 250 W. Church Street, 211 Pearl Street
and 138 S. Winter Street.

BE IT, FURTHER, RESOLVED that the $2,757.50 be appropriated from the Vibrant
Small Cities Grant Fund Unreserved Fund Balance (283-000.00-390.000) and that the
FY2010-11 Budget be amended as follows:



Vibrant Small Cities Grant Fund (283)
Revenue:
(283-000.00-519.001) CDBG Vibrant Cities Grant
(283-000.00-697.000) Prior Years' Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenditures:
(283-484.00-801.007) Blight Reduction/Property Demolition-CDBG
(283-484.00-801.008) Blight Reduction/Property Demolition-Local

Total Expenditures

Amount
$2,757.50

2,757.50
$5.515.00

$2,757.50
2,757.50

$5.515.00

On motion by Commissioner DuMars, seconded by Commissioner Steele, this
resolution was adopted by a unanimous vote.

RESOLUTION Rl0-123

RE: FINANCE DEPARTMENT - Downtown Parking Special Assessment - Notice of
Intent

WHEREAS, in accordance with the recommendations of the Blueprint for Downtown
Adrian, short-term parking meters were removed from streets and parking lots in June,
2004; and

WHEREAS, after several meetings of the Ad-Hoc Downtown Parking Advisory
Committee to review the Auto Fund Parking Budget and Parking Enforcement Operations,
the following Financial Plan and Special Assessment proposal has been developed; and

WHEREAS, the cost to maintain parking lots in the Downtown Development District
for FY2010-11 amount to $72,000, detailed as follows:

Operating Budget
Capital Budget
Total Expenses

$72,000
-0-

$72,000

WHEREAS, estimated Revenue for FY2010-11 is detailed as follows:

Parking Permits
Parking Fines
Investment Earnings
Fee Estate Contribution
Contri bution- DDA
Contribution-General Fund
Special Assessment

Total Revenue
Annual Surplus Available
For Capital Improvements

$ 2,000
1,000
1,000

25,000
60,000
60,000
60,000

$209,000
$137,000

WHEREAS, the City Administrator recommends that a $60,000 special assessment be
levied upon the taxable value of real and personal property of downtown business owners
who benefit from the removal of parking meters and maintenance of a viable downtown
parking system for the purpose of revitaliZing the central business district; and



WHEREAS, required plans, reports and recommendations have been filed pursuant to
the provisions of Article I, Section 70-6 of the Adrian City Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, such plans include the Auto Parking Fund Financial Plan, purpose of the
Special Assessment, the Special Assessment District, and the methodology utilized by the
City Assessor to apportion the Special Assessment to property owners within the District.

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission, by this
resolution:

1. Approves the FY2010-11 Auto Parking Fund Financial Plan, including:

Revenues
Dept 000.00
652.310 PARKING FEES
652.312 PARKING PERMITS
656.000 PARKING FINES
664.000 INVESTMENT EARNINGS
698.000 FEE ESTATE CONTRIB.
699.101 CONTRIB-GENERAL FUND
699.280 TRANSFER IN - DDA
699.599 CONTRIBUTION-SPEC ASSESS
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Dept 546.00: OPERATING EXPENDITURES
702.000 WAGES
702.111 WAGES-SNOW REMOVAL
702.290 WAGES-EQUIP MAINT & COLL
704.111 OVERTIME
708.111 OVERHEAD-SNOW REMOVAL
715.000 SOCIAL SECURITY
719.000 UNEMPLOY COMP
741.000 OPER SUPPLIES
776.111 SUPPLIES-SNOW REMOVAL
801.000 CONTRACT SERVICES
801.291 CONTRACTED-GEN LOT MAINT
802.000 AUDIT FEES
912.000 LIABILITY INSURANCE
914.000 WORKER'S COMPENSATION
921.000 ELECTRICAL
943.111 VEH RENT-SNOW REMOVAL
951.000 TAXES-STORM WATER UTILITY
967.000 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
975.000 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Total Expenditures

NET OF REVENUES AND
EXPENDITURES

$0
2,000
1,000
1,000

25,000
60,000
60,000
60,000

$209,000

$0
6,700
7,200
4,000
5,000

o
o

1,400
5,000
5,000
1,000
1,000

200
o

10,000
9,000
1,500

15,000
o

$72,000

$137,000

>«"----_.--_.. _.---



2. As indicated in the aforementioned Financial Plan, the City intends to levy a Special
Assessment in the amount of $60,000.

3. The Special Assessment proposed to partially defray the operating expenses detailed
in the Auto Parking Fund Financial Plan and, in addition, provide an accumulated
fund balance to draw upon for future capital improvements, shall be levied on the
lands and premises within the proposed Special Assessment District according to the
methodology employed by the City Assessor and on file with the City Clerk.

4. The Report, including the Proposed Special Assessment, shall be filed with the City
Clerk forthwith to be available for public examination.

5. The City Commission will meet at a Public Hearing in the Adrian City Commission
Chambers (159 E. Maumee Street) at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, October 18, 2010, for
the purpose of hearing and considering comments regarding the Proposed Special
Assessment District, or to the inclusion of any property within the proposed Special
Assessment District.

6. The City Clerk shall mail notice of the intention to adopt said Special Assessment to
all interested parties pursuant to the provisions of Article I, Section 70-6 of the
Adrian City Code of Ordinances.

On motion by Commissioner DuMars, seconded by Commissioner Carrico, this
resolution was adopted by a unanimous vote.

There was discussion by the Commission on the Auto Parking Plan and Administrator
Nelson explained the financial plan.

MISCELLAN EOUS

1. Parks & Recreation Quarterly Report

PUBLIC COMMENTS

• Emily Lutsko, 517 Comstock, refused to have Stevens Disposal pick up her
trash.

COMMISSION COMMENTS

• Mayor McDowell referenced a letter to the Telegram regarding the City hiring
local contractors.

The next regular meeting of the Adrian City Commission will meet on Monday,
October 18, 2010, at 7:00 p.m. in the Chambers BUilding located at 159 E. Maumee St.,
Adrian, MI 49221.

Gary E. McDowell
Mayor

Pat Baker
City Clerk
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October 18, 2010

I have examined the attached vouchers and recommend approval of them for

payment.

Dane C.YNelson
City Administrator

DCN:bjw

RESOLVED, that disbursements be and they are hereby authorized for
warrants directed to be drawn on the City Treasurer for the following:

Utility Department Vouchers

Vouchers #3345 through #3348 .

General Fund

Vouchers #20111through #20126

Clearing Account Vouchers

amounting to .

TOTAL EXPENDITURES "" ", .

$121,385.46

$456.940.39

$855.739,28

On motion by Commissioner I seconded by

Commissioner - 1 this resolution was _

by a vote.



October 18, 2010

UTILITY DEPARTMENT VOUCHERS

Check Number To Description Amount

Receiving
3345 City of Adfrian: Payroll Payroll for Oct 1 $ 64,943.82
3346 Consumers Energy Various Electric Bills $ 56,401.71
3347 Frontier Wastewater Phone Bill $ 39.93
3348 City of Adrian: Clearing Acct Oct 4 Check Register $ 107,382.31

Total $
Less: CK #3348 $

228,767.77
107,382.31

WW::; $ 147,507.99
WAT::; $ 81,259.78

TOTAL $ 121,385.46



tS-Oet-tO GENERAL FUND

CHECK REGISTER

CHECK# AMOUNT PAYEE DESCRIPTION

20111 S 215,935.50 City of Adrian: Payroll Payroll for Oct I
20112 $ 16,125.20 First FederalBank Soc Security for Oct 1
20113 $ 18,685.12 ConsumersEnergy VariousElectricBills
20114 $ 210.88 Frontier PolicePhoneBill
20115 $ 19.00 Anayeli Hernandez RecreationRefund
20116 $ 285.87 Frontier VariousPhoneBills
20117 S 209,048.59 City of Adrian: ClearingAcet Oct 4 CheckRegister
20118 S 1,132.98 Quick ServiceTransportation Work Camp& Lighting Exp
20119 $ 4,368.60 Quick ServiceTransportation Payroll W/E Oct 2
20120 $ 515.71 City of Adrian: Utilities Bohn Pool Water Bill
20121 City of Adrian: Utilities TransferStateMI Funds
20122 $ 19.00 Katie Phillips RecreationRefund
20123 City of Adrian: Utilities TransferStateMI Funds
20124 $ 4,838.45 Quick ServiceTransportation Payroll W/E Oct 9
20125 $ 14,857.29 ConsumersEnergy Various Electric Bills
20126 $ 419.83 Frontier Various PhoneBills

$
$

486,46202
(209,04859) Less:CK# 20117

$ 277,413.43



10/13/2010
01:05 pm

CLAIMANT

CITY OF ADRIAN

AMOUNT
CLAIMED

AMOUNT
ALLOWED

PAGE 1

AMOUNT
REJECTED

1. A.M.E. ENTERPRISES, LLC
2. ABB INC
3. ACORN FARMS
4. ADRIAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP
5. ADRIAN COMMUNICATIONS
6. ADRIAN LANDFILL
7. ADRIAN MECHANICAL SERVICES C
8. ADRIAN WATER CONDITIONING IN
9. AIRGAS GREAT LAKES

10. ALL AMERICAN SEWER & DRAIN S
11. ALL AREA MECHANICAL, LLC
12. ALLIED WASTE SERVICES
13. ALLIED WASTE SERVICES #259
14. AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOC
15. AMERICAN OFFICE SOLUTIONS
16. AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CIVIL
17. AMERIGAS
18. AMVETS
19. APPLE MAT RENTAL
20. ASSOCIATED ENGINEERS
21. AUSTIN INC
22. BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS
23. THE BANK OF NEW YORK
24. BARRETT'S GARDEN CENTER
25. BATTERY WHOLESALE
26. KRISTIN BAUER
27. BEAUBIEN INC.
28. BILL'S SERVICE, INC.
29. ROBERT BISHOP
30. BLACK SWAMP EQUIPMENT
31. JASON BLICKENSDORF
32. BOOK OF THE MONTH CLUB
33. BRADY SAND & GRAVEL INC
34. BRAKES-N-MORE
35. BREATHING AIR SYSTEMS
36. TODD BROWN
37. BUCK & KNOBBY EQUIP CO INC
38. PAM BUNCH
39. BNI
40. C-N CONSTRUCTION SUPPLIES IN
41. CDW-G COMPUTER SUPPLIES
42. CHAMBERS CONTROL COMPANY
43. CHRISTENSEN'S PLANT CENTER
44. CLIFT BUICK-PONTIAC-GMC
45. COLE-PARMER INSTRUMENT CO
46. JUSTIN COMBS
47. COMCAST
48. CONTINENTAL SERVICE
49. CUDA UNIFORM INC
50. CUTLER DICKERSON CO
51. CUTTING EDGE ENGRAVING
52. D & N UPHOLSTERY, INC.
53. D&P COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
54. THE DAILY TELEGRAM
55. DALE'S FENCING
56. DAN'S FARM SUPPLY INC
57. DEMCO INC
58. JOHN DENNIS JR
59. DOAN CONSTRUCTION CO
60. JACK DOHENY SUPPLIES
61. GREG DUMARS
62. E & B SALVAGE LLC
63. EASY WAY WIRELESS, LLC
64. STEVE EBERLE
65. SHIRLEY EHNIS
66. EMERY FLOWERS
67. ENGLEWOOD ELECTRICAL SUPPLY
68. EXECUTONE COMMUNICATIONS LLC
69. FAMILY SERVICE & CHILDREN'S
70. FASTENAL COMPANY
71. FLORIDA MICRO LLC
72. FRANK'S AMERICAN CONCRETE, I
73. FYR-FYTER SALES & SERVICE
74. GALL'S INC
75. J.O. GALLOUP COMPANY

48.00
2,918.02
4,330.00

175.50
336.00
346.16

1,284.50
19. 50

333.33 _
500.00

4,850.00
47,639.52
4,768.73

449.00 _
65.56 _

236.00
158.03
128.00
330.05

3,816.00
196.09 __ _
786.85

120,717.20
136.11
165.84
20.00

130.00-------

285.79
233.15

7,152.50
28.78
39.42

500.00 _

603.62
175.00 _
20.00 -------

13,540.00 _
30.00 _

204.07 _
119.50 -------

1,028.DO _
1,354.DO _

594.50 _
14.32 _
44.30

1,758.36
4.45

747.70
377.70 _
262.80 _
70.00 _

107.50 _
1,876.56 _

824.90 _
12,477.37 _

954. DO _
48.82 -------

20.00 _
225.75
610.59
536.94
30.60
44.98
20.00
45.57

211.25
650.80
156.00 _

1,731.60 _
554.23 _

3,414.84
35,345.46 _
1,658.10

214.17
1,093.05



10113/2010
01:05 pm

CLAIMANT

CITY OF ADRIAN

AMOUNT
CLAIMED

AMOUNT
ALLOWED

PAGE 2

AMOUNT
REJECTED

76. RICHARD GARNO
77. GAYLORD BROS INC
78. MARK GIGAX
79. GOODWILL INDUSTRIES
80. GORDON FOOD SERVICE
81. GRAINGER INC.
82. GRAPHICS UNLIMITED
83. DENISE GRITZMAKER
84. H & H REPAIR
85. HABITEC SECURITY INC
86. HADDEN TIRE COMPANY
87. HALL INDUSTRIAL CO
88. HASSELBRING CLARK CO.
89. HOBBY LOBBY
90. SHANE HORN
91. HOUR MEDIA L.L.C.
92. HUBBARD AUTO CENTER
93. I C M A VANTAGE POINT
94. 1. T. RIGHT
95. ICMA RETIREMENT CORPORATION
96. IDEXX LABORATORIES, INC.
97. INDIANA BRICK PANEL MFG, INC
98. INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES
99. ITT WATER & WASTEWATER

100. JACKSON TRUCK SERVICE INC.
101. JOHN DEERE LANDSCAPES
102. K & B ASPHALT SEALCOATING, I
103. KAPNICK INSURANCE GROUP
104. KELLER THOMA, P.C.
105. LAB SAFETY SUPPLY INC.
106. LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS & PLANN
107. WALTER GREG LANFORD
108. LANSING SANITARY SUPPLY INC
109. LEGACY PRINTING
110. LENAWEE COUNTY EQUALIZATION
Ill. LENAWEE COUNTY PRINTER
112. LENAWEE COUNTY TREASURER
113. LENAWEE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
114. LENAWEE TIRE & SUPPLY CO
115. LEWIS AUTO TRIM
116. LEXIS NEXIS RM INC
117. LOWE'S CREDIT SERVICES
118. MANPOWER OF LANSING MI INC.
119. MARSHALL DISTRICT LIBRARY
120. MASSON'S ELECTRIC, INC
121. GARY MCDOWELL
122. MCGOWAN ELECTRIC SUPPLY INC
123. JIM MCKINNEY
124. MCMASTER- CARR SUPPLY CO.
125. EDWARD G MCNULTY JR
126. MERGENT INC.
127. MICHIGAN EMPLOYMENT RELATION
128. MICHIGAN LIBRARY ASSOC
129. MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE
130. MICHIGAN OFFICE SOLUTIONS
131. MICHIGAN POLICE EQUIP. CO
132. MICHIGAN REC & PARK ASSOC
133. STATE OF MICHIGAN
134. MICHIGAN STATE POLICE
135. MICHIGAN WATER ENVIROMENT AS
136. MICROMARKETING LLC
137. MIDWEST COLLABORATIVE FOR
138. MIDWEST TAPE
139. MORLEY'S FLOOR COVERING
140. MUNICIPAL WEB SERVICES
141. NATARE CORPORATION
142. NEOPOST INC.
143. NETWORK REPORTING
144. NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS
145. NORTH EASTERN UNIFORMS & EQU
146. OHIO CAT
147. OLIVER OF ADRIAN, INC.
148. OMNIGRAPHICS INC.
149. ORIENTAL TRADING CO. INC.
150. MIKE OSBORN

492.81
254.41
20.00
46.00

285.30
92.97

575.00
20.00

406.44
132.00
56.00

3,300.00 _
11,219.00 _

15.96
20.00
39.95

421.80
6,092.01

101.25
155.76

2,709.40
4,274.91

248.64
1,048.98

104.28
330.12

8,327. 85
945.00

8,559.58
208.88

1,257.50
220.90
784.11
136.23

3,500.00
216.89
45.00

3,750.00
586.16
165.00
150.00

5.97
2,584.24

35.00
45.00
20.00

907.89
500.00
387.68
39.72

4,654.00
316.88
85.00
10.00

277.28
190.00
55.00

611.47
3,265.00

210.00
315.60

3,121.00
30.18

2,433.97
290.00

6,726.00
355.00
102.55 ------- _

1,312.25
5,022.42
2,209.86

375.00
163.70
123.99
20.00
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AMOUNT
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PAGE 3

AMOUNT
REJECTED

151. ROBERT OSBURN
152. PALMER ENVELOPE CO.
153. PARAGON LABORATORIES INC
154. PEERLESS SUPPLY INC
155. PET'S SUPPLIES PLUS
156. PINNACLE IRRIGATION INC.
157. PIONEER MANUFACTURING CO.
158. GLENN PRESTON
159. PROFESSIONAL INFORMATION CEN
160. PROMEDICA PHYSICIANS GROUP
161. PROTECH ENVIRONMENTAL SERVIC
162. QUICK SERVICE TRANSPORTATION
163. RAFT
164. RECORDED BOOKS LLC.
165. RIO SUPPLY MICHIGAN METER, I
166. TIM RITCHIE
167. ROBERTSON, EATON & OWEN, PC
168. SAFEWAY MOVING & STORAGE
169. SEBCO BOOKS
170. SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO
171. SHINE'S AUTO CLEAN
172. SIGNAL 88 SECURITY
173. CAROL SOUCHOCK
174. SPENCERMANUFACTURING INC.
175. STANDARD & POOR'S CORP
176. STATE CHEMICAL MFG CO.
177. STEVE AMICK
178. STEVENSON LUMBER, INC.
179. JEFFREY A. STICKNEY, DO,PC
180. STONE'S CAFE & CATERING
181. STONEY CREEK NURSERY
182. STRATOS MICROSYSTEMS LLC
183. T & K LAWN CARE
184. TA INDUSTRIAL SOLUTIONS, INC
185. TDS SECURITY
186. THOMSON WEST
187. TRACY TIME SYSTEMS
188. PAUL TRINKA
189. TTB CLEANING LLC
190. U S POSTMASTER
191. ULOTH FARMS & GREENHOUSE
192. UNIQUESCREEN MEDIA INC.
193. UNITED PARCEL SERVICE
194. US CALVARY
195. UTILITIES INSTRUMENTATION SE
196. VAN BRUNT TRANSPORT INC
197. WENN SEAL COATING
198. WESTERN LIME CORPORATION
199. KRISTEN WETZEL
200. WOODLANDS LIBRARY COOPERATIV
201. F.B. WRIGHT CO
202. WRIGHT SIGNS INC.

**TOTAL ALL CLAIMS**

75.00
413 .00
60.00
53.04
52.98

1,900.00
1,425.00

20.00
863.00

90.00
270.00

9,114.31
85.00

177.80
693.75
20.00

22,700.00
1,021.00
1,385.46

546.40
140.00

1,434.00
259.09
320.00

1,435.92
96.85

300.00
835.38
178.00
59.50

1,055.00
302.99
600.00
641.72
404.25
366.72
16.50
20.00

3,100.00
1,800.00

596.00
280.00
22.88

209.04
2,043.42

365.40
5,862.00
4,920.00

177.12
2,200.40

564.70
325.00

456,940.39



COMMUNICATIONS



MEMO

Date: October4,2010

To: DaneC. Nelson,City Administrator
Hon. Gary McDowell, Mayor
City Commission

From: JeffreyC. Pardee,FinanceDirector
Cindy L. Pmc,AssistantFinance

Re: MGFOA 61stAnnual Fall Training InstituteReport

The following reportprovidesa synopsisof the 61stAnnual MichiganGovernmentFinanceOfficers
Association(MGFOA) Fall Training Institute,heldat Amway GrandHotel & Resortin GrandRapids
MI. September19-22,2010.TheFall TrainingInstituteprovidesan intensive2 Y2 dayseriesof
seminarsto MichiganPublic FinanceOfficerscoveringa varietyof subjectsfrom currentlegislationto
economicconditionsto new financial reportingrequirements.The conferencemarksthe endof my
unprecedentedthird termon the MGFOA Boardof Directors. However,I intendto remainactiveon
variousstandingcommittees,suchasthe ProfessionalDevelopmentCommittee,Legislative
CommitteeandMentorCommittee. In fact, I havebeenappointedChairmanoftheIntergovernmental
CollaborationCommittee.

Monday, September20th, 2010
9:00 - 9:50 am General Session:Michigan Economic and Budget Outlook
Presiding: Luke Huelskamp, FinanceDirector, Municipal EmployeesRetirement System
(MERS)
Speaker: Robert J. Kleine, Treasurer, Stateof Michigan

Michiganandthe nationhavebeengoing throughtheworst economicdownturnsincethe 1930s. The
impacton stateandlocal budgetshasbeenunprecedented.The presentationfocusedon the outlook for
the nationalandstateeconomiesandthe impacton local governmentfinances. The"GreatRecession"
officially endedJune30, 2009andthe economyhasgrownmodestlyat the rateof 1.6%,6.0%,3.7%
and 1.6%during eachof the last four quarters.GrossDomesticProduct(GDP) is forecastedto grow a
meager1.3%, 1.6%,2.3%and2.1% duringthe next four quarters,with a boostto 2.7% and3.6%in
the lasthalfof2011. Althoughcorporateprofits areup sharplyfor 2009-2010 andover750,000jobs
havebeencreatedsinceDecember2009,unemploymentremainsat 9.6%. Arguing for a structural
changein the way Stategovernmentis financed,Mr. Kleine proposedadoptionof a graduatedincome
tax basedon the fact that, during thepastthreedecades,thebottom60%of incomeearnershave
experiencedlessthan25% incomegrowth,whereasthe top two-fifths havegrown 35%and95%,
respectively.He alsoarguedfor expansionof thesalestax to coverpersonalservicesaswell as



consumergoods,notingthatconsumptionof goodshasdeclinedsince1950from 60%to 32.3%,while
consumptionof serviceshasgrownfrom 40%to 67.7%. Salestax revenue,the sourceof stateshared
revenue,hasnot keptpacewith thegrowth in personalincomeduringthis sametime period,currently
lagging35%behind.

The implicationsof the statebudgetcutsanddecliningpropertyvaluesfor local governmentfinances
werealsodiscussed.StateRevenueSharinghasbeenrecommendedby theGovernorto bemaintained
at its presentlevel.

10:00- 10:50am GeneralSession:LegislativeUpdate
Presiding:PresidentJeffreyBudd,City Manager,City of Coldwater
Speaker:SummerMinnick, Directorof StateAffairs, MichiganMunicipal League

The sessionprovidedanoverviewof the legislativeissuesthatwill affect local governmentsin the
comingmonths. A compendiumis availableon theMichiganMunicipal Leaguewebsite,MML.org.

11:00-11:50amKeynote:Leadingwith Laughter: How U.S.PresidentsUsaeHumor to Relate,
MotivateandCommunicateandHow YOU CanToo!
Presiding:KarenLancaster,FinanceDirector,City of Ann Arbor
Speaker:Malcolm Kushner,AFHC, America'sFavoriteHumorConsultant,Malcolm Kushner
& Associates

Video clips ofU.S. Presidentsusinghumorintentionallyandsuccessfullywerepresented.Thespeaker
explainedthe simpletechniquesusedby thePresidentsutilize asa powerfulon-the-jobasset.

1:10- 2:00pm GeneralSession:WorkplaceViolence
Presiding:BeckyJacques,Treasurer,Village of Milford
Speaker:Dr. KennethWolf PhD,Director,Centerfor WorkplaceViolencePrevention

This sessiondefinedbehavioralindicatorsof potentiallyviolent individualsduringperiodsof
organizationalchangeandwhenindividualsmaychooseto directangeragainstco-workers,
supervisors,or the organization.Strategiesto managethepotentiallyviolent individual were
discussed,includingvideotapesofactualindividualsin actualcases.

2:10- 3:00pm PersonalPropertyCollectionsandSeizures
Presiding:JeffreyC. Pardee,C.P.F.O.,FinanceDirector,City of Adrian
Speaker:Al Mooney,Treasurer,City of GrandRapids

Strategieswerepresentedfor gettingpaidby assertingpriority lien rights,with stepsto taketoward
seizureandsaleascollection is pursuedin thecourts. PersonalPropertyTax collectionsaregoverned
by MCL.211.40,All personaltaxesleviedor assessedfor stateandlocal taxesare alsoafirst lien,
prior, superior,andparamount,on all personalpropertyofthepersonsassessedon DecemberJ.
Jeopardyassessments,which in effectacceleratetheduedate,may filed whena determinationhas
beenmadethat thereis a flight risk dueto pendingor actualbusinessclosure. The lien priority extends
to bankruptcyproceedings,wherebythepersonalpropertycanstill beseizedto settlethe tax liability
prior to saleof theassets.

"respeelfor the individual voice,servicefor the commongood" 2



BecausetheCity of GrandRapidshasan IncomeTax, I took theopportunityto obtain infonnation
regardingits historyandimplementation,andmadearrangementsto visit andreviewadministrative
proceduresin the eventsucha tax gainstractionfor theCity of Adrian.

3:10- 4:00 pm BankingIndustryUpdate
Presiding:LauraBranchick,Associate,ComericaBank
Speaker:GregPost,ChiefInvestmentOfficer, AmbassadorCapitalManagement

This sessionincludeda briefsummaryof thecurrenteconomicenvironmentfollowed by a detailed
discussionof theoverall financial conditionof Michiganbanks.

4:10- 5:00pm Multi-Year BudgetingandLong-TermFinancialForecasting
Presiding:KarenLancaster,FinanceDirector,City of Ann Arbor
Speakers:Mark Hurst,Partner,Plante& Moran,PLLC; Tim Soave,Managerof Fiscal
Services,OaklandCounty;Tom Skrobola,CFO,City of Kalamazoo

Underthe headingof advancedbudgetingtechniques,this sessionexploredbestpracticesand
proceduresrelatedto the trendof multi-yearbudgetingandforecasting. A multi-yearbudgetis simply
a long-tennfinancial plan; statelaw (PA621 of 1978)allows local governingboardsto adoptspending
authorityonly oneyearat a time. Therefore,theGeneralAppropriationsAct only adoptsthe first year
of the multi-yearbudget.

Budgetissuesandproblemsarenot limited to a singleyear, theytrendoverseveralyears. A multi-
yearbudgetallows a unit to monitorthosetrendsandemploycurrentyearstrategiesto dealwith
identifiedlong-tennissues.Themulti-yearbudgetalsohastheadvantageof providingcontinuityof
purposeandfinancial supportto managementfor currentprogramsandnewprograminitiatives.
Amendingthemulti-yearbudgetfor the entireplanningperiodensuresits currencyasa planningtoll
andstreamlinesthe budgetprocessgoing forward by requiringa cursoryrevieweachyearratherthana
full blown budgetprocess,startingfrom scratcheachyear.

Tuesday,September21,2010
8:30- 9:05am President'sWelcomeI CommitteeReports
Boardof Directors:JeffreyBudd,MGFOA PresidentandCity Manager,City of Coldwater
StrategicPlanning:Tim Soave,CPFO,ManagerFiscalServices,OaklandCounty
LegislativeCommittee:CatherineMcCleary,Treasurer,WashtenawCounty
MentoringCommittee:Tim Haney,Finance Director,City of St. Clair Shores
ProfessionalDevelopmentCommittee:Tom Colis, Partner,Miller Canfield,Paddock& Stone
StandardsCommittee:JoeHeffernan,Partner,Plante& Moran
TechnologyResourceCommittee:Mark Warner,ManagerPlante& Moran,LLC
IntergovernmentalCollaborationCommittee:Art Holdsworth,DirectorDept.of Facilities&
Operations,OaklandCounty

9:15-10:05amGeneralSession:WhatDo We Do About the45-YearOld Former
ManufacturingWorker?
Presiding:LauraBranchick,Associate,ComericaBank
Speaker:GeorgeA. Erickcek,SeniorRegionalAnalyst,W.E. UpjohnInstitutefor Employment
Research

"respectfor theindividual voice,servicefor thecommongood" 3



After a briefreviewof the uneasyeconomicconditionsfacing the state,thespeakeraddressedthe
question:Whatcanbedoneto helpa45-yearold formermanufacturingworker, who is trying to raise
two kids on herown, makeit to retirement?Wheredo incentives,gearedto attractingknowledge-
basedworkers,andtraining fit into theanswer?During the first halfof201O,thenation's
manufacturersadded102,000jobs (31,000in Michigan), manymakingnewproductsin the field of
energy(solar,wind, geothermal,etc.)chemistryandbio-tech. This is whereknowledgeworkersfit in
themodel. Evidencesuggeststhat the attractionof highly-educatedworkersis stronglyrelatedto
increasedincomegrowth.

However,theyarenot statisticallyrelatedto employmentgrowth. The speakerprofessedthat the
greatesteconomicdevelopmentreturnsto educationcan beearnedby in investingin Pre-Keducation.
Foreachdollar a stateinvestsin universalpreschool,the presentvalueof earningsof stateresidents
would increasealmostthreetimesasmuch. He furtherconcludesthat in the long run, universal
preschoolhasgreatereffectsthanbusinesssubsidiesof the samecost: twice the effectonjobs for state
residents,anda 15%greatereffecton earningsfor stateresidents.

10:15am-11:05pm GeneralSession:InsideMichiganPolitics
Presiding:PatMcGow, Partner,Miller, Canfield,Paddock& Stone
Speaker:William Ballenger,Editor of InsideMichiganPoliticsNewsletter

Mr. Ballengerhadaninsightful presentationprovidingtimely informationabout electionissues,
candidates,andtheir potentialeffecton themunicipalenvironment.Neverbeforehaveracesfor the
state'sfour constitutionaloffices (Governor,LieutenantGovernor,AttorneyGeneralandSecretaryof
State),theentireU.S Housedelegation,everyseatin boththe stateHouseandSenate,andtwo seatson
thestateSupremeCourtappearedon the sameballot on the eveof a censusandreapportionment,while
termslimits arein full sway. More thanfive dozenstatelegislatorswill reachterm limits at the endof
2010. Nearlyhalfof the 148-memberlegislaturecurrentlyservingcouldbe gonefrom office by 2011,
replacedby the largestinfusionof rookie lawmakerssincetheDepression.Controlof the Supreme
Courtagainhangsin the balance.Democratscouldeasilyregaina majority of thejusticesfor the first
time since1998by winningjustoneof thetwo seatsthat will beon the ballot in 2010. 2010is alsothe
yearthe questionofConstitutionalConvention(every 16 years)mustbeon the ballot.

11:15-12:05pmACH Payments:CrankingUp theVolume
Presiding:KarenLancaster,FinanceDirector,City of Ann Arbor
Speaker:Amy Smith,PresidentandCEO,PaymentAuthority
ThePaymentsAuthority is a not-for-profit tradeassociationwhosemembershipincludesover450
financial institutions,companies,municipalitiesandsolutionproviderswho sharea commonstrategy...
maximizebusinessefficiencies,improvepaymentprocesses,reducerisk andcost,andincrease
customersatisfaction.Mission: to grow theuseof electronicpaymentsthrougheducation,marketing
andsupport.

ACH volumegrew in 2009to 18.76billion transactions,a 2.6 percentincreaseover2008activity.
Total dollar value in pay for 2009wasnearly$30billion. DirectDeposit(4.9%),consumerInternet
transactions(8.75%),B2B transactions(3.2%),andbackoffice checkconversion(104%)werethe
bright spotsin 2009. ACH paymentsareexpectedto out numberpaymentsby checkin the nearfuture.
Legislationis pendingat boththe federalandstatelevel thatwould allow employersto requiredirect
payroll deposit.

"respectfor the individual voice,servicefor thecommongood" 4



Risk Managementis a growing concernregardingCorporateAccounttakeover. Paperpayments
convertingto ACH brings fraudto theACH paymentsystem.Many NationalACH Association
initiativesarefocusedon keepingthe "badguys" out andensuringfinancial institutionsunderstandthe
rulesandwho they aredoingbusinesswith.

12:15-1:10pm AnnualBusinessMeeting
Presiding:JeffreyBudd,MGFOA PresidentandCity Manager,City of Coldwater

New BoardMemberswereelectedandretiring BoardMemberswereacknowledged.By-Lawswere
amendedto enhancemembershipandtraining.

1:10- 2:00pm SocialMedia 101: Tools for CommunityEngagement
Presiding: KarenLancaster,FinanceDirector,City of Ann Arbor
Speaker:Lisa Wondrash,CommunicationsUnit Manager,City of Ann Arbor

This sessionaddressedthebenefitsandpitfalls ofusingsocialmediain thepublic sectorto improve
communicationswith constituentsthroughsuchtools asTwitter, Facebook,Animoto andmore.
l" SocialMediaa Fad?

Yearsto reach50 million users-
__ Radio- 38 years
_ TV - 12 years
_Internet- 4 years
__ iPod- 3 years

FacebookaddedlOO million usersin lessthan9 months.

In 20I0, GenerationY outnumberedBabyBoomersand90 percentof theGenerationY populationhasjoineda
socialnetworkingsiteandconsidere-mailpasse.Social mediais ashift in theway the world communicatesand
connects.SocialMediausesinclude:
Communication:

Blogs: Blogger,ExpressionEngine,LiveJournal,OpenDiary, TypePad,WordPress
Microblogging:Foursquare,Tumblr, Twitter, Yammer
Socialnetworking:Facebook,LinkedIn, MySpace
Events:Eventful,Meetup.com,Upcoming,GoogleCalendar

Collaboration:
Wikis: PBworks,Wetpaint,Wikia, Wikipedia
Socialbookmarking(or socialtagging):CiteULike, Delicious,GoogleReader,StumbleUpon
Social news:Digg, Mixx, NowPublic,Reddit,Newsvine

Multimedia:
Photographyandart sharing:Flickr, Animoto, Photobucket,Picasa,SmugMug,Zooomr,
Video sharing:Y ouTube,Dailymotion,Metacafe,
Livecasting:Justin.tv,Livestream,OpenCU,Skype,Stickam,Ustream
Music andaudiosharing:Last.fm,MySpaceMusic, ReverbNation.com,ShareTheMusic,iTunes

Reviewsandopinions:
Productreviews:epinions.com,MouthShut.com
Businessreviews:CustomerLobby, Yelp, Inc.
CommunityQ&A: Askville, WikiAnswers,Yahoo! Answers

Ann Arbor SocialMedia Timeline
·Summerof2009: Socialmediacharterteamformed
·Teambeganto exploresocialmediausageto promoteparksand

"respectfor the individualvoice,servicefor thecommongood" 5



recreationeventsandactivities
-Socialmediacity usagepromotedto City Councilandmanagers
-Othercity businessunits beganto usespecificsocialmediatools
-In early2010,theCity of Ann Arbor official Facebook,Twitter,
Flickr andYouTubesiteswerelaunched
-Springof 2010, the City of Ann Arbor SocialMediapolicy was
createdto establishemployeeguidelinesandusage

More informationis availableuponrequest

2:10- 3:00pm ConsolidatingServices: OvercomingtheRoadblocksto AchieveFinancialand
OperationalSuccess
Presiding:Luke Huelskamp,FinanceDirector,MunicipalEmployeesRetirementSystem
(MERS)
Speakers:ChristineAndrysiak,Manager,Plante& Moran,PLLC

In thesechallengingeconomictimes therehasbeensignificanteffort put towardthe ideaof
consolidatinggovernmentservices.Thereality is that fully integratedcollaborativeefforts can be
difficult to approach,contemplateandimplement. This sessionprovidedinsightaboutovercomingthe
roadblocksto consolidationin orderto assistin makingconsolidationefforts successful.

3:10- 4:00 pm FiscalScoringat theStateLevel
Presiding:JeffreyC. Pardee,C.P.F.O.,FinanceDirector,City of Adrian
Speakers:Tim Soave,CPFO,ManagerFiscalServices,OaklandCounty;SuzanneSchaffer,
Administrator,LocalAudit andFinance,MichiganDepartmentof Treasury,andEric Scorsone,
PhD,SeniorEconomist,SenateFiscalAgency

This sessionconsistedof threeareasrelatedto fiscal scoring. The first wasa discussionof thecurrent
fiscal scoringsystemimplementedby the StateDepartmentof Treasury,including information
regardingthe factors,aswell ashow theDepartmentuses(andDOESN'Tuse)the scores.
The scoresareprimarily usedasanobjectivethird-partyevaluationto help local governmentrecognize
how their unit comparesfiscally with othergovernmentalunitsthroughoutthe state. TheDepartment
DOESNOT usethe scoresto determineif a financial managershouldbeassignedto a distressed
community;anunfavorablescoreonly servesto corroboratewhat is likely a foregone conclusion.

In addition,thecurrentpolicy issuesandpotentialfuturepolicy impactsof Statefiscal scoringwere
explored. And finally, thesessionconcludedwith a discussionof whata community'sfiscal score
meansto theCity Commissionandcitizenryat-large.

Wednesday,September222010
9:00- 9:50am CollectiveBargaining2010
Presiding:JeffreyBudd,MGFOA PresidentandCity Manager,City of Coldwater
Speaker:GeorgeButler,Attorney,Dickinson,Wright

The lawsgoverningpublic sectorcollectivebargainingwerediscussedat this session,aswell astrends
occurringin thatcontextandtherulesandinterpretationsgoverningsuchmajor issuesaswhathappens
whena collectivelybargainedagreementexpires/terminates,whatdefinesan impasse,whencanan
employerimposea contract,communicatingduringbargaining,andthe Act 312 standards.

"respectfor the individual voice,serviceforthecommongood" 6



10:00-10:50am StatutorySupportsfor Cooperative/ContractualArrangementsbetween
Different PublicEntitiesin 2010
Presiding:Tom Skrobola,CFO,City of Kalamazoo
Speaker:GeorgeButler, Attorney,Dickinson,Wright

This sessionintroducedthe majorstatutoryprovisionsenablingsuch arrangements,comparingand
contrastingthemasto their applicability,purposeandrequirements.Also discussedwerethe
opportunitiestheseprovisionsrepresentfor creativesolutionsto decliningpublic sectorrevenuesand
for economiesof scale. A 73-pageWhite Paperis availableuponrequest.

11:50-11:50amWhat theNew HealthCarePlanMeansto Governments
Presiding:BeckyJacques,Treasure,Village of Milford
Speaker:JustinSpewock,CEO,BallardBenefits

TheHealthCareReformlegislation- Patient Protection & Affordability Care Act (PPACA) - will implement
sweepingreformofall aspectsof theHealthCareFinanceandDelivery Systemoverthenextseveral
years. Thesependingchangeshavebothconfusedandfrightenedthe marketplace.The speaker
soughtto presenta simplified, up to date,overview of HealthCareReformandwhat it meansto
governmentalentities. A difficult challenge,in lessthanonehour'stime. I'm not surehemet the
challenge. His presentationconsistedof almost70 slides,which consumed7.26MBs ofmemoryand
took overtwo minutesto download, andproceededwith the fact that39 statelegislaturesand20
AttorneysGeneralareraisinglegalchallengesto the Act andclosedwith the possibleconsequencesof
its repeal,if theRepublicansrecaptureCongressin November.

If you haveanyquestionsor needfor further information,pleasecontactouroffice.

"respectforthe individual voice,servicefor the commongood" 7
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CR10-065 October 18, 2010

RE: PLANNING COMMISSION - Appointment to Planning Commission

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the resignation of Ken Tokarz from the Planning Commission has
created a vacancy; and

WHEREAS, this vacancy must be filled in accordance with the Adrian City
Charter; and

WHEREAS, Charles Jacobson, 204 Clinton Street, has expressed a willingness
to serve on the Planning Commission if appointed; and

WHEREAS, the Adrian City Commission has given careful consideration to the
appointment of Mr. Jacobson.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission does
hereby approve the appointment of Charles Jacobson to fill the unexpired term on
the Planning Commission, with the term to expire in 2012.

On motion by Commissioner , seconded by

Commissioner , this resolution was

_______ by a vote.



Experience

Education

CharlesR. Jacobson
204 Clinton Street. Adrian, MI 49221 (517)-263-7767 CRJCBSN@UMICH.EDU

Manager
(Oct. 1994-present), International Diamond, Adrian, MI
• Oversee all day to day operations of store including sales, inventory control,
monitoring sales people's performance and coaching them to help them improve,
purchasing, advertising, leasing, negotiating, devising new methods to improve
profitability, customer relations, managing cash flow, budgeting.

Merchandiser
(2005-2007), Procter and Gamble, Adrian, MI
• Reset displays and integrated new merchandise

Asst. Mgr.
(Nov. 1990-0ct. 1994), Merksamer Jewelers, Ann Arbor, MI
• Assisted manager in all day to day operations of store, including inventory control,
reaching sales goals, monitoring sales people's performance and coaching them to help
them improve.

Head Teller
(BB-Nov. 1990), Michigan National Bank, Ann Arbor, MI
• In charge of everything involved with the physical cash on hand and the employees
involved with it. This included shipping and receiving cash to and from the main vault.
The balancing of cash in the branch as a whole and per teller. Customer relations.

University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, MI
Sept. 19B6-Jan. 1990 and 2002-2004

Charles Jacobson
204 Clinton St. Adrian, MI 49221, (517)-263-7767 CRJCBSN@UMICH.EDU
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October 18, 2010

RESOLUTION FOR DESIGNATION
OF STREET ADMINISTRATOR

This information is required by Act 51, P.A. 1951as amended. Failure
to supply this information will result in funds being withheld.

MAIL TO: Michigan Department of Transportation, Bureau of Finance
and Administration, P.O. Box 30050, Lansing, MI 48909.
or Fax to: 517-241-2589

NOTE: Indicate, if possible, where Street Administrator can usually be reached during normal
working hours, if different than City or Village Office. List any other office held by the Administrator.

Councilperson or Commissioner _

offered the following resolution and moved its adoption:

Whereas, Section 13(9) of Act 51, Public Acts of 1951 provided that each incorporated city and village to which

funds are returned under the provisions of this section, that, "the responsibility for street improvements,

maintenance, and traffic operations work, and the development, construction, or repair of off-street parking facilities

and construction or repair of street lighting shall be coordinated by a single administrator to be designated by the

governing body who shall be responsible for and shall represent the municipality in transactions with the State

Transportation Department pursuant to this act."

Therefore, be it resolved, that this Honorable Body designate...::Kr=...;.is_ti_n.:...B..:...au.:...e:..:..f,--,C.:...i""ty.:...E=:n:::sge-in.:...e...::e=--r _

____________________ as the single Street Administrator for the City or Village of

_C_it.:...y_o_f_A_d_ri_an in all transactions with the State Transportation Department

as provided in Section 13 of the Act.

Supported by the Councilperson or Commissioner _

yeas _

Nays _

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution made and adopted at a regular meeting

of the governing body of this municipality on the ....:;1..:...8.;:::th:....- day of

October, 2010

CITY OR VILLAGE CLERK (SIGNATURE) EMAIL ADDRESS DATE

pbaker(a}ci.adrian.mi.us a October 19,2010

STREET ADMINISTRATOR (SIGNATURE) EMAIL ADDRESS DATE

kbauer@ci.adrian.mi.us October 19, 2010
ADDRESS OF CITY OR VILLAGE OFFICE P.O.BOX

City of Adrian 135 E. Maumee Street
CITY OR VILLAGE IZIP CODE PHONE NUMBER

Adrian, MI 49221 (517) 264-4894
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MEMORANDUM - UTILITIES DEPARTMENT

DATE: October12,2010

TO: DaneC. Nelson,City Administrator

FROM: ShaneA Hom, Utilities

SUBJECT: WaterMeterRepairandReplacement

I concurwith therecommendationof theUtilities Directorto awardthebid for the
installationof watermeterswith radio-readdevicesto SLC MeterServiceof Davisburg,MI in
theamountof$61,047.84.Meterswill bereplacedat 29 commerciallindustrialsites,andin most
cases,will eliminatetheneedfor employeesto enterconfinedspaces.

Two firms respondedto theoffer to bid. Therearesufficient fundsin theWaterCapital
budgetfor this expense.

Respectfullysubmitted,

City Administrator

Sealedbidswerereceivedat thepurchasingoffice on September23,2010for a water
meterreplacementproject. Thesewatermetersarelocatedin our moredifficult to accessmeter
pit locationsthroughoutthecity. Eachlisted locationwill receivea newmeteranda radioread
devicethatwill allow usto readeachlocationin a moreefficient mannerandin somelocations
eliminateenteringa confinedspace. SLC MeterServiceofDavisburg,MI wasthelow bidder
for this projectwith a total of $61,047.84.This projectwill allow usto replace29
commercial/industrialmeterswith themajority beingover30 yearsold. We will continueto
utilize Neptunemetersaswe continueto upgradeourexistinginfrastructureto this equipment
andmeterreadingtechnology.

I respectfullyrecommendthatwe proceedwith this projectutilizing the servicesof SLC
MeterService. Fundsfor this projecthavebeenbudgetedin thewatercapitalbudget(496-
531.00-977.504)and496-531.00-977.502).

cc: JeffPardee,FinanceDirector
NancyDart,Office Manager

---------,-_.. __..-.-._-----_.._---



CITY OFADRIAN, MICmGAN
WATER METERREPAIR& REPLACEMENT

DUE DATE: SEPTEMBER23, 2010

Rio SupplyMich Meter SLC MeterService
MadisonHeightsMI Davisburg,MI

AdrianVillage - TestOnly $ 300.00 $145.00
Test& Repair $500.00 S275.00
Test& Replace $5,536.00 $7,100.00

FriendlyVillage - TestOnly $300.00 $145.00
Test& Repair $500.00 $275.00
Test& Replace $5,536.00 $7,100.00

MaplewoodEstates·TestOnly $300.00 $145.00
Test& Repair $500.00 $275.00
Test& Replace $1,200.00 $600.00

Ervin Amsteel- TestOnly $300.00 $145.00
Test& Repair $500.00 $275.00
Test&: Replace $5,536.00 $3,900.00

Biolab Inc -TestOnly $200.00 $140.00
Test& Repair $350.00 5250.00
Test& Replace $3,366.00 $2,900.00

MapleCity Auto Wash-TestOnly $200.00 $140.00
Test& Repair $350.00 $240.00
Test& Replace $2,545.00 $2,091.00

Adrian College,EstesHall
TestOnly $140.00
Test& .Repair $350.00 $240.00
Test& Replace $2,091.00

APS-655Springbrook
TestOnly $200.00 $140.00
Test& Repair $350.00 $240.00
Test& Replace $2,545.00 $2,091.00

JCPenney TestOnly $200.00 $140.00
Test& Repair $350.00 S240.oo
Test&: Rej)lace $2,545.00 $2,091.00

Sears TestOnly $200.00 $140.00
Test& Repair $350.00 $240.00
Test& Replace $2,545.00 $2,091.00

APS-801 E Maumee
TestOnly $200.00 $120.00
Test& Repair $300.00 *
test& Replace $1,160.00 $1,684.88

CollegeCourtApts-TestOnly $200.00 SI20.00
Test& Repair $300.00 *
Test& Replace $1,760.00 $1,684.88

YMCA TestOnly $200.00 $120.00
Test& Repair $300.00 *
Test& Replace $1,760.00 $1,684.88

BobEvans TestOnly $200.00 $140.00
Test& Repair $300.00 •
Test& Replace $1,760.00 $1,684.88



City of Adrian TestOnly $200.00 $120.00
Test& Repair $300.00 '"
Test& Reolace $1,760.00 $1,684.88

LandisStewart TestOnly $200.00 $lio.oo
Test& Repair $300.00 '"
Test& RePlace $1,760.00 $1,684.88

OrchardApts TestOnly $200.00 $120.00
Test& Repair $300.00 •
Test& Replace $1,760.00 $1,684.88

MapleVillage High Rise
TestOnly $200.00 $120.00
Test& Repair $300.00 $220.00
Test& Replace $1,760.00 $1,684,88

Meijer Inc TestOnly $200.00 $120.00
Test& Repair $300.00 $220.00
Test& RePlace $1,760.00 $1,684.88

Big Lots Store TestOnly $200.00 $120.00
Test& Repair $300.00 '"
Test& Replace $1,760.00 $1,684.88

MapleVillage TestOnly $200.00 $120.00
Test& ftepair $300.00 $i20.00
Test& Replace $1,760.00 $1,684.88

MadisonApts TestOnly $200.00 $120.00
Test& Repair $300.00 '"
Test& Replace 51,760.00 $1,684.88

CutlerDickersonTestOnly $200.00 $120.00
Test& Repair $300.00 •
Test& Reolace $1,760.00 $1,684.88

Adrian FoodlandTestOnly $200.00 $120.00
Test& Repair $300.00 *
Test& Replace $1,760.00 $1,684.88

BereanBaptistChurch
TestOnly $200.00 $120.00
Test& Repair $300.00 *
Test& Replace $1,760.00 $1,684.88

Bankof America TestOnly $200.00 $120.00
Test& Repair $300.00 '"fest& Replace $1,760.00 $1,684.88

First MethodistChurch
TestOnly $200.00 $120.00
Test& Repair $300.00 '"Test& RePlace $1,760.00 $1,684.88

InnisbrookApts TestOnly $200.00 $120.00
Test& Repair $300.00 •
Test& Replace $1,760.00 $1684.8&

YMCA TestOnly $50.00 $120.00
Test& Repair $50.00 '"
Test& Replace $200.00 $516.00

Beginwithin 40 daysand '" Is notrepairable
completewithin 30 days.

Test& repairdoesnot include
parts
Test& replaceincludesnew
meter&R900, plumbing,parts,
accessoriesto complete



CR10-067 October 18, 2010

RE: UTILITIES DEPARTMENT - Water Meter Repair and Replacement

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Adrian City Commission, by Resolution #R10-057 dated May
3, 2010, approved the FY2010-11 BUdget and General Appropriations Act and
unspent carry-forward funds, which included $30,000 (Acct. # 496-531.00-977.502)
for ARB large meters and $50,000 (Acct. #496-531.00-977.504) for the Meter
Replacement Program; and

WHEREAS, bids were solicited and two (2) bids were received on September
23, 2010 by the City of Adrian Purchasing Office, summarized as follows:

Vendor
RIO Supply/Michigan Meter, Inc., Madison Heights, MI
SLC Meter Service, Inc., Davisburg, MI,

Amount
$63,584
$61,048

WHEREAS, the Utilities Director and City Administrator recommend that low
bidder (SLC Meter Service, Inc., Davisburg, MI) be selected for acquisition of water
meters at a cost not to exceed $61,048; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission, by this
resolution, hereby authorizes the selection of SLC Meter Service, Inc., Davisburg,
MI, for purposes of acquiring water meters to continue the City's replacement
program at a cost not to exceed $61,048.

On motion by Commissioner _

seconded by Commissioner , this

resolution was by a _ vote.



REGULARAGENDA



October 18, 2010

SPECIAL ORDER

The Mayor called for the hearing and consideration of comments to approval
of an application for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for
property located at 125 E. Maumee Street owned by AI and Phyllis Wilkerson.

Discussion

When the Mayor called for final objections _

and he declared the hearing closed.



MEMO 135 E. Maumee St. Adrian, Michigan 49221-2773

DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

September 30, 2010

Hon. Gary McDowell, Mayor

City Commission
Dane Nelson, City Administrator

Chris Atkin
Director of Community Development

125 East Maumee Street OPRA Exemption Certificate Recommendation

Attached you will find an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) Exemption Certificate application
from AI and Phyllis Wilkerson, owner's of 125 East Maumee Street in downtown Adrian. The proposed
rehabilitation project will result in the conversion of the "functionally obsolete" structure to a fully
functional, code compliant commercial structure. The estimated personal investment rehabilitation cost
is $104,361.00, not including the purchase price ofthe building.

Mr. & Mrs. Wilkerson are petitioning the City of Adrian for an OPRA tax freeze per the city's OPRA policies
and procedures. It is the recommendation of the city's Community Development Department for the City
Commission to approve the attached resolution granting a nine (9) year OPRA Exemption Certificate for
125 East Maumee Street rehabilitation project. The nine year period is consistent with the City of Adrian
OPRA Application Process and Review Criteria as approved by the Adrian City Commission in the fall of
2006.

Property Eligibility

Functionally Obsolete
The property at 125 East Maumee Street is "functionally obsolete" by definition per Section 2(h) of
Public Act 146 of 2000. Such is reflected in the attached independent finding by local architect, Mr.
Michael Nicklowitz, and supported by an Assessor's Affidavit of Functional Obsolescence as obtained
from Mr. Martin Marshall, Director of the Lenawee County Equalization Department.

Commercial Property
The first floor will function as "Governor Croswell's Tea Room" and the second floor will remain as it;
two separate rental apartments.

Property Ownership
The subject property is currently owned by Mr. & Mrs. Wilkerson.

"respectfm'the individual voice,servicefor the commongood"



Applicant Assurance that the Project would not have been completed without exemption certificate.
The applicant has provided a statement to the Community Development Department indicating that the
OPRA exemption certificate represents a necessary incentive to make this rehabilitation project feasible
and that the project would not have been considered without.

Rehabilitation Project was not started prior to establishment of OPRA District.
No rehabilitation work on the project commenced prior to the Adrian City Commission establishing the
City's Downtown Development District as an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District per Public Act 146
of 2000. This occurred after a duly noticed public hearing on October 16, 2003.

No delinquent taxes on the facility or structure being renovated.
A review of the city's tax record reveals that there are no outstanding or delinquent tax obligations at this
time.

Project has a reasonable likelihood of increasing commercial activity, create/retain employment, prevent a
loss of employment and revitalize urban areas.
The 2003 Blueprint for Downtown Adrian is explicit in its suggestion for economic growth and vibrancy,
the proposed rehabilitation is consistent with the suggestion. This rehabilitation project will result in the
creation of 12 jobs, including expected construction employment, and the nature of the business ensures
that commercial activity will increase hence promoting the revitalization ofthe downtown area.

Applicant must provide a statement of determined economic impact.
This project represents the renovation and reuse of a historic downtown building that has been home to a
variety of commercial uses since 1910. The applicants are making a significant financial and personal
investment into the downtown community and the City of Adrian with the anticipation that this project
will spur future economic development interest in the downtown. The applicant estimates the
rehabilitation project will result in the creation of 12 jobs, including expected construction employment.
This project is consistent with the recommendation of the economic vitality of the City's Blueprint for
downtown Adrian revitalization.

The applicant will indicate the period of time in which the rehabilitation project will be completed.
The applicant has indicated that they expect to commence rehabilitation work in October 2010 and
complete the project by late December 2010.

The applicant may request an exemption for up to twelve (12) years and must explain why the abatement
is required for the number of years requested.
The applicants request that the City of Adrian approve the exemption certificate for nine (9) years for the
subject property. The applicants have state they have and will be devoting a significant amount personal
time and investment into the downtown district.

The City of Adrian Commission, per the recommendation of the Downtown Development Authority Board
of Directors and city staff has approved policies relative to the use of the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation
Act. The policy includes a score sheet by which projects are judged. The proposed project at 125 East
Maumee Street has scored 340 points on the score sheet. Per the city's policy, this score makes the
project eligible for a nine (9) year Exemption Certificate.

All applicants must be in compliance with the City of Adrian zoning ordinance and the City of Adrian
Master Land Use Plan.

"respectfOi' rhe individual voice.service/orthe commongood"



The proposed project is located within the Central Business District and is consistent with the use
requirements. The proposed project is also consistent with the city's Comprehensive Plan.

The applicant will also include a history of the property use and any environmentalconcerns and
proceduresto abateanyhazardousconditions.
There are no identifiable or known environmental concerns that would prohibit this type of rehabilitation.

RehabilitationProjectmustresult in a true cashvalue aggregation10% or moreof the true cashvalueat
commencementofthe rehabilitation project.
True cash value of the property will increase upon project completion.

Conclusions and Findings

It is the opinion of Community Development Department staff that this project will provide continued
momentum and influence to downtown Adrian that will be represented through personal investment and
rehabilitation/reuse of a "functionally obsolete" building. As a result, the City's Community Development
Department respectfully requests that the City of Adrian Commission approve the attached resolution
granting a nine (9) year OPRA Exemption Certificate for 125 East Maumee Street.

Respectfully submitted,

Chris Atkin
Community Development Director

"respect/orthe individual voice. servicefor the commongood"
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September 14, 2010

Mrs. Pat Baker, Clerk
City of Adrian
135 E. Maumee St.
Adrian, MI 49221

RE: OPRA EXEMPTION APPLICATION -125 East Maumee Street

Dear Mrs. Baker,

450 Forest Ave
Plymouth, MJ 48170

734.454.0777

Please accept this letter, the attached application, and required submittals as our, AI & Phyllis
Wilkerson, application to the City of Adrian for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Certificate pursuant
to the provisions of Public Act 146 of 2000.

We are currently working with local Architect Mike Nicklowitz of Adrian Design Group (ADG) and expect
to invest approximately $104,361 in combined rehabilitation expenses into the building not including
the December 2009 purchase price. It is our intention to rehabilitate one of the most characteristically
aesthetic bUildings in downtown Adrian to a functional use that will service the public with high
standards.

We, AI & Phyllis Wilkerson, respectfully request that the Adrian City Commission grant an Obsolete
Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate pursuant to the City of Adrian's OPRA gUidelines. We are
requesting and exemption of nine (9) years for the property located at 125 East Maumee Street as
permitted by statute.

The following represents responses to the required submittals per PA 146 of 2000.

1. General description of the obsolete facility (year built, original use, most recent use,
number of stories, square footage).

Our intention is to rehabilitate the bUilding located at 125 East Maumee Street. The
building was erected in 1910 by C. Frederick Matthes and his son, architect Arthur Matthes.
From the building's construction until 1967 a prominent millinery and women's dress shop
was operated at the site. Following this, until 1998, the property was site of Judge's Jewelry
and the most recent use was a women's resale clothing store.
The building is approximately 3,500 gross square feet and comprised of two levels and a
mezzanine.



2. General description of the proposed use of the rehabilitated facility.

The subject property will be returned to a viable use as a 'Tea Room' for the general public
on the first floor and the two apartments will remain on the second floor.

3. Description of the general nature and extent of the rehabilitation to be undertaken.

The project will include fac;ade renovations and rehabilitation to restore the integrity of the
original appearance. The roof will be replaced to eliminate the leaks as they are currently
damaging the front apartment. The interior rehabilitation will include the addition of a fully
functional kitchen, new electrical panel and wiring to meet local code, new plumbing for the
kitchen and first floor bathroom and the windows and doors will be rehabbed to assist with
energy efficiency.

4. A descriptive list of the fixed building equipment that will be a part of the rehabilitated
facility.

No information is available at this time.

5. A time schedule for undertaking and completing the rehabilitation of the facility.

We expect to commence rehabilitation during the month of September/October 2010 with
an anticipated/expected completion in December 2010 or earlier.

6. A statement of the economic advantages expected from the exemption.

This project represents the renovation and reuse of an obsolete property located in
downtown Adrian. We will be making a significant financial and personal investment to the
downtown community and expect our investment to spur future economic development
interest into the heart of the city. We estimate that this project will create 5-6 new
employment opportunities and provide work to qualified local contractors during the
renovation/rehabilitation process. This project is consistent with the recommendation set
forth in the City's Blueprint study to encourage economic vitality into downtown Adrian.

7. A statement from the assessor describing the building's obsolescence.

The assessor's affidavit of functional obsolescence for the structure is attached.

Thank you for taking the time to review our application. If you have any questions or require additional
information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Respectfully,

AI Wilkerson
Owner



Michigan Department of Treasury
3674 (Rev. 10-06)

Application for Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate
This form is issued as provided by P.A. 146 of 2000, as amended. This application should be filed after the district is established. This project will not
receive tax benefits until approved by the State Tax Commission. Applications received after October 31 may not be acted upon in the current year.
This application is subject to audit by the State Tax Commission.

INSTRUCTIONS: File the original and two copies of this form and the required attachments with the clerk of the local government unit.

(The State Tax Commission requires two copies of the Application and attachments. The original is retained by the clerk.) Please see

State Tax Commission Bulletin 9 of 2000 for more information about the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption. The following

must be provided to the local government unit as attachments to this application: (a) General description of the obsolete facility (year

built, original use, most recent use, number of stories, square footage); (b)General description of the proposed use of the rehabilitated

facility, (c) Description of the general nature and extent of the rehabilitation to be undertaken, (d) A descriptive list of the fixed building

equipment that will be a part of the rehabilitated facility, (e) A time schedule for undertaking and completing the rehabilitation of the

facility, (f) A statement of the economic advantages expected from the exemption. Rehabilitation may commence after establishment

of district

Applicant (Company) Name (applicant must be the OWNER of the facility)
AI & Phyllis Wilkerson

Company Mailing address (No. and street, P.O. Box, City, State, ZIP code)
6164 Gloucester Dr., Canton, Ml. 48187

Location of obsolete facility (No. and slreet, City, Slale, ZIP Code)
125 East Maumee Street Adrian, MI 49221

City, Township, Village (indicate which) ICounty
City of Adrian Lenawee

Date of Commencement of Rehabilitation (mm/dd/yyyy) Planned date of Completion of Rehabilitation School District where facility is located (include school coda)

09131110 (mmidd/yyyy) 12/31/10 Adrian 46010
Estimated Cost of Rehabilitation Number of years exemption requested Attach Legal description of Obsolete Property on separate

$104,361.00 9
sheet

Expected project likelihood (check all that apply):

Increase Commercial activity D Retain employment o Revitalize urban areas

o Create employment D Prevent a loss of employment Increase number of residents in the
community in which the facility is situated

Indicate the number of jobs to be retained or created as a result of rehabilitating the facility, including expected construction employmentR-
Each year, the State Treasurer may approve 25 additional reductions of half the school operating and state education taxes for a period not to exceed six years. Check the
following box if you wish to be considered for this exclusion.

APPLICANT'S CERTIFICATION
The undersigned, authorized officer of the company making this application certifies that, to the best of his/her knowledge, no information contained
herein or in the attachments hereto is false in any way and that all of the information is truly descriptive of the property for which this application is being
submitted. Further, the undersigned is aware that, if any statement or information provided is untrue, the exemption provided by P.A. 146 of 2000 may
be in jeopardy.
The applicant certifies that this application relates to a rehabilitation program that, when completed, constitutes a rehabilitated facility, as
defined by P.A. 146of 2000, as amended, and that the rehabilitation of the facility would not be undertaken without the applicant's receipt of
the exemption certificate.
It is further certified that the undersigned is familiar with the provisions of PA 146 of 2000, as amended, of the Michigan Compiled Laws; and to the
best of his/her knowledge and belief, (s)he has complied or will be able to comply with all of the requirements thereof which are prerequisite to the
approval of the application by the local unit of government and the issuance of an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate by the State
Tax Commission.

Name of Company Officer (no authorized agents) ITel:t.hone Number Fax Number
AI Wilkerson (7 4) 459-0721

MailinrsAddress Email Address
61 4 Gloucester Dr" Canton, Ml. 48187 alwilkerson@comcast.net

Signature of Company Officer (no authorized agents) Title

Owner

LOCAL GOVERNMENT UNIT CLERK CERTIFICATION
Clerk must also complete Parts 1, 2 and 4 on Page 2. Part 3 to be completed by the assessor.

IDate application received

-----------------------------

ISignature



Form 3674, Page 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACTION
This section is to be completed by the clerk of the local governing unit before submitting the application to the State Tax Commission. Include a copy of
the resolution which approves the application and a separate statement of obsolescence from the assessor of record with the State Assessor's Board.
All sections must be completed in order to process.

PART 1: ACTION TAKEN

Action Date: _

D Exemption Approved for Years, ending December 30, (not to exceed 12 years)

D Denied

Date District Established [LUCI Code [SChOOl Code

10/16/2006 46201 46010

PART 2: RESOLUTIONS (the following statements must be included in resolutions approving)

A statement that the local unit is a Qualified Local Governmental Unit.

A statement that the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District was legally
established including the date established and the date of hearing as
provided by section 3 of P.A. 146 of 2000.

A statement indicating whether the taxable value of the property proposed
to be exempt plus the aggregate taxable value of property already exempt
under P.A. 146 of 2000 and under P.A. 198 of 1974 (1FT's) exceeds 5% of
the total taxable value of the unit.

A statement of the factors, criteria and objectives, if any, necessary for
extending the exemption, when the certificate is for less than 12 years.

A statement that the application was approved at a public hearing as
provided by section 4(2) of PA 146 of 2000 including the date of the
hearing.

A statement that the applicant is not delinquent in any taxes related to the
facility.

If it exceeds 5% (see above), a statement that exceeding 5% will not have
the effect of substantially impeding the operation of the Qualified Local
Governmental Unit or of impairing the financial soundness of an affected
taxing unit.

A statement that all of the items described under "Instructions" (a)
through (f) of the Application for Obsolete Property Rehabilitation
Exemption Certificate have been provided to the Qualified Local
Governmental Unit by the applicant.

A statement that the application is for obsolete property as defined in
section 2(h) of Public Act 146 of 2000.

A statement that the commencement of the rehabilitation of the facility
did not occur before the establishment of the Obsolete Property
Rehabilitation District.

A statement that the application relates to a rehabilitation program that
when completed constitutes a rehabilitated facility within the meaning of
PA 146 of 2000 and that is situated within an Obsolete Property
Rehabilitation District established in a Qualified Local Governmental Unit
eligible under PA 146 of 2000 to establish such a district.

A statement that completion of the rehabilitated facility is calculated to,
and will at the time of issuance of the certificate, have the reasonable
likelihood to, increase commercial activity, create employment, retain
employment, prevent a loss of employment, revitalize urban areas, or
increase the number of residents in the community in which the facility is
situated. The statement should indicate which of these the rehabilitation
is likely to result in.

A statement thai the rehabilitation includes improvements aggregating
10% or more of the true cash value of the property at commencement of
the rehabilitation as provided by section 2(1) of P.A. 146 of 2000.

A statement of the period of time authorized by the Qualified Local
Governmental Unit for completion of the rehabilitation.

PART 3: ASSESSOR RECOMMENDATIONS
Taxable Value and State Equalized Value of Obsolete Property, as provided in P.A. 146 of 2000, as amended, Section 6(2)c...taxable value ofthe
obsolete property, separately stated for real and personal property, for the tax year immediately preceding the effective date of the certificate
(December 31 st of the year approved by the STC)...

Taxable Value State Equalized Value (SEV)

If you have any questions, call (517) 373-3272.

Land

Building(s) $65,100 $65,100

Name of Local Government Body Date of Action on application IDate of Statement of Obsolescence

City of Adrian

PART 4: CLERK CERTIFICATION
The undersigned clerk certifies that, to the best of his/her knowledge, no information contained herein or in the aUachments hereto is false in any way.
Further, the undersigned is aware that if any information provided is untrue, the exemption provided by PA 146 of 2000 may be in jeopardy.

Name of Clerk Clerk Signature Date

Pat Baker

Clerk's Mailing Address City State IZIP Code

135 E. Maumee St. Adrian MI 49221
Telephone Numbar IFax Number IEmail Address
(517) 264-4866 (517) 265-8698 pbaker@ci.adrian.mi.us

Mail completed application and attachments to: State Tax Commission
Michigan Department of Treasury
P.O. Box 30471
Lansing, Michigan 48909-7971

For guaranteed receipt by the State Tax Commission, it is recommended that applications and attachments are sent by certified mail.



CITY OF ADRIAN, MICHIGAN
PUBLIC ACT 146OF 2000

OBSOLETEPROPERTYREHABILIT AnON ACT

Nameof Applicant: Al & Phyllis Wilkerson, 125 E. MaumeeSt. Date: September14, 2010

Points Points
Available AWaTded

ExteriorTreatmentsarcConsistentwith the Secretaryof Interior Yes 30 30
Standardsfor Historic Building Restoration No 0

PrivateDollars Being Invested(hardcostsonly) $10,000- $50,000 10
$50,001-$100,000 20

PurchasePrice: $210,000 $100,00I - $250,000 30
RehabilitationCost: $[04,36[ $251,000- $500,000 40 40$500,001- $999,999 50

Total PrivateInvestment:$314,361 $1 million - $2,500,000 75
$2,500,00I - $4,999,999 100

$5million + 150
NumberafCodeEnforcementCategoriesBeing Resolved 1-2 10

(i.e. electrica1. HV AC. handieappedaccessibility. struelur"L fire code) 3-4 20 20
5·6 30

Propertyis locatedwithin a National or Local Historic District Yes 10 10No 0
Numberof Pennanent,Full-Time EquivalentJobsCreated: 1-5 20

(two permanelltpart-time equivalellt jobsrepresentsoneFTE) 6-10 35
11-25 50 5026-50 75

51-100 [ [0
100+ ISO

Numberof loft apartmentunits: 1-5 20
6·[0 40 20
II+ 60

Numberof owneroccupiedunits and/orindividually occupied 1-3 50
condominiumunits: 4-7 70 0

8+ 90
RehabilitationProjectResultsin Blueprint RecommendedUse Yes 75 75(seeattachedsheetfor approveduses) No 0

RehabilitationProjectIncludes5% of total privaterehabilitation Yes 25 25work investmentin public infrastructure No 0
PrivateDollars Bcing Investedin Relationto the Existing Property 50% 10

Valueas Determinedby the StateEqualizedValue (SEV) 75% 20
(i.e. $50,000privateinvestmentin a structurewith a $25,000SEV 100% 30

equatesa 100%improvementon the true cashvalueof the property) I 25°;j, 40 70
Investment:$314,361 150'Yo 50
2010SEV: $65,100 175% 60

200%+ 70
Total Points 340

Awarded

Total Points ExemptionCertificate
(Abatement)in Years

100- 150 4
151 - 175 5
176- 225 6
226- 275 7
276- 325 8
326 - 375 9
376 - 425 10
426 - 475 It

476- 500plus 12



LENAWEE COUNTY EQUALIZATION DEPARTMENT
Martin D. Marshal!, Director

Courthouse,301 North Main Street
Adrian, Michigan 49221

(517) 264-4522

AssessorAffidavit of Functional Obsolescence

Functionally ObsoleteStatus
for Brownfield RedevelopmentFinancing Act
property pursuant to Public Act 381 of 1996.

SubjectProperty:
Property Numbers:
Property Description:

125E Maumee St Adrian Michigan
XAO-l 00-0164-00
E 10 FT OF S 93 FT OF W 30 FT & E 5 FT OF S 119FT OF
W 20 FT & E 5.25 FT OF S 145 FT OF W 15 FT LOT 31
ORIGINAL PLAT CITY OF ADRIAN.

SubjectpropertyXAO-I 00-0164-00is a two story masonry(brick) building with retail on the
main floor andresidentialapartmentson the secondfloor. Thepropertyconsistsof aparcel
2,358squarefeet anda two story masonrybuilding with a basement.Thebuilding foot print
occupies1,763squarefeetof theparcel.

TheBrownfield RedevelopmentFinancingAct, MCl 125.2652(2)(q),providesthat
"FunctionallyObsoletemeansthat thepropertyis unableto be usedto adequatelyperformthe
function for which it wasintendeddueto a substantiallossin valueresultingfrom factorssuch
asovercapacity,changesin technology,deficienciesor superadequaciesin design,or other
similar factorsthat affect thepropertyitselfor theproperty'srelationshipwith othersurrounding
property."

Examplesof functionalobsolescenceofferedby theMichiganStateTax Commissioninclude:

I) A floor plan which is inappropriatefor thehighestandbestuseof theproperty.
2) A heatingsystemwhich is inadequatefor thehighestandbestuseof theproperty.
3) Excessivelyhigh or low ceilingsfor thehighestandbestuseof theproperty.
4) Partitionwalls which restrictthe highestandbestuseof theproperty.
5) Mechanicalsystemswhich areinadequatefor thehighestandbestuseof the

property.

Thesubjectpropertysuffersfrom severalformsof functionalobsolescence.

I) The layoutof thebuilding, the floor plan, is obsoleteby cunentretail andresidential
designstandards.Theaccessto the residentialrentalsis by nanowstairsandthe
building doesnot havean elevator.

2) Thesubjectpropertysuffersfrom outdatedandinadequateplumbing,mechanicaland
electricalservices.



3) While thebasementis superiorto manybasementsin the downtownareait is shallow
by currentstandardsis accessedby a narrowstairwell thatmakesusefor storage
difficult.

4) Thepropertyhasamezzaninelevel previouslyusedasanoffice with a ceiling height
of lessthan7 feet.

Basedon the listedcharacteristicsit is my opinionthat the subject property suffersfrom
functionalobsolescenceandmeetsthe FunctionallyObsoletedefinition of the Brownfield
RedevelopmentAct.

Martin D. Marshall,CMAE 4
Director,LenaweeCountyEqualization



roup, rLC

January5,2010

Chris Atkin
CommunityDevelopmentDirector
135E. MaumeeStreet
Adrian, Michigan 49221

RE: PropertyFunctionalObsolescenceAssessment
125 EastMaumeeStreet Adrian, Michigan 49221

This report is an assessmentof the "Hoefler Building" locatedat 125 E. MaumeeStreetin Adrian,
Michigan to determineif this building meetsthe definition of functionally obsolete.

Under MeL 125.2652(p)"functionally obsolete"meansthat the property is unable to be
usedto adequatelyperform the function for which it was intendeddue to a substantialloss
in valueresultingfrom factorssuchas overcapacity,changesin technology,deficienciesor
superadequaciesin design, or other similar factors that affect the property itself or the
property'srelationshipwith surroundingproperty.

A formal investigationof the building was completedon December29l
\ 2009. Observationsare

listed in the following report.

PropertyDescription;

Address 125E. MaumeeStreet.

RecordedDescription E 10 Ff OF S 93 FT OF W 30 FT & E 5 FT OF S ] ]9 FT OF
W 20 Ff & E 5.25 Ff OF S 145 FT OFW 15 FT LOT 31
ORIGINAL PLAT

126 L ChurchSt. Adrian, M149221 - ph () 17) 265-2700

PhysicalDescription Built in 1910,this masonryandwoodframedtwo story building
hassolid load bearingmasonrywalls alongthe eastandwest82' sides. The 20' wide
of thebuilding is a historically significantexampleof BeauxArts ornate
glazedterracottaextendsthefull heightof the front of this building. Waterda . as
affectedthe top eastsideof the parapetandthe terra-cottamasonryhasbegunto? riora.te.
Immediateattentionmustbegiven to this areaof the to avoid the risk of losm this
portion of thebuilding. j \,

/' \

.'

Adrian DesignGroup FLC

adriandesigngroup.com



rian Design

The building hasa total areaof approximately3,500gsf. The secondlevel hastwo residential
apartmentunits, which arecurrentlyoccupied. The main level is vacantandhasbeen
previouslyoccupiedby a retail storeowner. A mezzaninelevel of approximately500 sf. is
locatedat the north sideof the main level. This level hasa small toilet room andmechanical
ventilationsystem. Thefloor to ceiling heightat the mezzaninelevel is 6'-0". This is a non
occupiablespacebasedon currentbuilding codestandards.The areabelow the mezzanine
hasa floor to ceiling heightof 7'-0" Thebasementis below gradeandhousesa boiler usedfor
building radiantheating.

PhysicalLocation This property is zoned B-3 located in the central business
district. The building sharesa party wall on the east with the Historic Croswell Opera
House.

EconomicFactors;

FunctionalAbility The new ownersof this building intendto successfullycreate
andoperatea small TeaRoom/ Restaurant.This building hasseveralshortcomingsthat
causeit to be obsoletein its presentcondition.

• Doorsandwindowsarenot energyefficient andcreateproblemswith heatlossandair
infiltration.

• Repairto the exteriorterra-cotta androof will needto becompletedbefore
furtherdilapidationoccurs.

• The interior lacksan adequatekitchento function for the proposeduse;extensive
renovationwill be requiredto confonnto currentcodestandardsandcurrentkitchen
equipmentstandards.

• BarrierFreeRestroomfacilities andaccessroutesdo not exist within the building,
extensiverenovationwill be requiredto confonnto the currentbuilding codes.

Summary

It is my professionalopinion that this building be declaredfunctionally obsoletebecauseit cannot be
usedto adequatelyperformthe function for which it was intendeddueto a substantialloss in value
resultingfrom factorsstatedabove.

Mike Nicklowitz, AlA, LEED APFrom;

Adrian DesignGroup FLC

adriandesigngroup.com

126 t .. ChurchSt. - Adri<lll. MI-+9 221 - ph (517) 265-2700



Storefront entry is not insulated

Adrian Design Group FLC

adriandesigngroup.com

126 E· Church St. - Adrian, M149221 - ph. (511) 265-2100



Non-working kitchen - Obsolete

Adrian DesignGroup FLC

adriandesigngroup.com

126 LChurchSt.- Adriiiri,MI49221 - ph.(517)265-2700



Rl0-124 October 18, 2010

RE: APPROVAL OF AN OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION ACT
EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE FOR AL AND PHYLIS WILKERSON, OWNERS
OF 125 EAST MAUMEE STREET, CITY OF ADRIAN, LENAWEE COUNTY,
MICHIGAN, PURSUANT TO AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
PROVISIONS OF THE OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION ACT, PA
146OF 2000

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, AI and Phyllis Wilkerson, owners of real property at 125 East
Maumee Street, Adrian, Michigan, have submitted an application for an Obsolete
Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for the rehabilitation consisting of
renovations and modifications to the bUilding located in downtown Adrian, including,
fa<;ade improvements, upgrades to the mechanical and electrical services, improved
interior appearance of the bUilding and other physical changes required to restore
the obsolete property to an economically efficient condition, under State of Michigan
Act 146, Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act of 2000; and

WHEREAS, the City of Adrian is a Qualified Local Governmental Unit; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to P.A. 146 of 2000, after a duly noticed public hearing
held on the 16th day of October 2006, the Adrian City Commission, by resolution,
established the City of Adrian Downtown Development District as an Obsolete
Property Rehabilitation District; and

WHEREAS, before acting upon said application, the Adrian City Commission
held a public hearing October 18, 2010 at the City Commission Chambers bUilding,
159 East Maumee Street, Adrian, Michigan at 7:00pm, at which hearing, the
applicant, the Assessor and a representative of the affective taxing units, having
been given written notice, were afforded the opportunity to be heard on said
application; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and determines that the granting of this
Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate, considered together with the
aggregate amount of Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificates previously granted
and currently in force, exceeds 5% of the total taxable value of the City;
nevertheless, it is herewith determined that it shall not have the effect of
substantially impending the operation of or impair the financial soundness of the
local government or an affected taxing unit; and

WHEREAS, the applicant is not delinquent on any taxes related to the facility;
and

WHEREAS, the subject property is determined to be an obsolete property
(functionally obsolete) as defined by Section 2(h) of Public Act 146 of 2000 and upon
completion of the rehabilitation, activities will constitute a rehabilitated facility with
the on the meaning of P.A. 146 of 2000; and

WHEREAS, the applicant has supplied to the City of Adrian all of the items
described on line 9 of the Application for Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption



Certificate, including the following: (a) general description of the obsolete facility;
(b) genera I descri ption of the proposed use of the rehabilitated facility; (c)
description of the general nature and extent of the rehabilitation to be undertaken;
(d) a description list of the fixed bUilding equipment that will be a part of the
rehabilitated facility; (e) a time schedule for undertaking and completing the
rehabilitation of the facility; (f) a statement of the economic advantages expected
from the exemption; and

WHEREAS, commencement of the rehabilitation activities of the facility did
not occur prior to the establishment of the Obsolete Property and Rehabilitation
District; and

WHEREAS, the completion of the rehabilitated facility is calculated to, and will
at the time of issuance of the certificate, have the reasonable likelihood to increase
commercial activity, retain/create employment and assist the City with their short
and long term revitalization goals.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT BE RESOLVED, that the application from AI and Phyllis
Wilkerson for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate with regard
to the rehabilitation of real property with Tax ID #XAO-100-0164-00, 125 East
Maumee Street, City of Adrian, Lenawee County, Michigan, within the previously
established OPRA district is hereby approved for a period not to exceed nine (9)
years per the City of Adrian OPRA Policy.

The City of Adrian Commission will require that AI and Phyllis Wilkerson
complete the rehabilitation in its entirety.

On motion by Commissioner , seconded by

Commissioner , this resolution was by a

______ vote.



October 18, 2010

SPECIAL ORDER

The Mayor called for the hearing and consideration of comments to approval
of an application for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for
property located at 149 N. Main owned by David & Kim Horstman.

Discussion

When the Mayor called for final objections _

and he declared the hearing closed.



MEMO 135 E. Maumee St. Adrian, Michigan 49221-2773

DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

September 30, 2010

Hon. Gary McDowell, Mayor
City Commission
Dane Nelson, City Administrator

Chris Atkin
Director of Community Development

149 North Main Street OPRA Exemption Certificate Recommendation

Attached you will find an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) Exemption Certificate application
from David and Kim Horstman, owner's of 149 North Main Street in downtown Adrian. The proposed
rehabilitation project will result in the conversion of the "functionally obsolete" structure to a fully
functional, code compliant commercial structure. The estimated personal investment rehabilitation cost
is $151,500.00, not including the purchase price of the building.

Mr. & Mrs. Horstman are petitioning the City of Adrian for an OPRA tax freeze per the city's OPRA policies
and procedures. It is the recommendation ofthe city's Community Development Department for the City
Commission to approve the attached resolution granting a nine (9) year OPRA Exemption Certificate for
149 North Main Street rehabilitation project. The nine year period is consistent with the City of Adrian
OPRA Application Process and Review Criteria as approved by the Adrian City Commission in the fall of
2006.

Property Eligibility

Functionally Obsolete
The property at 149 North Main Street is "functionally obsolete" by definition per Section 2(h) of Public
Act 146 of 2000. Such is reflected in the attached independent finding by local architect, Mr. Michael
Nicklowitz, and supported by an Assessor's Affidavit of Functional Obsolescence as obtained from Mr.
Martin Marshall, Director of the Lenawee County Equalization Department.

Commercial Property
The first floor will function as "Sauce, Italian Grill & Pub" and the second floor will be rehabilitated to a
two bedroom apartment.

Property Ownership
The subject property is currently owned by Mr. & Mrs. Horstman.

'"respect/orthe individual voice. serVice/orthe commongood'"



ApplicantAssurancethat the Project wouldnothavebeencompletedwithoutexemptioncertificate.
The applicant has provided a statement to the Community Development Department indicating that the
OPRA exemption certificate represents a necessary incentive to make this rehabilitation project feasible

and that the project would not have been considered without.

RehabilitationProject wasnotstartedprior to establishmentofOPRADistrict.
No rehabilitation work on the project commenced prior to the Adrian City Commission establishing the
City's Downtown Development District as an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District per Public Act 146
of 2000. This occurred after a duly noticed public hearing on October 16, 2003.

No delinquenttaxeson thefacility or structurebeingrenovated.
A review ofthe city's tax record reveals that there are no outstanding or delinquent tax obligations at this
time.

Projecthasa reasonablelikelihoodofincreasingcommercialactivity, create/retainemployment,preventa
lossofemploymentandrevitalizeurbanareas.
The 2003 Blueprint for Downtown Adrian is explicit in its suggestion for economic growth and vibrancy,
the proposed rehabilitation is consistent with the suggestion. This rehabilitation project will result in the
creation of 30 jobs, including expected construction employment, and the nature of the business ensures
that commercial activity will increase hence promoting the revitalization of the downtown area.

Applicantmustprovidea statementofdeterminedeconomicimpact.
Since as early as 1940, the building has been operated as a local tavern and eating establishment. The
applicants are making a significant financial and personal investment into the downtown community and
the City of Adrian with the anticipation that this project will spur future economic development interest in
the downtown. The applicant estimates the rehabilitation project will result in the creation of 30 jobs,
including expected construction employment. This project is consistent with the recommendation of the
economic vitality of the City's Blueprint for downtown Adrian revitalization.

Theapplicantwill indicatethe periodoftime in which therehabilitation projectwill becompleted.
The applicant has indicated that they expect to commence rehabilitation work in October 2010 and
complete the project by February 2011.

The applicantmayrequestan exemptionfor up to twelve(12) yearsandmustexplain why the abatement
is requiredfor thenumberofyearsrequested.
The applicants request that the City of Adrian approve the exemption certificate for nine (9) years for the
subject property. The applicants have state they have and will be devoting a significant amount personal
time and investment into the downtown district.

The City of Adrian Commission, per the recommendation of the Downtown Development Authority Board
of Directors and city staff has approved policies relative to the use of the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation
Act. The policy includes a score sheet by which projects are judged. The proposed project at 149 North
Main Street has scored 335points on the score sheet. Per the city's policy, this score makes the project
eligible for a nine (9) year Exemption Certificate.

All applicants mustbe in compliancewith the City of Adrian zoning ordinanceand the City of Adrian
MasterLandUse Plan.

""espi'ctjar the individual voici'. service.f(!rthe commongood"



The proposed project is located within the Central Business District and is consistent with the use
requirements. The proposed project is also consistent with the city's Comprehensive Plan.

The applicant will also include a history of the property use and any environmentalconcerns and
proceduresto abateanyhazardousconditions.
There are no identifiable or known environmental concerns that would prohibit this type of rehabilitation.

RehabilitationProjectmustresult in a true cashvalueaggregation10% or moreof the true cashvalueat
commencementofthe rehabilitationproject.
True cash value ofthe property will increase upon project completion.

Conclusions and Findings

It is the opinion of Community Development Department staff that this project will provide continued
momentum and influence to downtown Adrian that will be represented through personal investment and
rehabilitation/reuse of a "functionally obsolete" building. As a result, the City's Community Development
Department respectfully requests that the City of Adrian Commission approve the attached resolution
granting a nine (9) year OPRA Exemption Certificate for 149 North Main Street.

Respectfully submitted,

Chris Atkin
Community Development Director

"respect/i)J'lheindividual voice. service/orthe commongood"



149 N. Main St.
Adrian, M/49221

586.909.6385

September 16, 2010

Mrs. Pat Baker, Clerk
City of Adrian
135 E. Maumee St.
Adrian, MI 49221

RE: OPRA EXEMPTION APPLICATION -149 North Main St

Dear Mrs. Baker,

Please accept this letter, the attached application, and required submittals as our, David and Kim
Horstman's, application to the City of Adrian for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Certificate
pursuant to the provisions of Public Act 146 of 2000.

We are currently working with local Architect Mike Nicklowitz of Adrian Design Group (ADG) and expect
to invest approximately $151,500 in combined rehabilitation expenses into the building not including
the September 2010 purchase price. It is our intention to rehabilitate a vacant landmark restaurant
building in downtown Adrian to a functional use that will service the public with high standards of
quality and family atmosphere.

We, David and Kim Horstman, respectfully request that the Adrian City Commission grant an Obsolete
Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate pursuant to the City of Adrian's OPRA guidelines. We are
requesting and exemption of nine (9) years for the property located at 149 North Main Street as
permitted by statute.

The following represents responses to the required submittals per PA 146 of 2000.

1. General description of the obsolete facility (year built, original use. most recent use.
number of stories. square footage).

Our intention is to rehabilitate the property located at 149 North Main back into a full
service eating establishment. The bUilding was constructed in the mid 1900's and the
earliest recorded material located is from a 1940 City of Adrian Polk Directory and it
indicates the structure to be the North End Tavern. Sometime around 1964 or 1965 the
property changed ownership and it was then known as Mr. Ed's, a family restaurant, until it
closed in 2007.
The building has a total ground floor area of approximately 3,500 gross square feet and the
second level, a residential apartment unit, is approximately 1,300 gross square feet.



2. General description of the proposed use of the rehabilitated facility.

The subject property will be returned to operation as an Italian family restaurant for the
general public on the first floor and single apartment will be rehabilitated on the second
floor.

3. Description of the general nature and extent of the rehabilitation to be undertaken.

The project will include renovations; roof repair to prevent further interior damage;
new energy efficient doors and windows; extensive renovations to the kitchen to create
adequate space and meet current code and equipment standards; barrier free restrooms
will be brought to code as well. The second floor apartment will see extensive rehabilitation
as well including meeting current code standards too; this has been a nonfunctional
residence for an unknown amount of time

4. A descriptive list of the fixed building equipment that will be a part of the rehabilitated
facility.

No information is available at this time.

5. A time schedule for undertaking and completing the rehabilitation of the facility.

We expect to commence rehabilitation during the month of October 2010 with an
anticipated/expected completion in February 2011.

6. A statement of the economic advantages expected from the exemption.

This project represents the renovation and reuse of an obsolete property located in
downtown Adrian. We will be making a significant financial and personal investment to the
downtown community and expect our investment to spur future economic development
interest into the heart of the city. We estimate that this project will create 18-22 new
employment opportunities and provide work to qualified local contractors during the
renovation/rehabilitation process. This project is consistent with the recommendation set
forth in the City's Blueprint study to encourage economic vitality into downtown Adrian.

7. A statement from the assessor describing the building's obsolescence.

The assessor's affidavit of functional obsolescence for the structure is attached.

Thank you for taking the time to review our application. If you have any questions or require additional
information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Respectfu Ily,

Kim M. Horstman
Owner



Michigan Department of Treasury
3674 (Rev. 10-06)

Application for Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate
This form is Issued as provided by PA 146 of 2000, as amended. This application should be filed after the district is established. This project will not
receive tax benefits until approved by the State Tax Commission. Applications received after October 31 may not be acted upon in the current year.
This application is subject to audit by the State Tax Commission.

INSTRUCTIONS: File the original and two copies of this form and the required attachments with the clerk of the local government unit.
(The State Tax Commission requires two copies of the Application and attachments. The original is retained by the clerk.) Please see
State Tax Commission Bulletin 9 of 2000 for more information about the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption. The following
must be provided to the local government unit as attachments to this application: (a) General description of the obsolete facility (year
built, original use, most recent use, number of stories, square footage); (b)General description of the proposed use of the rehabilitated
facility, (c) Description of the general nature and extent of the rehabilitation to be undertaken, (d) A descriptive list of the fixed building
equipment that will be a part of the rehabilitated facility, (e) A time schedule for undertaking and completing the rehabilitation of the
facility, (f) A statement of the economic advantages expected from the exemption. Rehabilitation may commence after establishment
of district
Applicant (Company) Name (applicant must be the OWNER of the facility)
David and Kim Horstman

Company Mailing address (No. and street, P.O. Box, City, State, ZIP code)
3139 Birch Run Adrian, M149221

Location of obsolete facility (No. and street, City, State, ZIP Code)

149 North Main Street Adrian, MI 49221
City, Township, Village (indicate which) Icounty
City of Adrian Lenawee

Oate of Commencement of Rehabilitation (mm/dd/yyyy) Plan ned date of Completion of Rehabil itation School District where facility is located (include school code)

09/31/2010 (mmidd/yyyy) 02/31/2011 Adrian 46010
Estimated Cost of Rehabilitation Number of years exemption requested Attach Legal description of Obsolete Property on separate

$151,500.00 9
sheet

Expected projecllil<elihood (checl< all that apply):

Increase Commercial activity o Retain employment o Revitalize urban areas

o Create employment D Prevent a loss of employment Increase number of residents in the
community in which the facility is situated

Indicate the number of jobs to be retained or created as a result of rehabilitating the facility, including expected construction employment

Each year, the State Treasurer may approve 25 additional reductions of half the school operating and state education taxes for a period no! to exceed six years. Check the
following box if you wish to be considered for this exclusion.

APPLICANT'S CERTIFICATION
The undersigned, authorized officer of the company making this application certifies that, to the best of his/her knowledge, no information contained
herein or in the attachments hereto is false in any way and that all of the information is truly descriptive of the property for which this application is being
submitted. Further, the undersigned is aware that, if any statement or information provided is untrue, the exemption provided by PA 146 of 2000 may
be in jeopardy.
The applicant certifies that this application relates to a rehabilitation program that, when completed, constitutes a rehabilitated facility, as
defined by P.A. 146 of 2000, as amended, and that the rehabilitation of the facility would not be undertaken without the applicant's receipt of
the exemption certificate.
II is further certified that the undersigned is familiar with the provisions of P.A. 146 of 2000, as amended, of the Michigan Compiled Laws; and to the
best of his/her knowledge and belief, (s)he has complied or will be able to comply with all of the requirements thereof which are prerequisite to the
approval of the application by the local unit of government and the issuance of an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate by the State
Tax Commission.

Name of Company Officer (no authorized agents) rel81hone Number Fax Number
Kim Horstman (5 6) 909-6385

Mailin3Address Email Address
31 9 Birch Run Adrian, MI 49221 dhorstman@pga.com

Signature of Company Officer (no authorized agents) Title

Owner

LOCAL GOVERNMENT UNIT CLERK CERTIFICATION
Clerk must also complete Parts 1, 2 and 4 on Page 2. Part 3 to be completed by the assessor.

I_S_ig_na_t_ur_e I_D_at_e_,,_P_PI_ic_at_io_n_re_c_e_iv_e_d _



Form 3674, Page 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACTION
This section is to be completed by the clerk of the local governing unit before submitting the application to the State Tax Commission. Include a copy of
the resolution which approves the application and a separate statement of obsolescence from the assessor of record with the State Assessor's Board.
All sections must be completed in order to process.

PART 1: ACTION TAKEN

Action Date: _

D Exemption Approved for Years, ending December 30, (not to exceed 12 years)

D Denied

Date District Established !LUCI Code [SChOOl Code

10/16/2006 46201 46010

PART 2: RESOLUTIONS (the following statements must be included in resolutions approving)

A statement that the local unit is a Qualified Local Governmental Unit.

A statement that the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District was legally
established including the date established and the date of hearing as
provided by section 3 of P.A. 146 of 2000.

A statement indicating whether the taxable value of the property proposed
to be exempt plus the aggregate taxable value of property already exempt
under P.A. 146 of 2000 and under P.A. 198 of 1974 (1FT's) exceeds 5% of
the total taxable value of the unit.

A statement of the factors, criteria and objectives, if any, necessary for
extending the exemption, when the certificate is for less than 12 years.

A statement that the application was approved at a public hearing as
provided by section 4(2) of PA 146 of 2000 including the date ofthe
hearing.

A statement that the applicant is not delinquent in any taxes related to the
facility.

If it exceeds 5% (see above), a statement that exceeding 5% will not have
the effect of substantially impeding the operation of the Qualified Local
Governmental Unit or of impairing the financial soundness of an affected
taxing unit.

A statement that all of the items described under "Instructions" (a)
th rough (f) of the Application for Obsolete Property Rehabilitation
Exemption Certificate have been provided to the Qualified Local
Governmental Unit by the applicant.

A statement that the application is for obsolete property as defined in
section 2(h) of Public Act 146 of 2000.
A statement that the commencement of the rehabilitation of the facility
did not occur before the establishment of the Obsolete Property
Rehabilitation District.

A statement that the application relates to a rehabilitation program that
when completed constitutes a rehabilitated facility within the meaning of
P.A. 146 of 2000 and that is situated within an Obsolete Property
Rehabilitation District established in a Qualified Local Governmental Unit
eligible under P.A. 146 of 2000 to establish such a district.

A statement that completion of the rehabilitated facility is calculated to,
and will at the time of issuance of the certificate, have the reasonable
likelihood tD, increase commercial activity, create employment, retain
employment, prevent a loss of employment, revitalize urban areas, or
increase the number of residents in the community in which the facility is
situated. The statement should indicate which of these the rehabilitation
is likely to result in.

A statement that the rehabilitatiDn includes improvements aggregating
10% or more of the true cash value of the property at commencement of
the rehabilitation as provided by section 2(I) of P.A. 146 of 2000.

A statement of the period of time authorized by the Qualified Local
Governmental Unit for completion of the rehabilitation.

PART 3: ASSESSOR RECOMMENDATIONS
Taxable Value and State Equalized Value of Obsolete Property, as provided in PA 146 of 2000, as amended, Section 6(2)c...taxable value of the
obsolete property, separately stated for real and perSDnal property, for the tax year immediately preceding the effective date of the certificate
(December 31st of the year approved by the STC)...

Taxable Value State Equalized Value (SEV)

If YDU have any questions, call (517) 373-3272.

Land

Building(s) $84,100 $84,100
Name of Local Government Body Date of Action on application IDate of Statement of Obsolescence

City of Adrian

PART 4: CLERK CERTIFICATION
The undersigned clerk certifies that, ID the best of his/her knowledge, no informatiDn cDntained herein or in the attachments hereto is false in any way.
Further, the undersigned is aware that if any information provided is untrue, the exemption provided by P.A. 146 of 2000 may be in jeopardy.

Name of Clerk Clerk Signatu re Date

Pat Baker

Clerk's Mailing Address City State IZIP Code

135 E. Maumee St. Adrian MI 49221
Telephone Number IFax Number IEmail Address
(517) 264-4866 (517) 265-8698 pbaker@ci.adrian.mi.us

Mail completed application and attachments to: State Tax Commission
Michigan Department of Treasury
P.O. Box 30471
Lansing, Michigan 48909-7971

For guaranteed receipt by the State Tax Commission, it is recommended that applications and attachments are sent by certified mail.



CITY OF ADRIAN, MICHIGAN
PUBLIC ACT 146OF 2000

OBSOLETEPROPERTYREHABILITATION ACT

Nameof Applicant: David andKim Horstman 149 N. Main Street Date: September16, 2010

Points Points
Available Awarded

ExteriorTreatmentsarc Consistentwith theSecretaryof Interior Yes 30 30Standardsfor Historic Building Restoration No 0
PrivateDollars Being Invested(hardcostsonly) $10,000- $50,000 10

$50,00I - $100,000 20
PurchasePrice: $75,000 $ I00,001 - $250,000 30

RehabilitationCost $151,500 $251,000- $500,000 40 30$500,00I - $999,999 50
Total PrivateInvestment:$226,500 $1million - $2,500,000 75

$2,500,001- $4,999,999 100
$5million + 150

Numberof CodeEnforcement CategoriesBeing Resolved 1-2 10
(i.e. plumbinj!. electrical.HVAC handicappedaecc,sibility.muctu,"L tire codef 3-4 20 30

5-6 30
Propertyis locatedwithin a National or Local Historic District Yes 10 0No 0

Numberof Permanent,Full-Time EquivalentJobsCreated: 1-5 20
(two pennanentpart-timecquivalentjobsrepresentsoneFTE) 6-10 35

11-25 50
7526·50 75

51-100 110
100 + 150

Numberof loft apartmentunits: 1-5 20
6-10 40 20
11+ 60

Numberof owneroccupiedunits and/orindividually occupied 1-3 50
condominiumunits: 4-7 70 0

8+ 90
RehabilitationProjectResultsin Blueprint RecommendedUsc Yes 75

75(seeattachedsheetfor approveduses) No 0
RehabilitationProjectIncludes5% of total privaterehabilitation Yes 25 25work investmentin public infrastructure No a

PrivateDollars Being Investedin Relationto the Existing Property 50% 10
Value asDetertninedby the StateEqualizedValue(SEV) 75% 20

(i.e. $50,000privateinvestmentin a structurewith a $25,000SEV 100°;:, 30
equatesa 100%improvementon the true cashvalueof theproperty) 125% 40 50

Investment$226,500 150'Yo 50
2010SEV: $84,100 175% 60

200%+ 70
Total Points 335Awarded

Total Points ExemptionCertificate
(Abatement)in Years

100- ISO 4
151 - 175 5
176 - 225 6
226- 275 7
276 - 325 8
326 - 375 9
376 - 425 10
426 - 475 II

476- 500plus 12



LENAWEECOUNTY EQUALIZATION DEPARTMENT
Martin D. Marshall, Director

Courthouse,301 North Main Street
Adrian, Michigan 49221

(517) 264-4522

AssessorAffidavit of Functional Obsolescence

Functionally ObsoleteStatus
for Brownfield RedevelopmentFinancing Act
property pursuant to Public Act 381 of 1996.

Subject Property:
Property Numbers:
Property Description:

149N Main St Adrian Michigan
XAO-l 00-0191-00
BEG 50.66FT S FR SW COR WASHBURN & MAIN STSTH
S 19 FT TH W 92 FT TH N 69.66FT TH E 21 FT TH S35 FT
TH E 23.6FT TH S 15.66FT TH E 47.4FT TO POB,
ORIGINAL PLAT, CITY OF ADRIAN.

SubjectpropertyXAO-l 00-0191-00is a two storymasonry(brick) building with restauranton
themain floor anda residentialapartmenton the secondfloor. A portionof thebuilding is
singlestorymasonryconstruction.Thepropertyconsistsof aparcelapproximately3,I00 square
feet andthe abovedescribedbuilding with a partialbasement.Thebuilding foot print occupies
100%of theparcel.

TheBrownfield RedevelopmentFinancingAct, MCL 125.2652(2)(q),providesthat
"FunctionallyObsoletemeansthat thepropertyis unableto beusedto adequatelyperfonnthe
function for which it wasintendeddueto a substantiallossin valueresultingfrom factorssuch
asovercapacity,changesin technology,deficienciesor superadequaciesin design,or other
similar factorsthatatfectthepropertyitselfor theproperty'srelationshipwith othersurrounding
property."

Examplesof functionalobsolescenceofferedby the MichiganStateTax Commissioninclude:

1) A floor plan which is inappropriatefor thehighestandbestuseof theproperty.
2) A heatingsystemwhich is inadequatefor thehighestandbestuseof theproperty.
3) Excessivelyhigh or low ceilingsfor thehighestandbestuseof theproperty.
4) Partitionwalls which restrictthe highestandbestuseof theproperty.
5) Mechanicalsystemswhich areinadequatefor thehighestandbestuseof the

property.

The subjectpropertysuffersfrom severalfonnsof functionalobsolescence.

1) The layoutof thebuilding, the floor plan, is obsoleteby currentrestaurantand
residentialdesignstandards.Theaccessto theresidentialrental is by narrowstairs
exiting onto the public sidewalkandthebuilding doesnot haveanelevator.



2) Therestaurantareaof the subjectpropertysuffersfrom outdatedandinadequate
kitchenfacilities andbarareaandthe restroomsarenot ADA compliant.

3) Thebedroomareasof the residentialunit do not meetcurrentegressstandards.

Basedon the listed characteristicsit is my opinion that the subjectpropertysuffersfrom
functionalobsolescenceandmeetsthe FunctionallyObsoletedefinition of the Brownfield
RedevelopmentAct.

Martin D. Marshall,CMAE 4
Director, LenaweeCountyEqualization



P\ rian Design

September28, 2010

Chris Atkin
CommunityDevelopmentDirector
135 E. MaumeeStreet
Adrian, Michigan 49221

RE: PropertyFunctionalObsolescenceAssessment
149 North Main Street Adrian, Michigan 49221

This report is an assessmentof 149 North Main Street in Adrian, Michigan to determineif this
building meetsthe definition of functionally obsolete.

Under MeL 125.2652(p)"functionally obsolete"meansthat the property is unable to be
usedto adequatelyperform the function for which it was intendeddue to a substantialloss
in valueresultingfrom factorssuchasovercapacity,changesin technology,deficienciesor
superadequaciesin design, or other similar factors that affect the property itself or the
property'srelationshipwith surroundingproperty.

A formal investigationof the building was completedon February26th
, 2009. Observationsare

listed in thefollowing report.

PropertyDescription;

Address 149 North Main Street.

RecordedDescription XAO-100-0191-00
BEG 50.66FT S FR SW CORWASHBURN & MAIN STSTH S 19 FT TH W 92 FT TH N
69.66FT TH E 21 FT TH S 35 FT TH E 23.6FT TH S 15.66FT TH E 47.4FT TO POB

PhysicalDescription Built in the mid 1900's, this masonryandwood framedtwo
storybuilding hassolid load bearingmasonrywalls alongthe north andsouthsidesfronting
main street. The westerlypartof thebuilding is a singlestory wood framedandbrick veneer
building with framing spanningeastto west. This portion of the building fronts on Toledo
Streetto thenorth. The previousrestaurant,Mr. Ed'shadclosedseveralyearsago andthis
building hasbeenvacantsince.

Adrian DesignGroup FLC

adriandesigngroup.com



Thebuilding hasa total groundfloor areaof approximately3,500gsf. The secondlevel hasa
residentialapartmentunit of approximately1,300gsf.

Physical Location This property is zoned B-3 located in the central business
district. The building sharesa party wall on the north The Tailor Shop,and on the south
with Phillip A. SchaedlerAttorney at Law.

EconomicFactors;

Functional Ability The new ownersof this building intendto successfullycreate
andoperatea Bar I Restaurant.This building hasseveralshortcomingsthat causeit to be
obsoletein its presentcondition.

• Doorsandwindows arenot energyefficient andcreateproblemswith heatlossandair
infiltration.

• Repairto the exterior far;adeandroof will needto becompletedbeforefurther
dilapidationoccurs.

• The interior lacksan adequatekitchen to function for theproposeduse;extensive
renovationwill be requiredto conformto currentcodestandardsandcurrentkitchen
equipmentstandards.

• BarrierFreeRestroomfacilities andaccessroutesdo not conformto the current
building codesstandards.

• Interior finishesaredamagedandwill needto bereplaced.
• Interior lighting is inadequate.
• Kitchen ventilationandmake-upair arenonfunctional.

Summary

It is my professionalopinionthat this building be declaredfunctionally obsoletebecauseit cannot be
usedin it's presentstateto adequatelyperform the function for which it wasintended.

From; Mike Nicklowitz. AlA, LEEO AP

Adrian DesignGroup FLC

adriandesigngroup.com

.. _._-_.__ ._--_._--_.__
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R10-125 October 18, 2010

RE: APPROVAL OF AN OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION ACT
EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE FOR DAVID AND KIM HORSTMAN, OWNERS
OF 149 NORTH MAIN STREET, CITY OF ADRIAN, LENAWEE COUNTY,
MICHIGAN, PURSUANT TO AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
PROVISIONS OF THE OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION ACT, PA
146 OF 2000

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, David and Kim Horstman, owners of real property at 149 North
Main Street, Adrian, Michigan, have submitted an application for an Obsolete
Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for the rehabilitation consisting of
renovations and modifications to the bUilding located in downtown Adrian, including,
fac;ade improvements, upgrades to the mechanical and electrical services, improved
interior appearance of the building and other physical changes required to restore
the obsolete property to an economically efficient condition, under State of Michigan
Act 146, Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act of 2000; and

WHEREAS, the City of Adrian is a Qualified Local Governmental Unit; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to P.A. 146 of 2000, after a duly noticed public hearing
held on the 16th day of October 2006, the Adrian City Commission, by resolution,
established the City of Adrian Downtown Development District as an Obsolete
Property Rehabilitation District; and

WHEREAS, before acting upon said application, the Adrian City Commission
held a public hearing October 18, 2010 at the City Commission Chambers building,
159 East Maumee Street, Adrian, Michigan at 7:00pm, at which hearing, the
applicant, the Assessor and a representative of the affective taxing units, having
been given written notice, were afforded the opportunity to be heard on said
application; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and determines that the granting of this
Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate, considered together with the
aggregate amount of Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificates previously granted
and currently in force, exceeds 5% of the total taxable value of the City;
nevertheless, it is herewith determined that it shall not have the effect of
substantially impending the operation of or impair the financial soundness of the
local government or an affected taxing unit; and

WHEREAS, the applicant is not delinquent on any taxes related to the facility;
and

WHEREAS, the SUbject property is determined to be an obsolete property
(functionally obsolete) as defined by Section 2(h) of Public Act 146 of 2000 and upon
completion of the rehabilitation, activities will constitute a rehabilitated facility with
the on the meaning of P.A. 146 of 2000; and

WHEREAS, the applicant has supplied to the City of Adrian all of the items
described on line 9 of the Application for Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption



Certificate, including the following: (a) general description of the obsolete facility;
(b) general description of the proposed use of the rehabilitated facility; (c)
description of the general nature and extent of the rehabilitation to be undertaken;
(d) a description list of the fixed bUilding equipment that will be a part of the
rehabilitated facility; (e) a time schedule for undertaking and completing the
rehabilitation of the facility; (f) a statement of the economic advantages expected
from the exemption; and

WHEREAS, commencement of the rehabilitation activities of the facility did
not occur prior to the establishment of the Obsolete Property and Rehabilitation
District; and

WHEREAS, the completion of the rehabilitated facility is calculated to, and will
at the time of issuance of the certificate, have the reasonable likelihood to increase
commercial activity, retain/create employment and assist the City with their short
and long term revitalization goals.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT BE RESOLVED, that the application from David and Kim
Horstman for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate with regard
to the rehabilitation of real property with Tax ID #XAO-100-0191-00, 149 North Main
Street, City of Adrian, Lenawee County, Michigan, within the previously established
OPRA district is hereby approved for a period not to exceed nine (9) years per the
City of Adrian OPRA Policy.

The City of Adrian Commission will require that David and Kim Horstman
complete the rehabilitation in its entirety.

On motion by _

seconded by Commissioner , this

resolution was by a __ vote.



October 18, 2010

SPECIAL ORDER

The Mayor called for the hearing and consideration of comments to approval of a
Special Assessment District for downtown parking lots to partially defray the operating
expenses of the lot.

Discussion

When the Mayor called for final objections _

and he declared the hearing closed.



Rl0-126

RESOLUTION

October 18, 2010

RE: FINANCE DEPARTMENT - Downtown Parking Special Assessment

WHEREAS, the City Administrator has recommended that downtown parking be
partially maintained on a special assessment basis, has prepared and filed plans and
specifications for the proposal, and has prepared and filed a report and recommendations
relating thereto pursuant to the provisions of Article I, Section 70-6 of the Adrian City
Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the Adrian City Commission, on October 4, 2010, adopted Resolution
R10-123, Downtown Special Assessment - Notice of Intent, detailing the proposed
Financial Plan and Proposed Special Assessment in the amount of $60,000, establishing a
Public Hearing in the City Commission Chambers at Adrian City Commission Chambers
(159 E. Maumee Street) at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, October 18, 2010, and instructing the
City Clerk to mail appropriate Notices of Intent to affected parties.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission, by this
resolution:

1. Deems it necessary and declares its intention to maintain the downtown parking
system;

2. Estimates the annual cost thereof to be $72,000 (excluding accumulated fund
balance to draw upon for future capital improvements) to be defrayed by revenue
from over-night parking permits, parking enforcement, investment earnings,
contributions from the Fee Estate, Downtown Development Authority and City
General Fund, as well as a Special Assessment to downtown property owners in
the amount of $60,000;

3. Specifies that the Special Assessment District within the Downtown Development
District shall include the following land and premises located within the following
boundaries:

North of Church Street
West of Broad Street
South of Front Street
West Side of Winter Street
East of College Avenue

4. Authorizes the Special Assessment to partially defray the cost of the proposal
shall be levied on the lands and premises within the proposed Special Assessment
District according to zoning;

5. Directs that the report of the City Administrator be filed with the City Clerk
forthwith for public examination.

On motion by Commissioner seconded by

Commissioner , this resolution was

________ by a vote.



October 7, 2010

MEMORANDUM

TO: Dane Nelson, City Administrator

FROM: Kristin Bauer, City Engineer

SUBJECT: Merit Metro Act Application

The City has received an application for access to our rights-of-way through a
Metro Act Telecommunications Right-of-Way (ROW) permit. This permit is a
permit for use of the City's ROW for purposes of installation and maintenance of
Telecommunication Facilities.

I have reviewed this application and recommend acceptance of this permit for the
requested term of 15 years from the date of issuance, followed by three
subsequent renewal terms of 5 years.

Please add approval of this application to the agenda for the October 18' 2010
meeting of the City Commission.



METRO Act PermitApplicationForm
Revised12/06/02

City of Adrian
Nameof Local Unit of Government

APPLICATION FOR
ACCESSTO AND ONGOINGUSEOF PUBLIC WAYS BY

TELECOMMUNICATIONS PROVIDERS
UNDER

METROPOLITAN EXTENSIONTELECOMMUNICATIONS
RIGHTS-OF-WAYOVERSIGHTACT

2002PA 48
MCLA SECTIONS484.3101TO 484.3120

BY

Merit Network,Inc.
("APPLICANT")

Unfamiliarwith METROAct?--Assistance:Municipalities unfamiliar with Michigan
Metropolitan ExtensionTelecommunicationsRights-of-Way Oversight Act ("METRO Act")
permits for telecommunicationsproviders should seek assistance,such as by contactingthe
TelecommunicationsDivision of the Michigan Public ServiceCommissionat 517-241-6200or
via its web siteat http://www.michigan.gov/mpsc/0,1607,7-159-16372_22707---,00.html.

45 Days to Act-Finesfor Failure to Act: The METRO Act statesthat "A municipality shall
approveor deny accessunder this sectionwithin 45 days from the date a provider files an
application for a permit for accessto a public right-of-way." MCLA 484.3115(3). The
MichiganPublicServiceCommissioncanimposefines of up to $40,000perday for violationsof
the METRO Act. It has imposedfines underthe Michigan TelecommunicationsAct where it
found providersor municipalitiesviolatedthe statute.

Where to File: Applicants should file copies as follows [municipalities should adapt as
appropriate-unlessotherwisespecifiedserviceshouldbeasfollows]:

-- Three(3) copies(one of which shall be markedand designatedas the mastercopy)
with theClerk at 135 E. MaumeeS1. 2nd Floor, Adrian, MI 49221.



City of Adrian
Nameof local unit of government

APPLICATION FOR
ACCESSTO AND ONGOINGUSEOF PUBLIC WAYS BY

TELECOMMUNICATIONS PROVIDERS

By
Merit Network, Inc
("APPLICANT")

This is an application pursuant to Sections5 and 6 of the Metropolitan
ExtensionTelecommunicationsRights-of-WayOversightAct, 2002PA 48 (the
"METROAct'') for accessto and ongoing usageof the public right-of-way,
includingpublic roadways,highways,streets,alleys,easements,andwaterways
("Public Ways") in the Municipality for a telecommunicationssystem. The
METROActstatesthat "'A municipalityshallapproveor denyaccessunderthis
sectionwithin 45 daysfrom thedateaproviderfiles an applicationfor apermit
for accessto apublic right-of-way." MCLA 484.3115(3).

This application mustbe accompaniedby a one-timeapplicationfee of $500,
unlessthe applicantis exemptfrom this requirementunderSection5(3) ofthe
METROAct,MCLA 484.3105(3).

1 GENERAL INFORMATION:

1.1 Date:July, 2010

1.2 Applicant'slegalname:
Mailing Address:

TelephoneNumber:
FaxNumber:
Corporatewebsite:

Merit Network, Inc
1000OakbrookDrive, Suite200
Ann Arbor, MI 48104-6794
734-527-5700
734-527-5790
http://www.merit.edu/

Nameandtitle of Applicant'slocal manager(andif different) contactperson
regardingthis application:
Robert(Bob) Stovall,Vice President,NetworkOperation& Engineering
Mailing Address: Sameasabove
TelephoneNumber: 734-476-2288
FaxNumber:Sameasabove
E-mail Address:bes@merit.edu

2



1.3 TypeofEntity: (Checkoneof the following)

Corporation
GeneralPartnership
Limited Partnership
Limited Liability Company
Individual

X Other,pleasedescribe: privatenon-profit 501(c)(3) corporation

1.4 Assumednamefor doingbusiness,if any: Merit Network, Inc.

1.5 Descriptionof Entity:

1.5.1 Jurisdictionof incorporation/formation;Michigan
1.5.2 Dateof incorporation/formation;October17, 1966
1.5.3 If a subsidiary,nameof ultimateparentcompany;N/A
1.5.4 Chairperson,President/CEO,SecretaryandTreasurer(andequivalent
officials for non-corporateentities).
Chairman,David Gift, MichiganStateUniversity
President:DonaldJ. Welch
Secretary:BrendaHelminen,MichiganTechnologyUniversity
Treasurer:JamesGilchrist, WesternMichiganUniversity

1.6 Attach copiesof Applicant'smost recentannualreport (with stateID number)
filed with the MichiganDepartmentof ConsumerandIndustryServicesandcertificateof good
standingwith the Stateof Michigan. For entities in existencefor lessthan one year and for
non-corporateentities,provideequivalentinformation. StateID: 38-2210903

Is Applicant aware of any present or potential confli'cts of interest betweenApplicant and
Municipality? If yes,describe:No

1.7 In the past three (3) years, has Applicant had a permit to install
telecommunicationsfacilities in the public right of way revoked by any Michigan
municipality?

Circle: Yes

If 'yes,"pleasedescribethe circumstances.

1.8 In the pastthree(3) years,hasan adversefinding beenmadeor anadversefinal
action beentakenby any Michigan court or administrativebody againstApplicant underany
law or regulationrelatedto the following:

1.8.1 A felony; or

1.8.2 A revocation or suspension of any authorization (including cable
franchises)to providetelecommunicationsor video programmingservices?

3
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Circle: Yes

if 'yes," please attach a full description of the parties and matters involved, including an
identification of the court or administrative body and any proceedings(by dates and file
numbers,ifapplicable),andthe dispositionofsuchproceedings.

1.9 If Applicant has beengrantedand currently holds a licenseto provide basic
local exchangeservice,no financial informationneedsto besupplied.]If publicly held,provide
Applicant'smost recentfinancial statements.If financial statementsof a parentcompanyof
Applicant (or other affiliate of Applicant) are provided in lieu of thoseof Applicant, please
explain. Not Applicable, Merit Network is a non-profit corporation governed by
Michigan'spublic universities.

1.9.1 If privately held, and if Municipality requeststhe informationwithin 10
days of the date of this Application, the Applicant and the Municipality shouldmake
arrangementsfor theMunicipality to reviewthe financial statements.

ifnofinancial statementsareprovided,pleaseexplainandprovideparticulars.

Merit Network,Inc. is privatelyheld. Latestfinancial statementis attached.
SeeExhibit A.

2 DESCRIPTIONOF PROJECT:

2.1 Provide a copy of authorizations,if applicable, Applicant holds to provide
telecommunicationsservices in Municipality. If no authorizationsare applicable, please
explain.

No authorizationsare applicable. Merit Network is only offering data services for
schools,governmentorganizations,healthcareorganizations, andhouseholds.

2.2 Describein plain Englishhow Municipality shoulddescribeto thepublic the
telecommunicationsservicesto beprovidedby Applicantandthetelecommunicationsfacilities
to be installedby Applicantin thePublic Ways.

A fiber optic networkworking to improvebroadbandin theStateof Michigan.

2.3 Attachroutemapsshowingthe location(includingwhetheroverheador
underground)of Applicant'sexistingandproposedfacilities in thepublic right-of-way. To the
extentknown,pleaseidentify the sideof thestreeton which the facilities will be located. (If
constructionapprovalis soughtat this time, provideengineeringdrawings,if available,
showinglocationanddepth,if applicable,of facilities to be installedin thepublic right-of-
way).

SeeExhibit B

4



2.4 Pleaseprovideananticipatedor actualconstructionschedule.

Theprojectis scheduledfor completionby December 2012

Pleaselist all organizationsandentitieswhich will haveanyownershipinterestin the facilities
proposedto be installedin thePublic Ways.

Merit Network,Inc., LYNX NetworkGroup,LLC, KEPSTechnologies,Inc. (ACD.net),
TheComputerCareCompany(TC3Net)

2.5 Who will be responsiblefor maintainingthe facilities Applicantplacesin the
Public Waysandhow aretheyto bepromptlycontacted?If Applicant'sfacilities areto be
installedonor in existingfacilities in thePublic Waysofexistingpublic utilities or incumbent
telecommunicationsproviders,describethe facilities to beused,andprovideverificationof
their consentto suchusageby Applicant.

Merit Network, Inc.

SeeExhibit C for Emergencycall out list.

Constructionwill primarily aerialon existingpowerpoles.Merit Network,Inc. will
providecopiesof joint useagreementsuponrequest.

3 TELECOMMUNICATION PROVIDERADMINISTRATIVE
MATTERS:

Pleaseprovidethefollowing or attachan appropriateexhibit.

3.1 Addressof Applicant'snearestlocal office;
Merit Network, Inc.
1000Oakbrook
Suite200
Ann Arbor, MI 48104-6794

3.2 Locationof all recordsandengineeringdrawings,if not at local office;
Local office will havea copyof all recordsandengineeringdrawings.

3.3 Names,titles, addresses,e·mailaddressesandtelephonenumbersof contact
person(s)for Applicant'sengineeror engineersandtheir responsibilitiesfor the
telecommunicationssystem;
seelocal contactinformationabove

3.4 Provideevidenceof self-insuranceor acertificateof insurance showing
Applicant'sinsurancecoverage,carrierandlimits ofliability for the following:

5



3.4.1 Worker'scompensation;
SeeExhibit E, a letter from the University of Michigan Risk
ManagementServicesoffice regarding Merit's convergeunder the
University of Michigan.

3.4.2 Commercialgeneralliability, includingatleast:

3.4.2.1

3.4.2.2

3.4.2.3

3.4.2.4

Combined overalllimits;

Combinedsinglelimit for eachoccurrenceofbodily injury;

Personalinjury;

Propertydamage;

3.4.2.5 Blanketcontractualliability for written contracts,products,and
completedoperations;

3.4.2.6 Independentcontractorliability;

3.4.2.7 For any non-aerialinstallations,coveragefor propertydamage
from perils of explosives,collapse,or damageto undergroundutilities (known as
XCD coverage);

3.4.2.8 Environmentalcontamination;

3.4.3 Automobileliability coveringall owned,hired,andnon-ownedvehicles
usedby Applicant, its employee,or agents.

Merit Network is coveredby the University of Michigan'spolicy for
automobile coverage.No non-UM vehicleswill be used.

3.5 Namesofall anticipatedcontractorsandsubcontractorsinvolved in the
construction,maintenanceandoperationofApplicant'sfacilities in thePublic
Ways.

Contractors to be determined.

6



Date:--------------

4 CERTIFICATION:

All the statementsmadein the applicationandattachedexhibitsare true and correct to
thebestofmyknowledgeandbelief

Signature:

Print: Robert

Title: Vice President,
NetworkEngineering& Operations

SEP 0 1 2010

::ODMA\PCDOCS\GRR\759295\5
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Merit Network,Inc.

FinancialReport
June30, 200SJ

Exhibit A
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Merit Network, Inc.
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To the Boardof Directors
Merit Network. Inc.

IndependentAuditor's Report

pranlo & Morafl, PlLC

750Trada C4ntre Way
MI 49002

Tel: 269.567.4000
Fa<: 269.587.4501

pJont.eIl1OlllJ1.o:lm

We haveauditedtheaccompanyingbalancesheetof Merit Network, Inc. (the"0rganizationlt)as
of June30, 2009 and 2008 and the relatedstatementsof activities and changesin net assets,
functionalexpenses,andcashflows for theyearsthenended. Thesefinancial statementsarethe
responsibilityof the Organization'smanagement.Our responsibilityis to expressan opinion on
thesefinancial statementsbasedon ouraudits.

We conductedour auditsin accordancewith auditingstandardsgenerallyacceptedin the United
Statesof America. Thosestandardsrequire that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonableassuranceaboutwhetherthe financial statementsarefree of materialmisstatement.
An audit includesexamining,on a testbasis.evidencesupportingtheamountsanddisclosuresin
the financial statements. An audit also includesassessingthe accountingprinciples used and
significantestimatesmadeby management,as well as evaluatingthe overall financial statement
presentation.We believethatourauditsprovidea reasonablebasisfor ouropinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementsreferredto abovepresentfairly, in all materialrespects,
the financial positionof Merit Network, Inc. atJune30, 2009and 2008andthechangesin its net
assetsand its cash flows for the years then ended. in conformity with accountingprinciples
generallyacceptedin theUnitedStatesof America.

November16,2009

Praxiii/:
t.1fLfBEJI.'

tjlDOI..t I.l11.r."Ct 'OF
I'iDHUICE1U F'''t.fS



Merit Network, Inc.
Balance Sheet

June30, 2009 June30, 2008

Assets
Cashandcashequivalents $ 5,239,445 $ 5,305,736
Accountsreceivable(Note2) 713,361 562,165
Prepaidexpensesandother:

Prepaidexpenses 332,989 400,745
Bondfinancingfees- Netof amortization of$50,605in

2009and$40,484In 2008 101,203 111,324
Propertyandequipment- Net (Note3) 8,886,916 8,219,532

Softwarelicenses- Net 467,294

Total assets $ 15,741,208 $ 14,599,502

Liabilities andNet Assets

Liabilities
Accountspayable $ 420,525 $ 378,048
Accruedliabilities andother:

Accruedwagesandotherliabilities 517,226 480,640
Deferredrevenue 1,051,148 824,467

Debt(Note4) 3,797,933 4,524,551

Totalliabilities 5,786,832 6,207,706

NetAssets
Unrestricted 9,954,376 8,391.453
Temporarilyrestrictednetassets 343

Total netassets 9,954,376 8,391,796

Total liabilities andnetassets $ 15,741,208 $ 14,599,502

SeeNotesto FinancialStatements. 2



Merit Network, Inc.

statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

YearEnded

lune30. 2009 june3D, 2008
Temporarily Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

RevenueandSupport
Grantrevenue $ 616,9-16 $ - $ 616,946 $ 140,359 $ - $ 140.359
Membershipfees 6.348,520 6,348,520 6.348.519 - 6.348.519
MichNetaffiliate andservicefees 6,618,567 - 6.618.567 6,266.162 - 6,266.162
Global routingandoperations 607.647 607,647 455.885 - 455.885
NANOGfees 881.052 881,052 9n.798 - 9n.798
Otherservicerevenue 997,429 - 997.429 757,625 - 757,625
Merit email services 489,550 - 489.550
InterestIncome 82.153 - 82,153 293,949 13.662 307.611

MiscellaneoU$ income 650 - 650

Total revenueandsupport 16,642.514 16,642,514 15.235.297 13.662 15.248.959

NetAssetsReleasedfrom Restrictions 343 (343) - 161.807 (161.807)

Tota! revenue.support.andnet
assetsreleasedfrom
restrictions 16,642,857 (343) 16,642,514 15,397,104 (148.145) 15.248,959

Expenses
Programservices 13,045,902 - 13.045,902 12,142,196 /2,142,196
Managementandgeneral 2,034,032 - 2,034,032 1.696,537 - 1,696,537

Total expenses 15.079.934 15,079,934 13,838,733 - 13,838.733

Increase(Decrease)in NetAssets 1.562,923 (343) 1.562,580 [,5S8,371 (148,145) 1,410,226

Net Assets Beginningofyear 8,391,453 343 8.391,796 6,833.082 148.488 6.981.570

NetAssets Endof year $ 9.954,376 $ . $ 9.954,376 $ 8,391.453 $ 343 $ 8,391.796

SeeNotesto FinancialStatements. 3



Merit Network, Inc.
Statement of Functional Expenses

YearEndedJune 30, 2009
Program Management
Services andGeneral Total

Salaries.wages,andfringe benefits $ 5,530,737 $ 592,560 $ 6,123,297
Datacircuits 4,323,776 4.323.776
Office phones 33,729 3,336 37,065
Materialsandservices 528,356 16,341 544,697
Travelandprofessionaldevelopment 192,137 192,137
Hostagreementfees 75,432 75,432
Otherexpenses 1.149,482 10,883 1,160,365
Rentalexpense 856,755 856,755
Interestexpense 155,788 155,788
Amortizationof bondfees 10,121 10,121
Depredationandamortization 1,287,685 311,803 1.599,488
Baddebt 1,013 1.013

Total functionalexpenses $ 13,045,902 $ 2,034,032 $ 15,079,934

YearEndedJune30, 2008
Program Management
Services andGeneral Total

Salaries,wages,andfringe benefits $ 4,710,087 $ 486,190 $ 5,196,277
Datacircuits 4,511,947 4,511,947
Office phones 37,433 3.864 41,297
Noe 482,127 482,127
Materialsandservices 582,482 18,015 600,497
Travelandprofessionaldevelopment 207.710 207,710
Hostagreementfees 74,390 74,390
Otherexpenses 487,467 9,948 497.415
Rentalexpense 688,007 6S8,007
Interestexpense 184,866 184,866
Amortizationof bondfees 10,121 10,121
Depreciatlonand amortizatIon 1,122,943 221,136 1,344,079

Total functionalexpenses $ 12,142,196 $ 1,696,537 $ 13,838,733

SeeNotesto FinancialStatements. 4



Merit Network, Inc.

statement of Cash Flows

YearEnded
June30.2009 June30,2008

CashFJowsfrom OperatingActivities
IncreaseIn netassets $ 1,562,580 $ 1,410,226
Adjustmentsto reconcileincreaseIn netassetsto netcash

from operatingactivities:
Depreciation 1,477,677 1,344,079
Amortizationof Intangibleassets 121,811
Amortizationof debtcosts 10,121 /0,121
Changesin operatingassetsandliabilities that provided

(used)cash:
Accountsreceivable (151,196) ('33.850)
Prepaidexpenses 67,756 (194.148)
Accountspayable 42,477 (313,752)
Accruedwagesandotherliabilities 36,586 100,177
Deferredrevenue 226,681 (29,839)

Netcashprovidedby operatIngactivities 3,394,493 2,'93.0/4-

CashFlowsfrom InvestingActivities
Purchaseof propertyandequipment (2,113,393) (2,672.861)
Purchasesof softwarelicenses. (589,105)

Net cashusedIn investingactivities (2,702,498) (2,672.861)

CashF'owsfrom FinancingActivities
Proceedsfrom debt 722,551
Paymentson debt (1,480,8372 (2,035,70I)

NetcashusedIn financingactivities (758,286) (2,035,70I)

NetDecreaseIn CashandCashEquivalents (66,291) (2,515,548)

CashandCashEquivalents- Beginningofyear 5,305,736 7.821,284

CashandCashEquivalents- Endof year $ 5,239,445 $ 5,305,736

SupplementalDlsc:losureof CashFlow Information- Cash
paid (or interest $ 155,788 $ 184,866

SeeNotesto FinancialStatements. 5



Merit Network, Inc.

Notesto Financial Statements
June 30, 2009and 2008

Note I • Nature of Businessand Significant Accounting POlicies

Natureof Organization- Merit Network, Inc. (the is a not-for-profit
organizationservingmorethan onemillion peoplewithin Michigan. The Organization's
mission is to develop and promote advancedInternet services for researchand
education.TheOrganization'snetworkconnectsuniversities,communitycolleges.K-12
schools,libraries,stateagendes,andculturalorganizations.

Method of Accounting and Basis of Presentation- The accompanyingfinancial
statementsof the Organizationhavebeenpreparedon the accrualbasisof accounting.
TheOrganization'ssignificantaccountingpoliciesarepresentedbelow.

RevenueRecognition- Merit Network. Inc.'s main sourceof funding comesfrom the
membershipfeesof the 12 governingmemberuniversitiesaswell asservicefeesfrom
othermemberorganizations.GoverningmembersincludeCentralMichigan University,
EasternMichigan University. FerrIsStateUniversity. GrandValley StateUniversity, Lake
SuperiorStateUniversity, Michigan StateUniversity, Michigan Tech. NorthernMichigan
University. Oakland University, University of Michigan, Wayne State University, and
WesternMichigan University. Merit Network, Inc. reportsthis funding as unrestricted
support.

Merit Network, Inc. also receivesgrantsrelatedto certainprojects. Thesegrantsare
exchangehtypegrants,thereforerevenueis recognizedasservicesareprovided.

Deferred revenuerepresentsunusedportions of Internetserviceagreements,which
will berecognizedIn subsequentyearsasservicesarerendered.

Equipment- Purchasedequipmentis statedat cost. DepreciationIs provided on a
straight-line basis over the estimateduseful lives of the assets. The assetsof the
Organizationareestimatedto haveuseful lives of 3, 6, and20years.

Intangible Assets- Intangible assetsconsistof $589,I05 software licenses. These
costs are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the licenses.
Amortizationexpenseandaccumulatedamortizationwas$121,811for 2009.

Use of Estimates- The preparationof financial statementsin conrormity with
accountingprinciples generally acceptedin the United Statesof America requires
managementto makeestimatesandassumptionsthat affect the reportedamountsand
disclosuresIn thefinancialstatements.Actual resultscoulddiffer from theseestimates.

HostingAgreementwith Universityof Michigan - Merit Network, Inc. hasahosting
agreementwith theUniversityof Michigan (the"University"), In which the Universitywill
providegeneralandadministrativeservicessuchasbilling. collections,accountspayable,
andpayroll servicesto theOrganizationfor an annualfee. As partof this agreement,the
University will assign employeesand provide facilities and other support to the
Organizationasnecessaryto performoperatingactivities.
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Merit Network, Inc.
Notes to Financial statements

June 30, .2009 and 2008

Note I • Nature of Businessand Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Employeesarecoveredunderthe Universitis retirementplanand Merit Network, Inc.
is charged10 percentof the employees'annualsalaryto fund the plan. If the hosting
agreementwereto terminate,the UnIversitywould negotiateIn goodfaith asettlement
coveringnetretirementcosts. Thesettlementwould determineascheduleof payments
to cover the anticipatedfuture costsof retirementbenefitsthat the Universitywill pay
to staffwho retire from University employmentwhile working at Merit Network, Inc.
At June30, 2009,thereareno plansto terminatethe agreementandit is notfeasibleto
estimatewhatthefutureretirementcostswould be.

Cash Equivalents - Merit Network, Inc"s cash is held at the University and is
commingledwith other University cash. The Organizationhasunlimited accessto this
cashand,therefore,considersthebalanceascashandcashequivalents.

AccountsReceivable- The Organization'saccountsreceivableare statedat the net
invoice amount. Managementreviews accounts receivable balancesgreater than
90 days from invoice date and, basedon an assessmentof currentcreditworthiness,
estimatesthe portion, jf any,of thebalancethatwill not becollectedaswell asageneral
valuationallowancefor thoseaccountsbasedon historicalexperience.All accountsor
portions thereofdeemedto be uncollectiblearewritten off to the allowancefor bad
debts.

TaxStatus- Merit Network, Inc. Is a nonprofit tax-exemptorganizationunderSection
50I(c)(3) of the InternalRevenueCodeandis exemptfrom incometaxes.

FunctionalAllocation of Expenses- The costof providingthevariousprogramsand
otheractivitieshasbeensummarizedon a functional basisin the statementof activities
and changesIn net assets. Accordingly, certain costshavebeenallocatedamongthe
programsand supportservicesbenefited. The basisused is consideredappropriate;
however,othermethodscouldbeusedthatwould producedifferentresults.

Net Assets- For financial statementpurposes,the Organizationdistinguishesbetween
unrestrictednet assets,temporarily restrictednet assets,and permanentlyrestricted
net assets. The Organization reports net assetsthat are not subject to imposed
stipulationsasunrestrictednetassets.Netassetssubjectto stipulationsthatmayorwill
be met by actions of the Organizationand/or the passageof time are recordedas
temporarilyrestrictednetassets.TemporarilyrestrictednetassetsatJune30, 2009was
zero. Temporarily restricted net assetsat June 30, 2008 totaled $343, that was
restrictedfor thepurchaseof fiber optic lines.

SubsequentEvents • The financial statementsand related disclosures include
evaluationof eventsup throughandIncluding November16, 2009,which is thedatethe
financial statementswereavailableto beissued.
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Merit Network, Inc.

Notesto Financial Statements
lune 30, 2000and 2008

Note I • Nature of Businessand Significant Accounting Policies
(Cantlnued)

Reclassification- Certainreclassificationswere madeto amountsin tile 2008financial
statementsconform to the classificationsused in 2009. The reclassificationsdId not
impacttheoverallchangeIn netassetsfor 2008.

Note 2. • Accounts Receivable

Thedetailsof accountsreceivableareasfollows:

2009 2008

Accountsreceivable $ 550,650 $ 560,429
Duefrom memberorganizations 162.71I 5.911
Lessallowancefor doubtful accounts (4.175)

Total $ 713.361 $ 562,'65

Nate 3 - Property and Equipment

Thecostof propertyandequipmentis summarizedasfollows:

Office equipment
Capitalleaseequipment
Field equipment
Field equipment- Fiberoptic lines
Leaseholdimprovement

Total cost

Accumulateddepredation

Netcarryingamount

2009

$ 1,263.420 $
1.924,814
5,850,571
6,037.692

735,365

15,811.862

(6,924,946)

$ 8,886.916 $

2008

1,104,329
'.893,146
8,675,524
5,214,345

735,365

17,622,709

(9,403,I77)

8,219.532

Depredation(or capital leaseequipmentwas $375,785(or 2009 and $373.610 for
2008.Total depredationexpensewas$1,477,677for 2009and$1,344.079for 2008.

8
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Merit Network, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

June ao, 2009 and 2008

Note 4·Debt

Thefollowing is a summaryof debtatJune30:

2009 2008

Note payable to Michigan Information Techology
Center(MITC), a relatedparty, in annualinstallments
of $82,000through2010. ThereIs no intereston this
note $ 64,746 $ 239,167

Capitalleaseat 3.336percentwith CiscoSystems,due
in annual installments ranging from $90,224 to
$183,547,including interest,through 2011. The note
is collateralizedby theequipment 171,800 343,863

Michigan Strategic Fund Limited Obligation Revenue
BondsSeries200S in theamountof$4,204,000.which
havean original maturitydateof March I, 2012. The
bondsbearinterestat 3.87 percentannually. Annual
principal payments began in 2007, ranging from
$533,474to $926,120,andaredueon the first day of
each month. The bonds are collateralized by all
equipmentandassetsoftheOrganization 2,412,305 3,227,871

Capital leaseat 2.035percentwith SteekaseFinancial
Services,Inc., due in monthly installmentsof $8,135,
including Interest, through 2010. The note is
collateralizedby theequipment 47,672 137,391

Note payableat 6.86 percentwith United Bank &
Trust - Washtenaw,due in monthly installmentsof
$8,719,including interest,through2013. The note is
collateralizedby theequipment 336,027 414,646

Note payableat 6.95 percentwith United Bank &
Trust - Washtenaw,due in monthly installmentsof
$6,962,Including Interest,through 2010. The note Is
colJaterallzedby theequipment 86,947 161,613

Capital leaseat 8.15 percentwith Key Group, due in
monthly installments of $1,074, including interest,
through 2012. The note Is colJaterallzedby the
eqUipment

9



Merit Network, Inc.
Notes to Financial statements

June 30, 200g and 2.008

Note 4 • Debt (Continued)

2009 2008

Note payableat 1.5 percentover prime rate (5.00
percentatJune30, 2009)with United Bank & Trust -
Washtenawin theamountof $722,551,dueIn monthly
Installments of $21,674. Including interest, through
2012. Thenoteis collateralizedby theequipment $

Toml $

647,418 $-------
3,797,933 $ 4.524.551

Thedebtservicerequirementsof thelong-termdebtbasedon thetermsof thebonds
andnotespayablefor thesucceedingyearsareasfollows:

YearsEnding
June30 Principal Interest

2010 $ 1,595,690 $ 133,295
2011 1,327,372 73.533
2012 809,701 19,289
2013 65,170 1,629

Total $ 3,797,933 $ 227,746

Note 5 • Related Party Transactions

The Organizationreceivesrevenueand purchasesservicesfrom variousorganizations
thataremembersof theboardof directors. Following is asummaryof transactionsand
balanceswith memberorganizations:

Revenuefrom memberorganizations $
Duefrom memberorganizations(includedin accounts

receivable)
Servicespurchasedfrom memberorganizations

2009

7,659,216 $

162,71I
702.166

2008

6,652,444

7,163
1,122,765

In addition to transactionswith memberorganizations,Merit Network, Inc. hasa note
payableof $57.912and$232,333dueto MITC, a relatedparty. asof June30, 2009 and
2008,respectIvely.

Merit Network. Inc. also has a rental agreementfor office spacewith MITe. Rental
paymentsmadeto MITC tomled$825,0II and$702,434for the yearsendedJune30,
2009and2008,respect/vely.
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Merit Network, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

lune 30, 2009and 2008

Note S • Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Futurerentalobligationsrelatedto this agreementareasfollows:

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

2015-2019
2020andthereafter

Total

Note' .. Operating Leases

$ 617,834
636,369
636,369
636,369
655,460

3,336,293
1,043,067

$ 7,561,761

The Organizationleasesvariouscircuits and telecommunicationlines underoperating
leasesthat includeprovisionsfor ongoIngmaintenanceexpiringatvariousdatesthrough
June2030. Thefollowing Is ascheduleof future minimum rentalpaymentsfor theyears
endingJune30:

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

2015andthereafter

Total

$ 1,878,853
1,367,824

717,292
586,643
409,826

5,185,503

$ 10,145,941

Total rent expenseon theseleasesfor 2009and 2008was$2,179,644and$2,902,130,
respectively.

Note 7 • Cash Flows

During the yearendedJune30, 2009, Merit Network, Inc. enteredInto a capital lease
resultingIn a noncashtransactionin theamountof$31,668.
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Exhibit C

Merit Network, Inc..

1000 Oakbrook Dr.

Ann Arbor, MJ 48104
Bob Stovall

Title: Vice President, Network Operations and Engineering

Ro Ie: Oversee the issua nce of pe rmits and an overaJi overseer of the Project(s).

Email Address: bes@merit.edu

Phone Number: 734-476-2288

Pete Empie

Title: Project Manager

Role: On the road working directly with Turnkey, the construction company, and the pole utilities overseeing the work

done on the ground. Will be reviewing and submitting permits as well.

Email Address: ictpete@aol.com or pempie@merit.edu

Phone Number: 517-420-1600

Robert Duncan

Title: Network Engineering Director

Role: Pole engineering and planning on overall infrastructure.

Email Address: rduncan@merit.edu

Phone Number: 734-527-5700

Glenn Wiltse

Title: DNS and IP Registration Administration

Role: Assist in developing maps and general consultation.

Email Address: iggy@merit.edu

Phone Number: 734-527-5700

Rvan Kunzelman

Title: Grant Compliance Manager

Role: General oversight of compliance as well as a liaison for flow of information throughout the company concerning

the REACH-3MC and REACH-3MC II. Will be reviewing and submitting permits as well.

Email Address: kunzelr@merit.edu

Phone Number: 734-527-5739

Karen Smith

Title: Vice President, Finance & Administration/CFO

Email Address: ksmith@merit.edu

Phone Number: 734-527-5700

Don Welch

Title: President and CEO

Email Address: djwelch@merit.edu

Phone Number: 734-527-5700



Exhibit D Cert ID 16290

ACORDTM CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I
DATE [MMJDDIYYYY)

7/1/2010

PRODUCER THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MAnER OF INFORMATION
Aon Private Risk Management - Detroit ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE
3000 Town Center, suite 3000 HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR

Southfield MI 48075
ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW.

INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#
INSURED INSURER A: Travelers Property Casualty Co 25674
Merit Network, Inc.

INSURER B: Travelers Indemnitv Company of 25682

1000 Oakbrook Drive
INSURERC: Travelers Property Casualty Co 25674

Ann Arbor MI 48104 INSURER 0:

I INSURERE:

COVERAGES
THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING
ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR
MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH
POLICIES. AGGREGATE LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TVPFOF NUMBER

LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1 000 000

A r-!- GENERAL LIABILITY TT02100371 12/1/2009 12/1/2010 $ 300,000

f--
CLAIMS MADE [!] OCCUR MED EXP (Anyone person) $ 10,000

f--
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000

f--
GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000

n'L AGGREnE LIMIT APAS PER: $ 2,000,000

POLICY LOC

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $
B ANY AUTO BA0557P42609TEC 12/1/2009 12/1/2010 (Ea accident) 1,000,000

I--

'--
ALL OWNED AUTOS BODILY INJ URY $
SCHEDULED AUTOS (Par person)

-
c--!- HIRED AUTOS BODILY INJURY $
c....!... NON-OWNED AUTOS (Per accident)

- PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident) $

LIABILITY AUTO ONLY - EA ACCIDENT $

ANY AUTO OTHER THAN EAACC $
AUTO ONLY: AGG $

OESSIUMBRELLA EACH OCCURRENCE $ 9,000,000

C OCCUR 0 CLAIMS MADE TT05802955 12/1/2009 12/1/2010 AGGREGATE $ 9,000,000

$8DEDUCTIBLE $

X RETENTION $ 10.000 $

WORKERS COMPlONSATION ANc I I
EMPLOYERS'

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE;
E.l. EACH ACCIDENT $

OFFICERlMEMBER EXCLU CEO? E.L. D!SEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $

helow E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $
OTHlOR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS JLOCATIONS I JEXCLUSIONS ADDED BY ENDORSEMENT J PROVISIONS

Holder, per attached contract, is an additional insured under the above general
liability policy with respect to liability arising out of work performed.

Description: The REACH Michigan Mile Collaborative (REACH-3MC) is a partnership led by
education network - which engages Merit with 4 commercial providers to share a 1.017

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE BEFORE THE EXPIRATION

Per attached contract
DATE THEREOF. THE ISSUING INSURER WILL ENDEAVOR TO DAYS WRITIEN

NOTICE TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER NAMED TO THE LEFT, BUT FAILURE TO DO SO

IMPOSE NO OR OF ANY KIND UPON THE INSURER. ITS AGENTS OR

REPRESENTATIVES.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE ?f.,. ;z:>.f64(e

I 1..-a.?f9&11!f. 1"".
ACORD 25 (2001IDB)

Page 1 of 1

©ACORD CORPORATION 198B



IMPORTANT

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. A statement
on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may
require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate
holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

DISCLAIMER

The Certificate of Insurance on the reverse side of this form does not constitute a contract between
the issuing insurer(s), authorized representative or producer, and the certificate holder, nor does it
affirmatively or negatively amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by the policies listed thereon.

ACORD 25 (2001/08)

Page 2 of ]

7/1/2010



DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS SECTION CONT INUED DATE

7/1/2010
CERTIFICATE HOLDER:

Per attachedcontract

INSURED:

Merit Network, Inc.

1000 Oakbrook Drive
Ann Arbor MI 48104

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS CONTINUED:
mile extensionof Merit's advancedfiber optic network to serve anchor institutions. householdsand

businesses. REACH-3MC is an ARRA funded project that is designedto improve broadband

infrastructurethroughout the state.

Note per conditions of GL policy: Certificate Holder is added as an Additional Insured excluding

Workers' Compensationand Employers' Liability as required by written contract but limited to the

operationsof the Insuredunder said contract, and always subject to the policy terms, conditions

and exclusions. CancellationProvision shown herein is subject to shorteror longer time periods

dependingon the jurisdiction of, and reasonfor, the cancellation.

DOC (1D/2003)

Page 3 of 3



City of Monroe
120 E. First St.
Monroe, MI48161

Monroe Charter Township
4925 E. Dunbar Rd.
Monroe, MI48161

Raisinville Township
96 Ida-Maybee Rd.
Monroe, MI48161

Dundee Township
179 Main St.
Dundee, M148131

Village of Dundee
350 W. Monroe St.
Dundee, M148131

Summerfield Township
PO Box 98
Petersburg, MJ 49270

City of Petersburg
24 E. Center St.
Petersburg, Ml 49270

Deerfield Township
468 Carey St.
Deerfield, MI 49238

Village of Deerfield
101 W. River St.
Deerfield, MI 49238

Blissfield Township
PO Box 58
Blissfield, MI49228

Village of Blissfield
408 E. Adrian St.
Blissfield, Ml 49228

Palmyra Township
PO Box 97
Palmyra, MI49268

Madison Charter Township
4008 S. Adrian Hwy
Adrian, MI 49221

City of Adrian
135 E. Maumee St. 2nd Floor
Adrian, MI 49221

Dover Township
7712 W. Carleton Rd.
Clayton, MI49235

Hudson Township
1221 Kiel Hwy
Hudson, MI 49247

City of Hudson
121 N. Church St.
Hudson, MI 49247

Pittsford Township
12011 Hudson Rd.
Pittsford, M149271

Jefferson Township
2837 Bird lake Rd. S
Osseo, MI 49266

Cambria Township
7287 Cambria Rd.
Hillsdale, MI49242

Hillsdale Township
PO Box 181
Hillsdale, MI49242

City of Hillsdale
97 North Broad St.
Hillsdale, MI49242

Fayette Township
211 North St.
Jonesville, MI49250

Village of Jonesville
265 E. Chicago St.
Jonesville, MI49250

Allen Township
8181 Arkansaw Rd.
Allen, Mr 49227

Village of Allen
7800 Arkansaw Rd.
Allen, M I 49227



Quincy Township
884 Dery St.
Quincy, MI49082

Village of Quincy
47 Cole St.
Quincy, MI 49082

Coldwater Township
319 Sprague Rd.
Coldwater, Ml 49036

City of Coldwater
One Grand St.
Coldwater, MI49036

Batavia Township
402 N. Snow Prairie Rd.
Coldwater, MI49036

Bethel Township
453 Hatmaker Rd.
Bronson, MI49028

Bronson Township
766 Kosmerick Rd.
Bronson, MI 49028

City of Bronson
141 S. Matteson St.
Bronson, MI49028

Burr Oak Township
PO Box 241
Burr Oak, MI49030

Fawn River Township
71209 S. Lakeview St.
Sturgis, MI49091

City of Sturgis
130 N. Nottawa
Sturgis, MI 49091

Sherman Township
63108 W. Fish Lake Rd.
Sturgis, MI49091

Colon Township
PO Box 608
Colon, MI 49040

Nottawa Township
PO Box 68
Centreville, M149072

Village of Centreville
221 W. Main St
Centreville, MI49032

Lockport Township
56270 Buffalo Dr.
Three Rivers, MI 49093

City of Three Rivers
333 W. Michigan Ave.
Three Rivers, Mt 49093

Fabious Township
PO Box 455
Three Rivers, MI 49093

Newberg Township
59950 County Line Rd.
Three Rivers, MI 49093

Penn Township
61273 Alexander Dr.
Vandalia, MI49095

Vandalia Village
18035 W. State St.
Vandalia, MI49095

Cassopolis Village
117 S. Broadway St. Suite 100
Cassopolis, MI 49031

LaGrange Township
24745 Cass St.
Cassopolis, MI49031

City of Dowagiac
241 S. Front St.
Dowagiac, MI49047

Silver Creek Township
PO Box 464
Dowagica, MI49047

Pokagon Township
30683 Peavine St.
Dowagiac, MI49047



Berrien Township
PO Box 61
Berrien Center, MI49102

Pipestone Township
PO Box 291
Eau Claire, MI 49111

Village of Eau Claire
6625 E. Main St.
Eau Claire, M149111

Oronoko Charter Township
4583 E. Snow Rd.
Berrien Springs, MI 49103

Village of Berrien Springs
PO Box 177
Berrien Springs, MI 49103

Royalton Township
980 Miners Rd.
St. Joseph, MI49085

City of Benton Harbor
200 Wall St.
Benton Harbor, MI49022

Benton Charter Township
1725 Territorial Rd.
Benton Harbor, M149022

Hagar Township
PO Box 135
Riverside, MI49084

Coloma Charter Township
4919 Paw Paw Lake Rd.
Coloma, MI49038

City of Coloma
119 N. Paw Paw 51.
Coloma, MI49038

Covert Township
PO Box 35
Covert, MI49043

South Haven Charter Township
09761 Blue Star Memorial Hwy
South Haven, MI 49090

City of South Haven
539 Phoenix St.
South Haven, MI 49090

Casco Township
7104 10ih Ave.
South Haven, MI49090

Ganges Township
1904 64th St.
Fennville, MI49408

Saugatuck Township
3461 Blue Star Memorial Hwy.
Saugatuck, MI49453

Clyde Township
PO Box 671
Fenville, Mf 49408

City of Fennville
222 S. Maple St.
Fennville, MI49408

Manlius Township
3134 57 th St.
Fennville, MI 49408

Fillmore Township
4219 52nd S1.
Holland, MI49423

Overisel Township
A-4307 144th Ave.
Holland, MI49423

Zeeland Charter Township
6582 Byron Rd.
Zeeland, MI49464

City of Zeeland
21 S. Elm St.
Zeeland, MI 49464

Holland Charter Township
PO Box 8127
Holland, MI49422

Olive Township
6480 136th Ave.
Holland, MI49424



Robinson Township
12010 120th Ave.
Grand Haven, MI49417

Grand Haven Charter Township
13300 168th Ave.
Grand Haven, MI49417

City of Grand Haven
519 Washington Ave.
Grand Haven, M149417

City of Ferrysburg
408 Fifth St.
Ferrysburg, MJ 49409

Spring Lake Township
106 S. Buchanan St.
Spring Lake, MI 49456

City of Norton Shores
4814 Henry St.
Norton Shores, Ml49441

Muskegon Charter Township
1990 E. Apple Ave.
Muskegon, MI49442

City of Muskegon
933 Terrace St.
Muskegon, MI49440

Dalton Township
1616 E. Riley Thompson Rd.
Muskegon, MI49445

Fruitland Township
4545 Nestrom Rd.
Whitehall, MI49461

Whitehall Township
7644 Durham Rd.
Whitehall, MI49461

City of Whitehall
405 E. Colby St.
Whitehall, MI 49461

City of Montague
8778 Ferry St.
Montague, MI 49437

Montague Township
3125 Weesies Rd.
Montague, MI 49437

Grant Township
7140 S. Oceana Dr.
Rothbury, MI49452

Shelby Township
PO Box 215
Shelby, MI49455

Benona Township
7169 W. Baker Rd.
Shelby, Ml 49455

Hart Township
3437 W. Polk Rd.
Hart, MI 49420

Weare Township
6295 N. 88th Ave.
Hart, MI49420

Pentwater Township
PO Box 512
Pentwater, MI 49449

City of Pentwater
327 S. Hancock St.
Pentwater, MI49449

Summit Township
4560 W. Anthony Rd.
ludington, MI49431

Pere Marquette Charter Township
1699 S. Pere Marquette Hwy
Ludington, MI 49431

City of Ludginton
400 S. Harrison St.
ludington, MI 49431

Amber Township
221 N. Gordon Rd.
Scottville, MI 49454

City of Scottville
105 North Main St.
Scottville, MI 49454



Custer Township
2888 E. Wilson Rd.
Custer, MI4940S

Branch Township
PO Box 304
Walhalla, MI49548

Victory Township
4118 N. Victory Corner Rd.
Ludington, MI 49431

Sherman Township
PO Box 67
Fountain, MI49410

Grant Township
8969 N. US Hwy 31
Free Soil, MI49411

Free Soil Township
497 E. Free Soil Rd.
Free Soil, Ml 49411

Sweetwater Township
7438 W. Wingleton Rd.
Baldwin, MI 49304

Webber Township
PO Box 939
Ba Idwin, Mr 49304

Peacock Township
4480 W. 4 Mile Rd.
Irons, MI 49644

Newkrick Township
520 N. Kings Hwy
Luther, MI49646

Ellsworth Township
PO Box 113
Luther, MJ 49656

Village of Luther
PO Box 9
luther, MI49646

Filer Charter Township
2505 Filer City Rd.
Manistee, MI49660

City of Manistee
70 Maple St.
Manistee, MI49660

Manistee Township
410 Holden St.
Manistee, MI 49660

Brown Township
9763 Coates Hwy
Manistee, MI49660

Bear Lake Township
8644 Maidens Rd.
Bear Lake, MI49614

Village of Bear Lake
PO Box 175
Bear Lake, MI49614

Pleasanton Township
8958 Lumley Rd.
Bear Lake, MI49614

Joyfield Township
6393 Joyfield Rd.
Frankfort, MJ 49635

Benzonia Township
PO Box 224
Benzonia, MI49616

Village of Benzonia
PO Box 223
Benzonia, MJ 49616

Village of Beulah
7228 Commercial St.
Beulah, MJ 49617

Homestead Township
PO Box 315
Honor, MJ 49640

Village of Honor
10922 Platte St.
Honor, MJ 49640

Inland Township
19668 Honor Hwy
Interlochen, MI49643
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Green lake Township
PO Box 157
Interlochen, MI49634

Blair Township
2121 Co. Rd. 633
Grawn, MI 49637

Garfield Township
3848 Veterans Dr.
Traverse city, MI49684

City of Traverse City
400 Boardman Ave.
Govermental Center, 1st Floor
Traverse City, M I 49684

East Bay Township
19653 Mile Rd. N
Traverse City, MI 49686

Acme Township
6042 Acme Rd.
Williamsburg, MI49690

Whitewater Township
PO Box 1S9
Williamsburg, MI49690

Clearwater Township
PO Box 1
Rapid City, MI49676

Kalkaska Township
PO Box 8SS
Kalkaska, MI49646

Village of Kalkaska
200 Hyde St.
Kalkaska, MI49646

Rapid River Township
1010 Phelps Rd.
Kalkaska, MI49646

Custer Township
PO Box 814
Mancelona, MI 49659

Mancelona Township
PO Box 332

Mancelona, MI49659

Village of Mancelona
PO Box 648
Mancelona, MI49659

Chestonia Township
PO Box 295
Alba, M149611

Jordan Township
5577 St. Johns Rd.
EastJordan, MI 49727

Echo Township
2876 Finkton Rd.
EastJordan, M149727

South Arm Township
Po Box 304
East Jordan, M149727

City of East Jordan
201 Main St.
East Jordan, M149727

Eveline Township
PO Box 454
Charlevoix, M149720

Marion Township
01362 Matchett Rd.
Charlevoix, M149720

City of Charlevoix
210 State St.
Charlevoix, MJ 49720

Boyne City
319 North lake St.
Boyne City, M149712

Evangeline Township
PO Box 396
Boyne City, M I 49712

Bay Township
05045 Boyne City Rd.
Boyne City, M I 49712



Hayes Township
9195 Old 31 N

Charlevoix, MI 49720

Melrose Township
PO Box 189
Walloon Lake, MI49796

Bear Creek Township
373 N. Division
Petoskey, M149770

City of Petoskey
101 E. Lake St.
Petoskey, M I 49770

Little Traverse Township
8288 S. Pleasantview Rd.

Harbor Springs, MI49740

Littlefield Township
PO Box 188
Alanson, MI49706

Village of Alanson
PO Box 425

Alanson, MI49706

Maple River Township

3989 US Hwy 31
Brutus, MI 49716

McKinley Township
PO Box 262
Pellston, MI49769

Village of Pellston
125 Milton Rd.
Pellston, MI49769

Carp Lake Township
10471 N. Hayes Lane
Carp Lake, MI49718

Wawatam Township
PO Box 38
Mackinaw City, MI49701

Munro Township
11637 Heilman Rd.
Levering, MI 49755

City of Mt. Pleasant
320 W. Broadway St.
Mt. Pleasant, MI 48858

Union Charter Township
2010 S. lincoln Rd.
Mt. Pleasant, MI 48858

Isabella Township
3929 E. Rosebush Rd.

Rosebush, MI48878

Village of Rosebush
3876 E. Rosebush Rd.
Rosebush, MI48878

Vernon Township
10877 N. Lincoln Rd.

Clare, MI48617

City of Clare
202 W. Fifth St.

Clare, MI 48617

Grant Township
8490 S. Grant Ave.
Clare, MI 48617

Sheridan Township

8110 Washington Rd.
Clare, MI 486147

Beaverton Township
5700 N. Lewis Rd.
Coleman, MI48618

City of Beaverton
124 W. Brown St.
Beaverton, MI48612

Grout Township
5134 Plude Rd.
Gladwin, Ml 48624

City of Gladwin
1000 West Cedar Ave.
Gladwin, MI48624

Gladwin Township
2001 Wagarville Rd.
Gladwin, MJ 48624



Butman Township

5005 N. Hockady Rd.

Gladwin, MI48624

Nester Township

7855 Maple Valley Rd.

St. Helen, MI48555

Backus Township

3888 S. Maple Valley Rd.

St. Helen, MI48585

Richfield Township

PO Box 128

St. Helen, MI 48656

Higgins Township
PO Box 576

Roscommon, Mt 48653

Markey Township

4974 E. Houghton Lake Dr.

Houghton Lake, MI48629

Gerrish Township

2997 E. Higgins Lake Dr.

Roscommon, MI48653

Beaver Creek Township

8888 S. Grayling Rd.

Grayling, MI49738

Grayling Charter Township

PO Box 521

Grayling, MJ 49738

City of Grayling
1020 City Blvd.

Grayling, MI 49738

Frederic Township

PO Box 78
Frederic, MI49733

MapJe Forest Township
2520 W. Marker Rd.
Grayling, MI49738

Otsego Lake Township

PO Box 99

Waters, MJ 49797

Bagley Township

PO Box 52

Gaylord, MI 49735

City of Gaylord
305 E. Main St.

Gaylord, MI49735

Chester Township
1737 Big Lake Rd.

Gaylord, MI49735

Charlton Township
PO Box 367

Johannesburg, MI49751

Vienna Township
2734 M-32

Atlanta, MI49709

Briley Township

PO Box 207

Atlanta, MI49709

Hillman Township

PO Box 25

Hillman, MI49746

Village of HiJfman

211 E. Second S1.
Hillman, MI49746

City of Midland

333 W. Ellsworth 51.
Midland, MI48640

Williams Charter Township
1080 W. Midland Rd.

Auburn, MI 48611

City of Auburn

113 E.Elm St.

Auburn, MI 48611

Monitor Township

2483 Midland Rd.
Bay City, M I 48706

Bay City

301 Washington Ave.

Bay City, MJ 48708



Bangor Township
180 State Park Dr.
Bay City, MI 48706

Kawkawlin Township
1836 E.Parish Rd.
Kawkawlin, MI48631

Fraser Township
1474 N. Mackinaw Rd.
linwood} MI48634

City of Pinconning
PO Box 628
Pinconning, MI486S0

Pinconning Township
PO Box 58
Pinconning, MI 48650

Standish Township
4997 Arenac Rd.
Standish, MI48658

Lincoln Township
4641 Duprie Rd.
Standish, MJ 48658

City of Standish
399 East Beaver St.
Standish, MI48658

Deep River Township
525 E. State St.
Sterling, Mf 48659

Arenac Township
438 W. Huron Rd.
Omer, MI48749

City ofOmer
201 E. Center St.
Omer, MI 48749

AuGres Township
1865 Swenson Rd.
AuGres, MI 48703

Mason Township
1199 N. Black Rd.
Twining, MI 48766

Turner Township
PO Box 22
Twining, MI48766

Village of Twining
311 W. Main St.
Twining, MJ 48766

Sherman Township
3165 Alabaster Rd
Tawas City, MI48763

Alabaster Township
1716 S. US Hwy 23
Tawas City, MI48763

Grant Township
4049 W. Indian Lake Rd.
National City, MI 48748

Tawas Township
27 S. McArdle Rd.
Tawas City, MJ 48763

Tawas City
PO Box 568
Tawas City, M I 48764

Wilber Township
3120 Sherman Rd.
East Tawas, M I 48730

Au Sable Township
311 5th St. N
Au Sable, MI48750



Exhibit E

The Universityof Michigan

Risk ManagementServices

Argus [J Building
400 S. FourthStreet
Ann Arbor, Ml 48103-4816
Office: 734-764-2200
Facsimile: 734-763-2043

November9, 2009

Re: EvidenceofInsuranceasrespectssponsoredactivitiesof theUniversityofMichigan
(includingMerit Network)

To Whom It May Concern:

Thefollowing is providedasevidenceof theUniversityof MichiganWorkersCompensationself-
insuranceprogram. This programis a fully funded,non-cancelableplanwith the following limits.

Workers'CompensationInsurance
EmployersLiability Insurance

StatutoryLimits
$1,000,000eachaccident
$ I,000,000diseaseeachemployee
$1,000,000diseasepolicy limit

This letterconstitutesour certificateof insuranceasit appliesto thesponsoredactivitiesof The
University ofMichigan.

Pleaselet me know if you haveany questions.

BestRegards,

Chip Hartke
Risk ManagementServices
ehartke@umich.edu



Exhibit E

The Universityof Michigan

Risk ManagementServices

Argus II Building
400 S. FourthStreet
Ann Arbor, M[ 48103-4816
Office: 734-764-2200
Facsimile: 734-763-2043

November9,2009

Re: Evidenceof Insuranceasrespectssponsoredactivitiesof theUniversity ofMichigan
(includingMerit Network)

To Whom It May Concern:

The following is providedasevidenceof the Universityof MichiganWorkersCompensationself-
insuranceprogram. This programis a fully funded,non-cancelableplanwith thefollowing limits.

Workers'CompensationInsurance
EmployersLiability Insurance

StatutoryLimits
$1,000,000eachaccident
$ I,000,000diseaseeachemployee
$1,000,000diseasepolicy limit

This letterconstitutesour certificateof insuranceas it appliesto the sponsoredactivitiesof The
UniversityofMichigan.

Pleaselet me know if you haveanyquestions.

BestRegards,

Chip Hartke
Risk ManagementServices
ehartke(@umich.edu



METRO Act Permit
BilateralForm

Revised12/06/02

RIGHT-OF-WAY
TELECOMMUNICATIONS PERMIT

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1 Definitions

1.1 CompanyshallmeanMerit Network Incorporatedorganizedunderthe lawsof the
Stateof Michigan whoseaddressis 1000OakbrookDrive, Suite200, Ann Arbor,
MI 48104.

1.2 EffectiveDateshall meanthedatesetforth in Part13.

1.3 ManagershallmeanMunicipality's Clerkor his or herdesignee.

1.4 METRO Act shall meanthe MetropolitanExtensionTelecommunicationsRights-
of-Way OversightAct, Act No. 48 ofthePublicActs of2002,asamended.

1.5 Municipality shallmeanCity of Adrian, aMichiganmunicipalcorporation.

1.6 Permitshallmeanthis document.

1.7 Public Right-of-Way shall meanthe areaon, below, or abovea public roadway,
highway, street,alley, easement,or waterway,to the extentMunicipality hasthe
ability to grantthe rights setforth herein. Public right-of-way doesnot includea
federal,state,or privateright-of-way.

1.8 TelecommunicationFacilities or Facilitiesshall meanthe Company'sequipment
or personalproperty, such as copper and fiber cables, lines, wires, switches,
conduits,pipes,andsheaths,which areusedto or cangenerate,receive,transmit,
carry, amplify, or provide telecommunication services or signals.
TelecommunicationFacilities or Facilities do not include antennas,supporting
structuresfor antennas,equipmentsheltersor houses,andanyancillaryequipment
and miscellaneoushardware used to provide federally licensed commercial
mobile service as defined in Section 332(d) of Part I of Title III of the
CommunicationsAct of 1934, Chapter652, 48 Stat. 1064, 47 U.S.C. 332 and
further definedas commercialmobile radio servicein 47 CFR 20.3, and service
providedby anywireless,2-waycommunicationsdevice.

1.9 Termshallhavethemeaningsetforth in Part7.



2 Grant

2.1 Municipality hereby grants a pennit under the METRO Act to Companyfor
accessto and ongoinguse of the Public Right-of-Way to construct,install and
maintainTelecommunicationFacilities in thoseportionsof the Public Right-of-
Way identifiedonExhibit A onthe termssetforth herein.

2.1.1 Exhibit A may be modified by written requestby Companyandapproval
by Manager.

2.1.2 Manager shall not unreasonablycondition or deny any request for a
modification of Exhibit A. Any decisionof Manageron a requestfor a
modification may be appealedby Companyto Municipality's legislative
body.

2.2 Overlashing. Companyshall not allow the wires or any otherfacilities of a third
partyto beoverlashedto theTelecommunicationFacilitieswithout Municipality's
prior written consent. Municipality's right to withhold written consentis subject
to the authorityof theMichiganPublic ServiceCommissionunderSection361 of
theMichiganTelecommunicationsAct, MCL § 484.2361.

2.3 Nonexclusive. The rights grantedby this Permitarenonexclusive. Municipality
reservesthe right to approve,at any time, additional permits for accessto and
ongoingusageof the Public Right-of-Wayby telecommunicationsprovidersand
to enter into agreementsfor use of the Public Right-of-Way with and grant
franchisesfor useof the Public Right-of-Way to telecommunicationsproviders,
cablecompanies,utilities andotherproviders.

3 Contacts,MapsandPlans

3.1 Company Contacts. The names,addressesand the like for engineeringand
construction related information for Company and its Telecommunication
Facilitiesareasfollows:

3.1.1 The address,e-mail address,phonenumberand contactperson(title or
name) at Company'slocal office (in or near Municipality) is Robert
Duncan,1000Oakbrook,Suite200,Ann Arbor, MI 48104. Ph#734-527-
5700. Email rduncan@merit.edu.

3.1.2 If Company'sengineeringdrawings,as-builtplansandrelatedrecordsfor
the TelecommunicationFacilitieswill not be locatedat theprecedinglocal
office, the location address,phonenumberand contactperson(title or
department)for themis _
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3.1.3 The name, title, address,e-mail addressand telephone numbers of
Company's engineering contact person(s) with responsibility for the
design, plans and constructionof the TelecommunicationFacilities is
Merit Network, Inc., Robert Duncan, 1000 Oakbrook, Suite 200, Ann
Arbor, MI 48104. Ph#734-527-5700.Email rduncan@merit.edu.

The address,phonenumberandcontactperson(title or department)at Company's
home office/regional office with responsibility for engineering and
constructionrelatedaspectsof the TelecommunicationFacilities is Merit
Network, Inc., RobertDuncan,1000Oakbrook,Suite200,Ann Arbor, MI
48104. Ph#734-527-5700.Email rduncan@merit.edu.

3.1.4 Companyshall at all times provide Managerwith the phonenumberat
which a live representativeof Company(not voice mail) can be reached
24 hoursa day, seven(7) daysa week,in theeventof apublic emergency.
Phonenumber:734-763-3448.

3.1.5 The precedinginformationis accurateasof the Effective Date. Company
shall notify Municipality in writing as set forth in Part 12 of any changes
in theprecedinginformation.

3.2 Route Maps. Within ninety (90) days after the substantial completion of
constructionof new Facilities in a Municipality, a provider shall submit route
maps showing the location of the TelecommunicationFacilities to both the
Michigan Public ServiceCommissionandto the Municipality, as requiredunder
Section6(7) of theMETRO Act, MCLA 484.3106(7).

3.3 As-Built Records. Company,without expenseto Municipality, shall, upon forty-
eight (48) hoursnotice, give Municipality accessto all "as-built" maps,records,
plans and specificationsshowing the TelecommunicationFacilities or portions
thereofin the Public Right-of-Way. Upon requestby Municipality, Company
shall inform Municipality as soon as reasonablypossibleof any changesfrom
previouslysuppliedmaps,records,or plansand shall mark up mapsprovidedby
Municipality so asto showthe locationof the TelecommunicationFacilities.

4 Useof PublicRight-of-Way

4.1 No Burden on Public Right-of-Way. Company,its contractors,subcontractors,
and the TelecommunicationFacilities shall not unduly burdenor interferewith
the presentor future use of any of the Public Right-of-Way. Company'saerial
cablesand wires shall be suspendedso as to not endangeror injure personsor
property in or about the Public Right-of-Way. If Municipality reasonably
determinesthat any portion of the TelecommunicationFacilities constitutesan
undueburdenor interference,dueto changedcircumstances,Company,at its sole
expense,shallmodify theTelecommunicationFacilitiesor takesuchotheractions
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burden,and Companyshall do so within a reasonabletime period. Municipality
shall attemptto requireall occupantsof a pole or conduit whosefacilities are a
burdento removeor alleviatetheburdenconcurrently.

4.2 No Priority. This Permit does not establishany priority of use of the Public
Right-of-Way by Companyoveranypresentor future permitteesor partieshaving
agreementswith Municipality or franchisesfor such use. In the event of any
disputeas to thepriority of useof the Public Right-of-Way, the first priority shall
be to thepublic generally,the secondpriority to Municipality, the third priority to
the Stateof Michigan and its political subdivisionsin the performanceof their
variousfunctions,and thereafteras betweenotherpermit, agreementor franchise
holders,asdeterminedby Municipality in theexerciseof its powers,includingthe
police power and other powersreservedto and conferredon it by the Stateof
Michigan.

4.3 Restorationof Property. Company, its contractorsand subcontractorsshall
immediately (subjectto seasonalwork restrictions)restore,at Company'ssole
expense,in a mannerapprovedby Municipality, any portion of the Public Right-
of-Way that is in any way disturbed,damaged,or injured by the construction,
installation, operation, maintenanceor removal of the Telecommunication
Facilitiesto a reasonablyequivalent(or, at Company'soption,better)conditionas
that which existed prior to the disturbance. In the event that Company, its
contractorsor subcontractorsfail to make suchrepair within a reasonabletime,
Municipality may makethe repairandCompanyshall pay the costsMunicipality
incurredfor suchrepair.

4.4 Marking. Company shall mark the TelecommunicationFacilities as follows:
Aerial portions of the TelecommunicationFacilities shall be marked with a
markeron Company'slineson alternatepoleswhich shall stateCompany'sname
andprovide a toll-free numberto call for assistance.Direct buriedunderground
portions of the TelecommunicationFacilities shall have (1) a conductingwire
placedin the groundat leastseveralinchesaboveCompany'scable(if suchcable
is nonconductive);(2) at leastseveralinchesabovethat, a continuouscoloredtape
with a statementto the effect that thereis buriedcablebeneath;and(3) stakesor
other appropriateabove ground markerswith Company'snameand a toll-free
numberindicatingthat thereis buriedtelephonecablebelow. Boredunderground
portionsof the TelecommunicationFacilities shall havea conductingwire at the
samedepth as the cable and shall not be required to provide the continuous
colored tape. Portionsof the TelecommunicationFacilities locatedin conduit,
includingconduitof othersusedby Company,shall bemarkedat its entranceinto
and exit from eachmanholeand handhole withCompany'snameand a toll-free
telephonenumber.

4.5 Tree Trimming. Companymay trim trees upon and overhangingthe Public
Right-of-Way so as to prevent the branchesof such trees from coming into



contact with the TelecommunicationFacilities, consistentwith any standards
adoptedby Municipality. Company shall dispose of all trimmed materials.
Companyshall minimize the trimming of treesto that essentialto maintainthe
integrity of the TelecommunicationFacilities. Except in emergencies,all
trimming of treesin the Public Right-of-Wayshall havethe advanceapprovalof
Manager.

4.6 Installation and Maintenance. The construction and installation of the
TelecommunicationFacilities shall be perfonnedpursuantto plansapprovedby
Municipality. Theopencut of anyPublic Right-of-Wayshallbecoordinatedwith
the Manager or his designee. Company shall install and maintain the
TelecommunicationFacilitiesin a reasonablysafecondition. If the existingpoles
in the Public Right-of-Wayare overburdenedor unavailablefor Company'suse,
or the facilities of all usersof the poles are required to go undergroundthen
Company shall, at its expense,place such portion of its Telecommunication
Facilities underground, unless Municipality approves an alternate location.
Companymayperfonnmaintenanceon the TelecommunicationFacilitieswithout
prior approvalof Municipality, providedthat Companyshall obtain any and all
pennitsrequiredby Municipality in the eventthatanymaintenancewill disturbor
block vehiculartraffic or areotherwiserequiredby Municipality.

4.7 PavementCut Coordination.Companyshall coordinateits constructionand all
other work in the Public Right-of-Way with Municipality's programfor street
constructionand rebuilding (collectively "StreetConstruction")and its program
for street repaving and resurfacing (except seal coating and patching)
(collectively,"StreetResurfacing").

4.7.1 The goalsof suchcoordinationshall be to encourageCompanyto conduct
all work in the Public Right-of-Way in conjunctionwith or immediately
prior to any Street Construction or Street Resurfacing planned by
Municipality.

4.8 Compliance with Laws. Company shall comply with all laws, statutes,
ordinances,rules and regulations regarding the construction, installation, and
maintenanceof its TelecommunicationFacilities,whetherfederal, stateor local,
now in force or which hereaftermay be promulgated. Before any installationis
commenced,Companyshall secure allnecessarypennits,licensesandapprovals
from Municipality or other governmentalentity as may be required by law,
including, without limitation, all utility line pennits and highway pennits.
Municipality shall not unreasonablydelayor deny issuanceof any suchpennits,
licensesor approvals. Companyshall comply in all respectswith applicable
codesand industrystandards,including but not limited to the National Electrical
SafetyCode(latesteditionadoptedby MichiganPublicServiceCommission)and
theNationalElectricCode(latestedition). Companyshall complywith all zoning
andland useordinancesandhistoric preservationordinancesasmay existor may
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hereafterbe amended. This sectiondoesnot constitutea waiver of Company's
right to challengelaws, statutes,ordinances,rules or regulationsnow in force or
establishedin the future.

4.9 StreetVacation. If Municipality vacatesor consentsto the vacationof Public
Right-of-Way within its jurisdiction, and suchvacationnecessitatesthe removal
and relocation of Company'sFacilities in the vacated Public Right-of-Way,
Companyshall, asa conditionof this Permit,consentto the vacationandremove
its Facilitiesat its solecostandexpensewhenorderedto do soby Municipality or
a court of competentjurisdiction. Companyshall relocateits Facilities to such
alternaterouteasMunicipality andCompanymutuallyagree,applyingreasonable
engineeringstandards.

4.10 Relocation. If Municipality requestsCompany to relocate, protect, support,
disconnect,or remove its Facilities becauseof streetor utility work, or other
public projects,Companyshall relocate,protect,support, disconnect,or remove
its Facilities, at its sole cost and expense,including where necessaryto such
alternaterouteasMunicipality andCompanymutuallyagree,applyingreasonable
engineeringstandards. The work shall be completedwithin a reasonabletime
period.

4.11 Public Emergency. Municipality shall havethe right to sever,disrupt, dig-up or
otherwisedestroyFacilitiesof Companyif suchaction is necessarybecauseof a
public emergency. If reasonableto do so underthe circumstances,Municipality
shall attempt to provide notice to Company. Public emergencyshall be any
conditionwhich posesan immediatethreatto life, health, or propertycausedby
any natural or man-madedisaster,including, but not limited to, storms, floods,
fire, accidents,explosions,water main breaks, hazardousmaterial spills, etc.
Companyshall be responsiblefor repairat its solecostandexpenseof any of its
Facilitiesdamagedpursuantto anysuchactiontakenby Municipality.

4.12 Miss Dig. If eligible to join, Companyshall subscribeto and be a memberof
"MISS DIG, ti the associationof utilities formed pursuantto Act 53 of the Public
Acts of 1974,as amended,MCL § 460.701et seq.,and shall conductits business
in conformance with the statutory provisions and regulations promulgated
thereunder.

4.13 UndergroundRelocation. If Companyhas its Facilities on polesof Consumers
Energy, Detroit Edison or anotherelectric or telecommunicationsprovider and
ConsumersEnergy,Detroit Edisonor suchother electric or telecommunications
provider relocates its system underground,then Company shall relocate its
Facilitiesundergroundin thesamelocationat Company'ssalecostandexpense.

4.14 Identification. All personnelof Companyand its contractorsor subcontractors
who haveaspart of their normaldutiescontactwith the generalpublic shall wear
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on their clothing a clearly visible identification card bearingCompany'sname,
their nameandphotograph.Companyshall accountfor all identificationcardsat
all times. Every servicevehicleof Companyand its contractorsor subcontractors
shall be clearly identified as suchto the public, suchas by a magneticsign with
Company'snameandtelephonenumber.

5 Indemnification

5.1 Indemnity. Company shall defend, indemnify, protect, and hold harmless
Municipality, its officers, agents,employees,elected and appointed officials,
departments,boards,and commissionsfrom any andall claims, losses,liabilities,
causesof action,demands,judgments,decrees,proceedings,andexpensesof any
nature (collectively "claim" for this Part 5) (including, without limitation,
attorneys'fees)arisingout of or resultingfrom theactsor omissionsof Company,
its officers, agents,employees,contractors,successors,or assigns,but only to the
extentsuchactsor omissionsarerelatedto theCompany'suseof or installationof
facilities in the Public Right-of-Way and only to the extent of the fault or
responsibilityof Company,its officers, agents,employees,contractors,successors
andassigns.

5.2 Notice, Cooperation. Municipality shall notify Companypromptly in writing of
any such claim and the method and means proposed by Municipality for
defendingor satisfyingsuchclaim. Municipality shall cooperatewith Company
in everyreasonableway to facilitate the defenseof any suchclaim. Municipality
shall consultwith Companyrespectingthe defenseandsatisfactionof suchclaim,
includingthe selectionanddirectionof legal counsel.

5.3 Settlement. Municipality shall not settle any claim subject to indemnification
underthis Part5 without theadvancewritten consentof Company,which consent
shall not be unreasonablywithheld. Companyshall have the right to defendor
settle,at its own expense,any claim againstMunicipality for which Companyis
responsiblehereunder.

6 Insurance

6.1 CoverageRequired. Prior to beginningany constructionin or installationof the
TelecommunicationFacilities in the Public Right-of-Way, Companyshall obtain
insurance as set forth below and file certificates evidencing same with
Municipality. Suchinsuranceshall bemaintainedin full force andeffectuntil the
end of the Term. In the alternative, Companymay satisfy this requirement
through a program of self-insurance,acceptableto Municipality, by providing
reasonableevidenceof its financial resourcesto Municipality. Municipality's
acceptanceof suchself-insuranceshall not beunreasonablywithheld.
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6.1.1 Commercialgeneralliability insurance,including CompletedOperations
Liability, Independent Contractors Liability, Contractual Liability
coverage,railroad protectivecoverageand coveragefor propertydamage
from perils of explosion, collapse or damageto undergroundutilities,
commonly known as XCV coverage,in an amount not less than Five
Million Dollars ($5,000,000).

6.1.2 Liability insurance for sudden and accidental environmental
contaminationwith minimum limits of Five HundredThousandDollars
($500,000)and providing coveragefor claimsdiscoveredwithin three(3)
yearsafterthe termofthepolicy.

6.1.3 Automobile liability insurancein an amountnot less than One Million
Dollars($1,000,000).

6.1.4 Workers' compensationand employer'sliability insurancewith statutory
limits, and anyapplicableFederalinsuranceofasimilarnature.

6.1.5 The coverageamountsset forth abovemay be met by a combinationof
underlying(primary) and umbrellapoliciesso long as in combinationthe
limits equalor exceedthosestated. If more than one insurancepolicy is
purchasedto provide the coverageamounts set forth above, then all
policies providing coveragelimits excessto the primary policy shall
provide drop down coverageto the first dollar of coverageand other
contractualobligationsof the primary policy, should the primary policy
carriernot be able to perform any of its contractualobligationsor not be
collectible for any of its coveragesfor any reasonduring the Term, or
(whenlonger) for as long ascoverage couldhavebeenavailablepursuant
to thetermsandconditionsof theprimarypolicy.

6.2 Additional Insured. Municipality shall be namedas an additional insuredon all
policies (other than worker's compensationand employer's liability). All
insurancepolicies shall provide that they shall not be canceled,modified or not
renewedunlessthe insurancecarrierprovidesthirty (30) daysprior written notice
to Municipality. Companyshall annuallyprovideMunicipality with a certificate
of insuranceevidencing such coverage. All insurance policies (other than
environmental contamination,workers' compensationand employer's liability
insurance)shallbewritten on an occurrencebasisandnot on a claimsmadebasis.

6.3 Qualified Insurers. All insuranceshall be issuedby insurancecarrierslicensedto
do businessby the Stateof Michigan or by surplusline carrierson the Michigan
InsuranceCommissionapprovedlist of companiesqualified to do businessin
Michigan. All insuranceand surplusline carriersshall be ratedA+ or betterby
A.M. BestCompany.
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6.4 Deductibles. If the insurancepolicies required by this Part 6 are written with
retainagesor deductiblesin excessof $50,000,theyshall beapprovedby Manager
in advancein writing. Companyshall indemnify andsaveharmlessMunicipality
from and againstthe paymentof any deductibleand from the paymentof any
premiumon any insurancepolicy requiredto befurnishedhereunder.

6.5 Contractors. Company'scontractorsand subcontractors workingin the Public
Right-of-Way shall carry in full force and effect commercialgeneral liability,
environmental contamination liability, automobile liability and workers'
compensationand employerliability insurancewhich complieswith all termsof
this Part 6. In the alternative, Company, at its expense,may provide such
coveragesfor any or all its contractorsor subcontractors(suchas by addingthem
to Company'spolicies).

6.6 InsurancePrimary. Company'sinsurancecoverageshall be primary insurance
with respect to Municipality, its officers, agents, employees, elected and
appointedofficials, departments,boards,and commissions(collectively "them").
Any insuranceor self-insurancemaintainedby any of them shall be in excessof
Company'sinsuranceand shall not contributeto it (where "insuranceor self-
insurancemaintained by any of them" includes any contract or agreement
providinganytypeof indemnificationor defenseobligationprovidedto, or for the
benefit of them, from any source,and includes any self-insuranceprogram or
policy, or self-insuredretentionor deductibleby, for or on behalfof them).

7 Term

7.1 Term. The term("Term") of this Permitshall beuntil the earlierof:

7.1.1 Fifteen years (15) from the Effective Date; provided, however, that
following suchinitial term there shall be three subsequentrenewalterms
of five (5) years. Each renewal term shall be automatic unless
Municipality notifies Company in writing, at least twelve (12) months
prior to the end of any term then in effect, that due to changed
circumstancesa need exists to negotiatethe subsequentrenewal with
Company. Municipality shall not unreasonablydenya renewalterm; or

7.1.2 When the TelecommunicationFacilities have not beenused to provide
telecommunicationsservicesfor a periodof onehundredandeighty (180)
daysby theCompanyor a successorof anassignof theCompany;or

7.1.3 WhenCompany,at its electionandwith or without cause,deliverswritten
notice of termination to Municipality at least one-hundredand eighty
(180)daysprior to thedateof suchtermination;or
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7.1.4 UponeitherCompanyor Municipality giving written noticeto theotherof
the occurrenceor existenceof a defaultby the otherparty underSections
4.8, 6, 8 or 9 of this Permit and suchdefaulting party failing to cure, or
commencegood faith efforts to cure,suchdefault within sixty (60) days
(or such shorterperiod of time providedelsewherein this Permit) after
deliveryof suchnotice;or

7.1.5 UnlessManagergrantsa written extension,one year from the Effective
Date if prior thereto Company has not started the constructionand
installationof the TelecommunicationFacilities within the Public Right-
of-Way andtwo yearsfrom theEffectiveDateifby suchtime construction
andinstallationof theTelecommunicationFacilitiesis not complete.

8 PerformanceBondor LetterofCredit

8.1 Municipal Requirement. Municipality may requireCompanyto post a bond (or
letter of credit) as provided in Section 15(3) of the METRO Act, as amended
[MCL § 484.3115(3)J.

9 Fees

9.1 Establishment;Reservation.The METRO Act shall control the establishmentof
right-of-way fees. The partiesreservetheir respectiverights regardingthe nature
andamountof any feeswhich maybechargedby Municipality in connectionwith
thePublicRight-of-Way.

10 Removal

10.1 Removal;Underground. As soonas practicableafter the Term, Companyor its
successorsand assignsshall removeany undergroundcableor otherportionsof
the TelecommunicationFacilities from the Public Right-of-Waywhich hasbeen
installed in such a mannerthat it can be removedwithout trenching or other
openingof the Public Right-of-Way.Companyshall not removeanyunderground
cable or other portions of the TelecommunicationFacilities which requires
trenching or other opening of the Public Right-of-Way except with the prior
written approvalof Manager. All removalsshall be at Company'ssolecostand
expense.

10.1.1 For purposesof this Part 10, "cable" meansany wire, coaxial cable,fiber
optic cable,feedwire or pull wire.

10.2 Removal;Above Ground. As soonaspracticableafterthe Term, Company,or its
successoror assignsat its salecostand expense,shall, unlesswaived in writing
by Manager,removefrom the Public Right-of-Wayall abovegroundelementsof
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its TelecommunicationFacilities, including but not limited to poles, pedestal
mountedterminalboxes,andlinesattachedto or suspendedfrom poles.

10.3 Schedule. The scheduleand timing of removal shall be subjectto approvalby
Manager. Unlessextendedby Manager,removalshallbe completednot laterthan
twelve (12) months following the Term. Portions of the Telecommunication
Facilities in the Public Right-of-Way which are not removedwithin such time
periodshall be deemedabandonedand,at theoptionof Municipality exercisedby
written noticeto Companyassetforth in Part 12, title to theportionsdescribedin
suchnoticeshall vestin Municipality.

11 Assignment. Companymay assignor transferits rights underthis Permit,or thepersons
or entities controlling Company may change, in whole or in part, voluntarily,
involuntarily, or by operationof law, includingby mergeror consolidation,changein the
ownershipor controlof Company'sbusiness,or by othermeans,subjectto the following:

11.1 No such transferor assignmentor changein the control of Companyshall be
effective under this Permit, without Municipality's prior approval (not to be
unreasonablywithheld), during the time period from the Effective Dateuntil the
completion of the constructionof the TelecommunicationFacilities in those
portionsof thePublicRight-of-Wayidentifiedon Exhibit A.

11.2 After the completion of such construction,Company must provide notice to
Municipality of suchtransfer,assignmentor changein control no laterthanthirty
(30) daysaftersuchoccurrence;provided,however,

11.2.1 Any transfereeor assigneeof this Permit shall be qualified to perfOlm
under its termsand conditionsand comply with applicablelaw; shall be
subjectto the obligationsof this Permit, including responsibilityfor any
defaultswhich occurredprior to the transferor assignment;shall supply
Municipality with the information requiredunder Section3.1; and shall
comply with any updatedinsuranceand perfonnancebond requirements
underSections6 and8 respectively,which Municipality reasonablydeems
necessary,and

11.2.2 In the eventof a changein control, it shall not be to an entity lacking the
qualificationsto assureCompany'sability to performunderthe termsand
conditionsof this Peffilit and comply with applicablelaw; and Company
shall comply with any updated insurance and performance bond
requirementsunder Sections6 and 8 respectively,which Municipality
reasonablydeemsnecessary.

11.3 Companymay granta securityinterestin this Permit, its rights thereunderor the
TelecommunicationFacilitiesat anytime without notifying Municipality.
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12 Notices

12.1 Notices. All noticesunderthis Permitshall begivenasfollows:

12.1.1 If to Municipality, to 135 E. MaumeeSt. 2nd Floor, Adrian, MI 49221

12.1.2 If to Company,to Merit Network, Inc., RobertDuncan,1000Oakbrook,
Suite 200, Ann Arbor, MI 48104. Ph# 734-527-5700. Email
rduncan@merit.edu.

12.2 Changeof Address. Company and Municipality may changeits addressor
personnelfor the receiptof noticesat any time by giving notice thereofto the
otherassetforth above.

13 Otheritems

13.1 No Cable,OVS. This Permitdoesnot authorizeCompanyto providecommercial
cable type servicesto the public, such as "cable service" or the servicesof an
"open video system operator" (as such terms are defined in the Federal
CommunicationsAct of 1934and implementingregulations,currently47 U.S.c.
§§ 522(6), 573 and47 CFR § 76.1500).

13.2 Duties. Companyshall faithfully performall dutiesrequiredby this Permit.

13.3 Effective Date. This Permitshall becomeeffectivewhen issuedby Municipality
andCompanyhasprovidedany insurancecertificatesand bondsrequiredin Parts
6 and8, andsignedtheacceptanceof thePermit.

13.4 Authority. This Permit satisfiesthe requirementfor a pennitunderSection5 of
theMETRO Act [MCL 484.3105].

13.5 Amendment. Exceptas set forth in Section2.1 this Pennitmay be amendedby
thewritten agreementof Municipality andCompany.

13.6 Interpretationand Severability. The provisionsof this Permit shall be liberally
construedto protect and preservethe peace,health, safety and welfare of the
public, and should any provision or section of this Permit be held
unconstitutional, invalid, overbroad or otherwise unenforceable, such
determination/holdingshall not beconstruedasaffectingthevalidity of anyof the
remainingconditionsof this Permit. If any provisionin this Permitis found to be
partially overbroad,unenforceable,or invalid, Companyand Municipality may
neverthelessenforcesuchprovisionto the extentpermittedunderapplicablelaw.

13.7 Governing Law. This Permit shall be governedby the laws of the State of
Michigan.
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Attest:
By: _

Clerk

City of Adrian

Signature: _
Print:----------------Title: _
Date: _

"Companyacceptsthe Permit grantedby Municipality upon the termsand conditionscontained
therein."

Merit Network, Inc.

Signalme: U ){JI
Print: RobertStovall

Title: Vice President,NetworkEngineering&
Operations

Date: SEP 0 1 20to
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Rl0-127 October 18, 2010

RE: ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT - Approval of Metro Act Application from
Merit Network, Inc.

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, Merit Network, Inc. has requested approval of their application for
a METRO Act Telecommunications Right-of-Way Permit for a period of fifteen (15)
years to allow them to work in certain City of Adrian right-of-ways; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer and City Attorney have reviewed the application
and recommend Merit Network, Inc,'s application be approved.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission does
hereby approve Merit Network, Inc.'s METRO Act Permit application for a period of
fifteen (15) years under the terms and conditions as outlined in the Right-of-Way
Telecommunication Permit.

On motion by Commissioner , seconded by

Commissioner , this resolution was

_______ by a vote.



MEMO _
DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

October13, 2010

HonorableMayor andCity Commission

DaneC. Nelson,City Administrator

Annual Snow& Ice RemovalBids

Bids werereceivedOctober7, 2010for annualsnowremovalfrom privatesidewalks,
miscellaneouscity propertiesandalongrailroadproperties. AlthoughVanErt'sLawn Service
wasthe low bidderandtheymaintainanoffice from aresidencein Adrian, theydo not pay
personalpropertytaxeson their equipment.For this reason,theCity Engineerhasrecommended
that the bid beawardedto SlusarskiExcavatingandI concur.

Removalof snowfrom privatewalks will beassessedto thepropertyowners. Snowremoval
from city propertiesandalongrailroadcrossingswill comefrom theMajor StreetFund
MaintenanceAccount. I urgeyour favorableconsiderationauthorizingSlusarskiExcavatingto
performthis annualservice.

Respectfullysubmitted,

City Administrator

DCN:bjw



October 11, 2010

MEMORANDUM

TO: Dane Nelson, City Administrator

FROM: Kristin Bauer, City Engineer

SUBJECT: Sidewalk Snow & Ice Removal 10-11

We received bids for sidewalk snow removal for the 2010-11 winter within the
City. This contract includes two parts; part one is for the cleaning of properties
along the railroad properties during most winter storm events and part two is for
private walk cleaning on an as needed basis throughout the winter.

The bid tabulations are as follows:

ITEM Slusarski Excavating Van Ert's Lawn Service F&S Landscape Inc.
Adrian, MI Adrian, MJ Tecumseh, MI

13 Railroad Crossings & $445.00 per event $420.00 per event $475.00 per event
Misc
Private Walks - per SF $ .39 $ .40 $.50

Photos - each $ 5.00 $ 3.00 $ 5.50

While Van Ert's LLC is the low bidder and they maintain an office from a
residence within the city limits of Adrian, they do not pay personal property taxes
on their equipment within the City, as such it is recommended award of this bid to
Slusarski Excavating & Paving, Inc. as they are low bidder on this project and
within the limits of the City's local preference policy.

Funds for this snow removal of the railroad crossings and miscellaneous
properties will be drawn from the Major Street Fund Winter Maintenance account
(202-478.000-801.111) and are available. Any work on the personal property
snow removal will be assessed directly to the property owners where the work
was completed.



Rl0-128 October 18, 2010

RE: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS -Sidewalk Snow & Ice Removal
Contract

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Adrian City Commission, by Resolution #10-057 dated May 3,
2010, adopted the FY2010-11 Budget and General Appropriations Act, which
included $6,000.00 in the Major Street Fund - Winter Maintenance account (202-
478.000-801.111) for the City's Sidewalk Snow & Ice Removal Program; and

WHEREAS, bids were solicited by the Purchasing Office and three (3) bid
proposals were submitted on Thursday, October 7, 2010, as follows:

Service
Labor! Equip &
Material Per Sq. Ft.

Photos

13 Railroad Crossings
& Misc. Properties

Slusarski Excavating
Adrian, MI

$ 0.39

$ 5.00

$445.00

Van Ert's Lawn Svc.
Adrian! MI

$ 0040

$ 3.00

$420.00

F & S Landscape
Tecumseh, MI

$ 0.50

$ 5.50

$475.00

WHEREAS, snow removal from railroad crossings and miscellaneous city
properties is the responsibility of the City; any work on private property snow
removal will be assessed directly to property owners where the work is done; and

WHEREAS! the Finance Director indicates that sufficient funds are available in
the FY2008-09 Major Street Fund - Winter Maintenance Budget (Account #202-
478.00-801.111 Contract Services) for the railroad crossings; and.

WHEREAS, consistent with the City's Local Preference Policy, the City
Engineer and City Administrator recommend acceptance of the bid from Slusarski
Excavating, Adrian, MI at a price of $0.39 per square foot, $5.00 for photos and
$445.000 per event to remove snow from Railroad Crossings; and

NOW, THEREFORE! BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission, by this
resolution, hereby authorizes the acceptance of the bid from Slusarski Excavating,
Adrian, MI at a price of $0.39 per square foot, and $5.00 for photos for the FY2010-
11 City's Sidewalk Snow & Ice Removal Program and $445.000 per event to remove
snow from railroad crossings.

On motion by Commissioner seconded

by Commissioner , this resolution was _

by a, vote.



MEMO _

DATE: October13, 2010

TO: HonorableMayor andCity Commission

FROM: DaneC. Nelson,City Administrator

SUBJECT: Design/SurveyServices- BeecherStreetReconstructionProject

TheCity of Adrian andthe LenaweeCountyRoadCommissionhavebeenawardedgrant
funding from MDOT for thereconstructionof BeecherStreet. TheCity'sportionof thegrant
will includeBeecherfrom TreatSt., eastto thecity limits. Quotesfor this projectwererequested
from AssociatedEngineers& Surveyors(AES), who recentlywasawardedthebid for theBent
Oakreconstructionproject. AES submittedaquotein theamountof $17,900.00for theBeecher
StreetprojectandtheCity Engineerfeels it is a very competitiveprice.

TheCity Charterallows thebid processto bewaivedwhenit is determinedthatno advantageto
theCity would resultin obtainingadditionalquotes. I, therefore,urgeyour favorable
considerationauthorizingAES to performdesign/surveyservicesfor theCity's portionof the
BeecherStreetprojectat a costof $17,900.00andthatthebid processbewaived.

Respectfullysubmitted,

Da/JIj:L
City Administrator

DCN:bjw



October 12, 2010

MEMORANDUM

TO: Dane Nelson, City Administrator

FROM: Kristin Bauer, City Engineer

SUBJECT: Design/Survey Services - Beecher St.

We received a quote for Engineering Services on the Beecher Street re-
construction project. This project is a grant funded project through the Michigan
Department of Transportation Office of Economic Development. This project will
be designed and constructed in a joint project with the Lenawee County Road
Commission from Treat Street, within the City, to Parr Highway, in the township.

The City and County have separately requested prices from Associated
Engineers and Surveyors (AES) for engineering work on these projects.
Recently the City had secured bids from several engineering firms for the
reconstruction work on Bent Oak Ave. which was a similar size and style of
project. During this bid process AES was the low bidder and since the City has
successfully completed several projects in the past with AES we felt we would
receive a competitive price for the work on Beecher Street.

We recommend award of this project to Associated Engineers & Surveyors, Inc.
of Adrian, MI in the amount of $17,900.00. This consultant has performed this
type of work for the City of Adrian in previous years and has executed their work
in an excellent manner.

Funds for this Engineering will be taken from the Major Street Fund balance.



237 North Main Street Steven A. Young, P.S.
Adrian, Michigan 49221 Miguel D. Vargas, P.E.
Phone: (517) 263-4515 Kevin l. Pickford, P.S.
Fax: (517) 263-4535

Associated Engineers and Surveyors, Inc.
CIVIL ENGINEERS • LAND SURVEYORS

September 30,2010

Mr. Kristin Bauer, P.E., City Engineer
City of Adrian
135 East Maumee Street
Adrian, Michigan 49221

Project: Beecher Street - Treat Street to City Limits

RE: Request For Proposal- Engineering Services

Associated Engineers and Surveyors, Inc. (AES) is pleased to provide the City of Adrian
with the following proposal for engineering and surveying services for the project noted
above.

AES will prepare plans, specifications, special provisions and cost estimates in
accordance with the Michigan Department of Transportation (MOOn 4R requirements
for improvements to Beecher Street from Treat Street, East to the City of Adrian Limits.
The scope of services we propose to complete for the design of this project is
summarized as follows:

Research
AES staff will research all available documents and data sources available to
establish necessary design controls such as: right of way, pavement types,
centerline information, etc. AES will perform this task prior beginning any design
work on the project.

Field Survey
Associated Engineers and Surveyors, Inc. will dispatch a survey crew to the site to
perform the field survey. The field survey shall include the following:

• All physical features within 50 feet of the existing centerline of right-of-way.
• AES will establish the existing centerline of right-of-way based on available

documentation and other field data collected during the survey.
• Centerline of right-of-way monumentation will be identified and placed as

necessary. Three (3) witness ties will be included for each ROW monument
found or set.

• AES personnel will set benchmarks every 500 feet within the project limits.
Locations and descriptions of the benchmarks will be included in the project
documents.

• Cross sections of the roadway will be taken at 100 foot intervals, and as
necessary, within the project limits.



• Topographical data will be collected at side roads, a distance of 200 feet from
the edge of metal of Beecher Street along the side street.

• AES will perform a drainage sUNey that will include the location of all
drainage structures and inverts within the project limits.

• All utilities within the project limits shall be located and identified on the plans.
Utility company names and other ownership data shall be included.

• All driveways within the project limits will be located. Driveway profiles and
alignments will be identified.

• Upon completion of the survey, a plot of all data will be provided to the City of
Adrian. In addition to the hardcopy plot of the survey, the electronic data
(fieldbook, CAD files, points, etc.) will also be provided upon request.

Pavement Appraisal
We will conduct a pavement appraisal and subsurface investigation. Pavement
cores will be obtained at a depth of 5 feet. A total of 4 pavement cores will be taken
within the 0.4 mile project limits. Upon completion of the cores, pavement subgrade
recommendations and pavement design shall be completed.

Pre-design Meeting
AES, in cooperation with the LCRC and the City of Adrian, will coordinate a pre·
design meeting to identify the specifics of the project prior to initiating any preliminary
design tasks. AES will facilitate the pre-design meeting and be responsible for
recording minutes of the meeting and distributing the minutes to all parties present.

Preliminary Design
Preliminary plans shall represent the 70 percent plan submittal. Plan and profile
sheets shall have a horizontal scale of 1"=40' and a vertical scale of 1"=4', The
horizontal and vertical alignment shall be based upon the latest AASHTO and MOOT
design criteria, as influenced by the MOOT 4R criteria where applicable. The
preliminary plans shall be submitted to the LCRC and the City of Adrian, and any
other affected agency or utility for review. All required design exceptions shall be
noted and sent to the City of Adrian for approval.

Permit Application Submittal
AES will prepare and submit all required permit applications as necessary for the
project. Permits from MOOT, MDNRE, the LCDC and other regulatory agencies
shall be included.

Preliminary Cost Estimates
A cost estimate will be prepared based on the preliminary quantities and current unit
prices from MOOT.

Utility Coordination
AES will send copies of the preliminary design plans to the utilities found to be within
the project limits for their review and comment. AES will also conduct a special
meeting, if requested, with all affected utilities. If a special meeting is not necessary,
all utilities will be invited to the Grade Inspection Meeting to discuss and review the
preliminary plans.



Grade Inspection Meeting
AES will attend a grade inspection meeting with the LCRC and the City of Adrian to
discuss and review the preliminary plans.

Meeting and Consultation
AES will be in attendance at the necessary meetings about the project (grade
inspection, pre-construction meeting, etc.), and will be available regularly throughout
the design process.

Traffic Control
AES will provide a Traffic Control Plan to be used during the construction phase of
the project to maintain traffic.

Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan
AES will provide will provide a Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan for the
project as required by Part 91 of the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection act 1994 PA 451 as amended.

Final Plans
AES will proceed with the development of the final plan set following receipt of
comments relating to the preliminary design submittal and the Grade Inspection
Meeting. All conflicts between agencies, utilities or interested parties shall be
resolved prior to the development of the final plan set. The City of Adrian and the
LCRC shall determine final decisions on such conflicts jointly. The final plans shall
meet MDOT plan submittal standards, and they shall include complete plans, details,
special provisions, supplemental specifications, and final quantities ready for loacl
bidding. A final engineer's cost estimate will be submitted with the final plans, along
with final quantity calculations.

Final Utility Coordination
AES will conduct a final utility coordination meeting if necessary. AES will furnish
final plans and facilitate the final utility meeting.

Schedule

We propose the following design schedule for this project:

Completion of field survey

Completion of pavement cores

Pre-design meeting

Completion of preliminary plans

Grade inspection meeting

Final plan submittal

October 29,2010

November 12, 2010

November 23, 2010

January 14, 2011

January 28, 2010

March 11, 2011



Proposal Valuation

We are prepared to complete the engineering and surveying design services as outlined
in this proposal for a lump sum fee of $17,900.

The project schedule identifies several milestone events. Payment for services rendered
shall be based on attaining these milestone events according to the following payment
schedule:

Completion of field survey $ 5,900

Completion of pavement cores $ 3,000

meeting $ 1,500

Completion of preliminary plans $ 3,500

Grade inspection meeting $ 1,500

Final plan submittal $ 2,500

We appreciate the opportunity to provide this proposal to the City of Adrian. If there
should be any questions regarding the content of the document, please do not hesitate
to call.

Sincerely,



Rl0-129 October18, 2010

RE: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS - Beecher Street from Treat to City
Limits - Design/Survey Services Contract

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, in conjunction with the Lenawee County Road Commission, the City of
Adrian has been awarded grant funding by the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT)
Office of Economic Development to reconstruct Beecher Street in FY2011-12from Treat Street
to the city limits and from the city limits to Parr Highway in Madison Township; and

WHEREAS, the design/survey services required for the proposed project are the
financial responsibility of the local authorities, while the grant funding is intended for the
actual reconstruction costs; and

WHEREAS, based on recently secured low bids for a similar project involving the
reconstruction of Bent Oak Avenue from Siena Heights Drive to the city limits, both the County
Road Commission and the City separately requested prices from Associated Engineers and
Surveyors (AES) for engineering work on the Beecher Street Project; and

WHEREAS, AES has submitted a quote of $17,900to perform the necessary design
services for the City's portion of the Beecher Street Project; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Director indicates that sufficient funds are available for this
project in the Major Street Fund (202) - Fund Balance account; and

WHEREAS, the City Administrator and City Engineer recommend approval of this
resolution authorizing the engagement of Associated Engineers and Surveyors (AES) in the
City's Standard Professional Services Contract to perform engineering work on the City's
portion of the Beecher Street Project at a cost not to exceed $17,900.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission, by this
resolution, hereby approves the engagement of Associated Engineers and Surveyors (AES) in
the City's Standard Professional Services Contract to perform engineering work on the City's
portion of the Beecher Street Project at a cost not to exceed $17,900.

BE IT, FURTHER, RESOLVED that, in the best interests of the City, the competitive bid
process be waived, in accordance with the City's Purchasing Policy as specified in Chapter 12
of the City Charter and Section 2-304 of the Codified City Ordinances.

BE IT, FURTHER, RESOLVED that $17,900be appropriated from the Major Street Fund
- Fund Balance Account (202-000.00-930.000)and that the FY2010-11Budget be amended
as follows:

Major Street Fund (202)
Revenue:
(202-000.00-697.000)Prior Years' Revenue
Expenditures:
(202-451.07-801.000)Street Construction - Contract Services

Total

$17,900

17,900
$ -0-

On motion by Commissioner , seconded by

Commissioner , this resolution was adopted by a

________ vote.



A City of
Adrian

MEMORANDUM - UTILITIES DEPARTMENT

DATE: October11, 2010

TO: DaneC. Nelson,City Administrator

FROM: ShaneA. Hom,Utilities

SUBJECT: WaterPlantBoiler Replacement

I concurwith the recommendationof theUtilities Directorto awardthe bid for aboiler
replacementat theWaterPlantto Adrian Mechanicalof Adrian, MI in theamountof$13,500.
Work is expectedto beginwithin two weeksandcompletedwithin 28 days.

Threefirms respondedto theoffer to bid. Fundsin theamountof $10,000werebudgeted
for this work, with thebalancecomingfrom the IntakeConcreteRepairCapitalProject. I urge
your favorableconsiderationauthorizingAdrian Mechanicalto replacetheboiler at theWater
TreatmentPlant.

Respectfullysubmitted,

Dant1Ji2t
City Administrator

Sealedbidswerereceivedat thepurchasingoffice on October7,2010for a boiler
installationat theWaterTreatmentPlant. We receivedthreebids for this work with Adrian
Mechanicalbeingthe low bidderat $13,500.00.I respectfullyrecommendthatwe proceedwith
this projectutilizing AdrianMechanicaL We have$10,000.00budgetedfor this work in the
waterplantcapitalbudget(496-531.00.977.509).I recommendthat theremainingbalancebe
takenfrom the IntakeConcreteRepaircapitalproject(496-536.00975.517).We receiveda quote
for this work from a local contractorthatwill resultin significantsavingsfor this concreterepair.

cc: JeffPardee,FinanceDirector
Tim Ritchie,WaterPlantSuperintendent



CITY OF ADRIAN, MICHIGAN
WATER PLANT BOILER REPLACEMENT

DUE DATE: OCTOBER7, 2010

BIDDER AMOUNT DELIVERY
Adrian Mechanical $ 13,500.00 Begin: 14 days
Adrian, MI Complete: 28 days
NoronInc $ 14,987.00 Begin: 30 days
ToledoOH Complete: 10 days
ThompsonPlumbing $ 16,950.00 Begin: 14 days
PetersburgMI Complete: 5 days



R10-130 October 18, 2010

RE: UTILITIES DEPARTMENT - Water Plant Boiler Replacement

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Adrian City Commission, by Resolution #R10-057 dated May
3, 2010, approved the FY2010-11 Budget and General Appropriations Act, which
included $10,000 (Acct. # 496-548.00-977.509) for boiler replacement at the Water
Treatment Plant and $10,000 (Acct. #496-549.00-975.513) for intake concrete
repair, also at the Water Treatment Plant; and

WHEREAS, bids were solicited and three (3) bids were received on October 7,
2010 by the City of Adrian Purchasing Office for boiler installation at the Water
Treatment Plant, with the follOWing results:

Vendor
Adrian Mechanical, Adrian, MI
Naron, Inc" Toledo, OH
Thompson Plumbing, Petersburg, MI

Amount
$13,500
$14,987
$16,950; and

WHEREAS, the Utilities Director and City Administrator recommend that low
bidder (Adrian Mechanical, Adrian, MI) be selected and engaged in the City's
Standard Professional Services Contract for purposes of installing a new boiler at the
Water Treatment Plant; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Director indicates that funds are available for this
purpose in the aforementioned accounts, due to economies achieved in the cost of
the intake concrete repair, and recommends that the FY2010-11 Budget should be
amended, moving $3,500 from the intake concrete repair appropriation account to
the boiler replacement account.

NOW,THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission, by this
resolution, hereby authorizes the selection and engagement of Adrian Mechanical,
Adrian, MI in the City's Standard Professional Services Contract for purposes of
installing a new boiler at the Water Treatment Plant MI in the amount of $13,500.

BE IT, FURTHER, RESOLVED that the FY2010-11 Budget be amended as
follows:

WATER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND (496)
Expenditures:
(496-549.00-975.513) Intake Concrete Repair
(496-548.00-977.509) Boiler Replacement

Total

$(3,500)
3,500

$ -0-

On motion by Commissioner , seconded by

Commissioner , this resolution was

______ by a vote.



MEMO _

DATE: October14, 2010

TO: HonorableMayor andCity Commission

FROM: DaneC. Nelson,City Administrator

SUBJECT: RescindResolutionandAuthorizeRemovalof Awning - 136 S. Main

In May of 1998,the City Commissionapproveda requestto install an awningoverthe entrance
of thebuilding locatedat 136 S. Main, formerly theFourSeasonsRestaurant.Thebuilding has
beenvacantfor approximately10 years,anddueto deterioration,the awninghasbecomea
visual nuisanceanddetractsfrom otherbusinessesin the immediatearea.

Many downtownpropertyownershaveinvesteda greatdealof time andmoneyto improvethe
appearanceof their facades,and theCity hasencouragedthatby offering facadegrantswhen
available. I, therefore,encouragethe Commissionto rescindtheMay 18, 1998resolution
authorizingtheawningat 136S. Main andthat city staffbeauthorizedto pursueits removal.

Respectfullysubmitted,

City Administrator

DCN:bjw



0,

182) MEMO 135 E. Maumee St. Adrian, Michigan 49221-2773

DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

October 11, 2010

Hon. Gary McDowell, Mayor
City Commission
Dane Nelson, City Administrator

Chris Atkin
Director of Community Development

136South Main Street Awning

Located at 136 South Main Street, former site of 'The Four Seasons' restaurant, a business that has not
been in operation for approximately ten years, is a large 9' x 42'3" green awning that is fastened to the
building and anchored into the city's right-of-wayjsidewalk. Under a policy adopted by resolution on
November 12, 1989, and awnings or other projections that extend beyond four (4) feet into the public
right-of-way will have to be heard and approved by the City Commission. At a May 18, 1998 Adrian City
Commission meeting, the commission approved, by resolution, a request from the property owners to
allow for the installation of the awning over the entrance to their restaurant. This awning has become a
visual nuisance and detraction from other businesses located in the immediate area. I am requesting the
City Commission to rescind the approved resolution from May 18, 1998 to allow city staff to appropriately
pursue the removal ofthe awning.

Respectfully submitted,

Chris Atkin
Community Development Director

"re.lpect/ar the individual 1'0ice, sel'l'icefiJI" the commongood"



Rl0-131 October 18, 2010

RE: RESOLUTION TO RESCIND RESOLUTION APPROVING THE
INSTALLATION OF BUILDING ENTRANCE AWNING LOCATED AT 132 -
140 SOUTH MAIN STREET

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the owners of property at 132-140 South Main Street requested
permission to install a 9' x 42'3" awning over the entrance to their new restaurant;
and

WHEREAS, per the resolution passed on November 12, 1989, awnings or
other projections that extend beyond four (4) feet into the public right-of-way will
have to be heard and approved by the City Commission; and

WHEREAS, the Adrian City Commission approved the request, by resolution,
on May 18, 1998; and

WHEREAS, the business has not been in operation for approximately ten (10)
years; and

WHEREAS, the awning has become a visual nuisance and a detraction from
surrounding businesses.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT BE RESOLVED, that Community Development requests
that the City Commission rescind the approved resolution from May 18, 1998 to
allow city staff to appropriately pursue the removal of the awning.

On motion by Commissioner , seconded by

Commissioner , this resolution was

_____ by a vote.



MEMO _
DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

October13, 2010

HonorableMayor andCity Commission

DaneC. Nelson,City Administrator

CommunityGardens

I havebeenapproachedby membersof theAdrian EcumenicalForum(representingvarious
religiousfaiths in theAdrian area)regardinga requestto utilize city-ownedparcelsof real estate
tor communitygardenspace. I indicatedto themthat I wassupportiveof theconcept,which
includestheuseof vegetablesgrown in suchspacesfor arearesidentsin needor for
organizationsto usetheproducts,alsofor thosein needin our community.

In particular,theyhavefocusedon a lot ownedby the city that is acrossfrom the FrostyBoy Ice
Creamat the comerof BroadStreetandChurchStreetasonepossiblelocation. I indicatedthat
thecity would not be in a positionto allow for an indefiniteuseof lots andthat suchlots would
only beavailablefrom a season-to-seasonuse,dependingon thepossiblechangeofuseor
ownershipofthe lots. Theyarestill working on somedetailsbut, generally,wantedto know if
theCity Commissionwassupportiveof the concept,which includesutilization of current
propertiesownedby the city that arenot beingusedfor anyparticularpurpose.

As such,I haveprepareda proposedresolutionto allow meto work with themembersof the
forum in this fashionandto enterinto agreementsto allow theuseofcity-ownedpropertiesfor
periodsnot to exceedoneyearat a time. In theeventa leaseagreementis enteredinto, it would
beproposedthat theleasewould be for a nominalamountof monies,suchas$1.00. I do support
the conceptof communitygardensin thecity andbelievethat this grouphasgoodintentionsand
would bea worthwhileservicefor our community.

City Administrator

DCN:bjw



Rl0-132 October 18, 2010

RE: CITY COMMISSION - Use of City-Owned Property for Community
Garden

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the City Administrator has received a request from the Adrian
Ecumenical Forum to utilize currently unused city-owned property as a space for
community gardens; and

WHEREAS, the Adrian City Commission supports the concept of community
gardens as a positive us of various parcels of city-owned property with no current
use.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that the City Administrator is authorized
to enter into an agreement with the Adrian Ecumenical Forum to use city-owned
parcels of real estate that are currently without any specific use for terms not to
exceed one-year for community garden projects.

On motion by Commissioner , seconded by

Commissioner I this resolution was

_______by a vote.
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DATE: October14,2010

TO: HonorableMayor andCity Commissioners

FROM: DaneC. Nelson,City Administrator

SUBJECT: ContractChangeOrder- Smith Excavating& Paving

On August2, 20I0, theAdrian City Commissionawardedthebid for concretework in theSouth
ToledoStreetlot to SmithPavingof Norwalk, OH at acostof$15,790.00.Sincethat time, the
scopeofwork hasexpandedto includeadditionalconcretework behindCity Hall, three
additionalislandson theeastandwestsideof the lot andcementwork for flag polesandlight
foundations.Theadditionalwork resultedin an increaseof $20,690.82to thecontractprice. As
such,theCity Engineerhasrequesteda changeorderto SmithPaving'scontractto coverthe
additionalexpense.

I urgeyour favorableconsiderationto thechangeorderto Smith Paving'scontractin theamount
of $20,690.82.Therearesufficient funds in theDowntownGovernmentComplexProject
accountfor this additionalexpense.

Respectfullysubmitted,

City Administrator

DCN:bjw



October 7,2010

MEMORANDUM

TO: Dane Nelson, City Administrator

FROM: Kristin Bauer, City Engineer

SUBJECT: City Hall Concrete Costs

In July 2010 we received bids for concrete work within the South Toledo Street
parking lot. The base bid for the quantities presented by the Engineering
Department came to a total of $15,790. At the time of the award several key
decisions were yet to be made, however this bid was awarded to keep the project
work on schedule.

During the construction of the lot it was determined that several areas behind
City Hall were in disrepair and should be replaced for safety reasons. It was also
decided, after the bid was awarded, that the islands on the east and west side of
the lots were to be filled with concrete. It was also requested that the contractor,
Smith Excavating and Paving, assist the City with concrete placement for the
light poles and flag poles foundations. This extra work accounted for an
additional $20,690.82 on this contract, $8,580.82 for additional concrete behind
City Hall; $8,680 for the 3 islands and $3,430 for flag poles and light foundations.



July 28, 2010

MEMORANDUM

TO: Dane Nelson, City Administrator

FROM: Kristin Bauer, City Engineer

SUBJECT: Concrete Work - City Hall Parking Lot

We received bid on July 27, 2010 for concrete work in the south Toledo St. lot.
This work will be miscellaneous sidewalk and curb work. Below are the
tabulations for the bids received:

ITEM Smith Andrews Eastlund Schug Doan
Paving Constructi0n Concrete Construction Construction

Norwalk, OH Manchester MI Holt, MI Adrian, MI Ypsilanti, MI
MDOT C-4 $ 8,040.00 $ 11,390.00 $ 13,400.00 $ 18,036.40 $ 15,410.00
Curb
670 LF
4-inch $ 6,800.00 $ 5,950.00 $ 6,800.00 $ 7,684.00 $ 15,555.00
concrete
(sidewalk)
1,700 SF
4-inch $950.00 $1,200.00 $ 4,000.00 $ 1,990.00 $ 1,830.00
concrete
(ramps)
200 SF

TOTAL $ 15,790.00 $18,540.00 $24,200.00 $27,710.40 $32,795.00

I recommend this bid be awarded to Smith Paving, Inc. of Norwalk, OH in the
amount of $15,790, however due to some last minute changes we have changed
some quantities which will increase this cost. Even with the additional quantities
this cost is under the Engineer's estimate. This contractor has performed this
type of work within the City of Adrian in previous years and has executed their
work in an excellent manner. There were no local bidders who meat the criteria of
our local preference policy.

Funds for these projects are available in the remaining City Hall bond funds in
101-172.00-975.000.



Rl0-133 October 18, 2010

RE: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS - Concrete Work - City Hall Parking
Lot - Change Order #1

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Adrian City Commission, by Resolution #Rl0-098 dated
August 2, 2010, authorized selection of low bidder, Smith Paving, Norwalk, OH for
engagement in the City's Standard Professional Services Contract at a bid price of
$15,790.00 for concrete work, including sidewalk and curbs, in the south Toledo
Street parking lot.; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer indicated, at that time, there were several
outstanding issues regarding the scope of work that would necessitate a subsequent
cost increase; and

WHEREAS, the final scope of work has now been determined, as well as the
related cost increases, including the follOWing:

Additional Concrete behind City Hall
Additional Islands (3) on the East and West Side of the Lot
Cement Work for Flag Poles and Light Foundations

Total

$ 8,580.82
8,680.00
3.430.00

$20.690.82

WHEREAS, the City Engineer and City Administrator recommend approval of
Change Order #1 for the contract with Smith Paving, Norwalk, OH in the amount of
$20,690.82 to cover the cost of the additional work described above, bringing the
final cost to a total $36,480.82; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Director indicates that sufficient funds are available
from the remaining funds appropriated for the Downtown Government Complex
Project for this purpose included in the FY2010-11 General Fund (101) Budget
(Account #101-836.00-801.000).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission, by this
resolution, hereby approves Change Order #1 for the contract with Smith Paving,
Norwalk, OH in the amount of $20,690.82 to cover the cost of the additional
concrete work in the south Toledo Street parking lot, bringing the final cost to a total
of $36,480.82.

On motion by Commissioner , seconded by

Commissioner , this resolution was

________ by a _ vote.



MEMO
-----------------

DATE: October13, 2010

TO: HonorableMayor andCity Commission

FROM: DaneC. Nelson,City Administrator

SUBJECT: LandTradeRelatedto CMAQ GrantProject

As partof theCMAQ Grantrequirements,a surveywascompletedon propertywherea
pedestrianbridgewill connecttheKiwanis Trail to RiversidePark. In additionto constructionof
thebridge,a sanitarysewerprojectwill crosstheriver nearthesamelocation. Thesurvey
concludedthataportionof the land is ownedby David Swantnerof 513 Merrick Street. The
Utilities DirectorandCity Engineernegotiatedanexchangeof thesouthendof theproperty
(river end)for thenorth end(streetend)andMr. Swantnerhasagreedto theexchange.

A resolutionhasbeenpreparedto approvetheexchangeof this propertyandauthorizingtheCity
Administratorto complete,sign andfile all documentsnecessaryto completetheproperty
exchangetransaction,andI would urgeits adoption.

Respectfullysubmitted,

City Administrator

DCN:bjw



DATE:

TO:

FROM:

RE:

October13,2010

DaneC. Nelson,City Administrator

Mark K. Gasche,ParksandRecreationDirector

Recommendationfor landtraderelatedto CMAQ grantproject

As you know the City hasbeenawardeda CMAQ grantin the amountof$398,120
to build anon-motorizedbridgeacrossthe River Raisinasanextensionof the

Kiwanis Trail andinto RiversidePark. As a normalpartof theMDOT review
processfor awardingthe grantwe needto show thatwe own outrightor arein
controlof thepropertyat theprojectsite. Oncethe final designfor thenon-

motorizedbridgeandthesurveyof thepropertywerecomplete,it showedthatthe
bridgewason aportionof the adjacentpropertyowner'sland. Thebridgelocation
is alsorelevantto the sanitarysewerprojectthatis plannedto crossthe river near
thesamelocation,which makesit challengingto movethe locationof thebridge.

After reviewingthesitewith our Utilities Director,ShaneHom, andour City
Engineer,Kristin Bauer,we developedaproposalto tradecity ownedpropertyat

this sitewith thepropertyownerat 513 Merrick St.,David Swantner.The
proposalwould exchangepropertyat theriver end(south)of thesite for property
at thestreetend(north)of thesite. Thecity propertybeingexchangedis not
neededfor the trail, the sewerproject,or otheraccess.This proposalwas
presentedto Mr. Swantnerandhewillingly agreedto the trade. A surveyshowing
theportionsof thepropertiesto be tradedandthenewboundaryline is attached.
Thereis alsoa temporaryeasementwhich includesthe existingsanitarysewerline.
Oncethenewsewerline is installedandthe old line is abandonedthenthat
easementwill be removed.

Oncethe City Commissionagreesto this landexchange,we will thensubmit
certificationto MOOT thatwe own all of the landat theprojectsiteandproceed
with thenextphaseof the grantprocess;bid letting. We will alsorecordthedeed
onceall of thenecessarypaperworkis approved. I recommendapprovalof this
landexchange.



CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY
Description Parcel A

City of Adrian, Lenawee County, Michigan
Addition to 513 Merrick Street

Parcel XAO-380-0042-00

All that part of Lots 35, 36 and 55 of James Berry's Southern Addition to the Village (now City) of Adrian
as recorded in Liber 32 of Deeds, Page 803, Lenawee County Records described as beginning on the
Southerly line of Merrick Street 240.08 feet N 630 39' 53" W from the Northeast Corner of Lot 30 of said
James Berry's Addition; thence S 28° 28' 19" W 258.82 feet; thence N 17° 15' 07" E 261.92 feet to the
said Southerly line of Merrick Street; thence S 630 39' 53" E 51.00feet along the Southerly line of Merrick
Street to the point of beginning. Containing 6630 square feet or 0.15acres.

Subject to a temporary easement for the operation and maintenance of an existing sanitary sewer line
until scheduled abandonment of line described across the above described property as beginning on the
Southerly line of Merrick Street 240.08 feet N 630 39' 53" W from the Northeast Corner of Lot 26 of said
James Berry's Addition; thence S 280 28' 19" W 105.09 feet; thence N 21 0 40' 06" E 106.69 feet to the
said Southerly line of Merrick Street; thence S 630 39' 53" E 12.49 feet to the point of beginning.

AssociatedEngineers& Surveyors,Inc.
237 N. Main Slreet, Adrian, Michigan 49221

CIvil • Land Surveyors
Phone: (517) 2834!j15 Fax: (517) 263-4535
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Rl0-134 October 18, 2010

RE: DEPARTMENT OF PARKS &. RECREATION - Land Exchange Proposal to
Meet Requirements of CMAQ Pedestrian Bridge Grant Project

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Adrian City Commission, by Resolution #R010-092 dated July
19, 2010, formally accepted a Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) grant award
in the amount of $398,120 to fund the construction of a pedestrian bridge, extending
the Kiwanis Trail into Riverside Park; and

WHEREAS, as a normal part of the Michigan Department of Transportation
(MDOT) grant administration process, the City must document outright ownership
and control of the property designated as the project site; and

WHEREAS, due to the design requirements, which were influenced by a
sanitary sewer project currently underway, it was determined that the project site
infringed upon the land owned by the adjoining property owner at 513 Merrick
Street; and

WHEREAS, the City has reached an agreement with the property owner to
exchange ownership of adjoining land to enable successful implementation of both
the pedestrian bridge project as presently designed, as well as the sanitary sewer
project; and

WHEREAS, the Parks & Recreation Director and City Administrator
recommend approval of the proposed land exchange between the City and the
property owner located at 513 Merrick Street and authorization for the City
Administrator to complete, sign and file all documents necessary to this proposed
property exchange transaction, as well as the on-going grant administration process;
and

WHEREAS, the Finance Director indicates that there are no budgetary
implications associated with the foregoing proposed land exchange transaction.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission, by this
resolution, hereby approves of the proposed land exchange between the City and the
property owner located at 513 Merrick Street and authorization for the City
Administrator to complete, sign and file all documents necessary to this proposed
property exchange transaction, as well as the on-going grant administration process
with the Michigan Department of Transportation.

On motion by Commissioner , seconded by

Commissioner , this resolution was adopted

by a vote.

-------_.. ..__._.... _.__ .__ .._..



MEMO
._ __._.._ _.__.._-_._--------------

Date: October13,2010

To: DaneC. Nelson,City Administrator
Hon. GaryMcDowell, Mayor
City Commission

From: JeffreyC. Pardee,FinanceDirector

Re: Modified Water Line Extension SpecialAssessmentfor Country
Club ProfessionalPark

TheAdrian City Commission,by ResolutiondatedApril 5, 2004,establisheda Water
Line ExtensionSpecialAssessmentDistrict (SS209)for CountryClub ProfessionalPark
at 1136CountryClub Road(East6 Acresof Southeastl;4 of Southwestl;4 Sec27) for the
purposeof funding a waterline extensionto theexistingwaterline on CountryClub
Road.

Theoriginal assessmentto CountryClub ProfessionalParkamountedto $40,892.00.
Due to temporaryoffice vacanciesin 2009,interest-onlypaymentshavebeenmade,
leavinga currentbalanceof $27,315.40.The CountryClub ProfessionalParkhas
recentlyfilled theaforementionedvacanciesandhasrequesteda modificationto the
existingamortizationschedule;specifically,by makingan immediate$10,000payment
andamortizingthebalanceovera ten-yeartimeframeat the standard6% interestrate.

I respectfullyrecommendapprovalof themodifiedspecialassessmentandpaymentplan,
providedthat$10,000 principalbepaidby October31, 2010andannualpaymentsof
$2,352.61bepaidagainsttheremainingbalanceof $17,315.40by October31 eachyear
beginningOctober31, 2011 andendingOctober31, 2020.

Theattachedresolutionhasbeenpreparedfor theCity Commission'sconsiderationat the
regularlyscheduledmeetingof October18, 2010. Ifyou haveanyquestionsor needfor
further information,pleasecontactmy office.



CITY OF ADRIAN
WATER LINE EXTENSION SPECIAL ASSESSMENT

Modified Amortization Schedule

Country Club Professional Park
1136 Country Club Road

TOTAL
DEBT

SERVICE

INTEREST
EXPENSE
(@ 6.0%)

OUTSTANDING
LOAN PRINCIPAL

BALANCE PAYMENT
$17,315.40

16,001.71 $1,313.69 $1,038.92 $2,352.61
14,609.21 1,392.51 960.10 2,352.61
13,133.15 1,476.06 876.55 2,352.61
11,568.53 1,564.62 787.99 2,352.61
9,910.03 1,658.50 694.11 2,352.61
8,152.02 1,758.01 594.60 2,352.61
6,288.53 1,863.49 489.12 2,352.61
4,313.23 1,975.30 377.31 2,352.61
2,219.42 2,093.82 258.79 2,352.61

O.00 2:-:1"=9-:-.4-=-2--:=-=-:1:-:3-::-3.-::-1=-7--:::-=-=2:-,-:,3:-=5-::-2.-::-5-=-9
$17,315.40 $6,210.67 $23,526.08

YEAR
Base

10-31-2011
10-31-2012
10-31-2013
10-31-2014
10-31-2015
10-31-2016
10-31-2017
10-31-2018
10-31-2019
10-31-2020

Original Assessment: $40,892.00 as of April 2, 2004
Current Balance: $27,315.40 as of October 18, 2010
Less: $10,000 Principal Payment by October 31,2010
Remaining Balance to be Amortized over Ten Years: $17,315.40

Prepared by Finance Dept. 10/13/2010



Rl0-135 October 18, 2010

RE: FINANCE DEPARTMENT - Modified Water Line Extension Special
Assessment for Country Club Professional Park

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Adrian City Commission, by Resolution dated April 5, 2004,
established a Water Line Extension Special Assessment District (W098) for Country
Club Professional Park at 1136 Country Club Road (East 6 Acres of Southeast V4 of
Southwest 1f4 Sec 27) for the purpose of funding a water line extension to the
existing water line on Country Club Road; and

WHEREAS the original assessment to Country Club Professional Park
amounted to $40,892.00; and

WHEREAS, due to temporary office vacancies in 2009, interest-only payments
have been made, leaVing a current balance of $27,315.40; and

WHEREAS the Country Club Professional Park has recently filled the
aforementioned vacancies and has requested a modification to the existing
amortization schedule; specifically, by making an immediate $10,000 payment and
amortizing the balance over a ten-year timeframe at the standard 6% interest rate;
and

WHEREAS the Finance Director and City Administrator recommend approval
of the modified special assessment and payment plan, provided that $10,000
principal be paid by October 31, 2010 and annual payments of $2,352.61 be paid
against the remaining balance of $17,315.40 by October 31 each year beginning
October 31, 2011 and ending October 31, 2020.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission, by this
resolution, hereby approves the modified water line extension special assessment
(W098) and payment plan described above for the Country Club Professional Park at
1136 Country Club Road (East 6 Acres of Southeast 1f4 of Southwest 1f4 Sec 27).

On motion by Commissioner , seconded by

Commissioner , this resolution was

________ by a vote.
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Date: October13,2010

To: DaneC. Nelson,City Administrator
Hon. GaryMcDowell, Mayor
City Commission

From: JeffreyC. Pardee,FinanceDirector

Re: Modified SanitarySewerSpecialAssessmentfor CountryClub
ProfessionalPark

TheAdrian City Commission,by ResolutiondatedAprilS, 2004,establisheda Sanitary
SewerSpecialAssessmentDistrict (SS209)for CountryClub ProfessionalParkat 1136
CountryClub Road(East6 Acresof SoutheastY4 of SouthwestY4 Sec27) for thepurpose
of funding a sanitaryline connection totheexistingsanitaryseweron RiversideDrive.

Theoriginal assessmentto CountryClub ProfessionalParkamountedto $35,352.50.
Due to temporaryoffice vacanciesin 2009,interest-onlypaymentshavebeenmade,
leavinga currentbalanceof $23,796.95.TheCountryClub ProfessionalParkhas
recentlyfilled the aforementionedvacanciesandhasrequesteda modificationto the
existingamortizationschedule;specifically,by makinganimmediate$10,000payment
andamortizingthebalanceovera ten-yeartimeframeat the standard6% interestrate.

I respectfullyrecommendapprovalof the modifiedspecialassessmentandpaymentplan,
providedthat $10,000principalbepaidby October31, 20I0 andannualpaymentsof
$1,874.56bepaidagainstthe remainingbalanceof$13,796.95by October31 eachyear
beginningOctober31, 2011 andendingOctober31, 2020.

The attachedresolutionhasbeenpreparedfor theCity Commission'sconsiderationat the
regularlyscheduledmeetingofOctober18,2010. If you haveanyquestionsor needfor
further information,pleasecontactmy office.



CITY OF ADRIAN
SANITARY SEWER LINE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT

Modified Amortization Schedule

Country Club Professional Park
1136 Country Club Road

(SS209)

TOTAL
DEBT

SERVICE

INTEREST
EXPENSE
(@ 6.0%)

OUTSTANDING
LOAN PRINCIPAL

BALANCE PAYMENT
$13,796.95

12,750.21 $1,046.74 $827.82 $1,874.56
11,640.66 1,109.55 765.01 1,874.56
10,464.54 1,176.12 698.44 1,874.56
9,217.85 1,246.69 627.87 1,874.56
7,896.36 1,321.49 553.07 1,874.56
6,495.58 1,400.78 473.78 1,874.56
5,010.76 1,484.82 389.74 1,874.56
3,436.84 1,573.91 300.65 1,874.56
1,768.50 1,668.35 206.21 1,874.56

0.00
$13,796.95 $4,948.70 $18,745.65

YEAR
Base

10-31-2011
10-31-2012
10-31-2013
10-31-2014
10-31-2015
10-31-2016
10-31-2017
10-31-2018
10-31-2019
10-31-2020

Original Assessment: $35,352.50 as of April 2, 2004
Current Balance: $23,796,95 as of October 18, 2010
Less: $10,000 Principal Payment by October 31,2010
Remaining Balance to be Amortized over Ten Years: $13,796.95

Prepared by Finance Dept. 10/13/2010



October 18, 2010

RE: FINANCE DEPARTMENT - MOdified Sanitary Sewer Special Assessment
for Country Club Professional Park

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Adrian City Commission, by Resolution dated April 5, 2004,
established a Sanitary Sewer Special Assessment District (55209) for Country Club
Professional Park at 1136 Country Club Road (East 6 Acres of Southeast V4 of
Southwest 114 Sec 27) for the purpose of funding a sanitary line connection to the
existing sanitary sewer on Riverside Drive; and

WHEREAS, the original assessment to Country Club Professional Park
amounted to $35,352.50; and

WHEREAS, due to temporary office vacancies in 2009, interest-only payments
have been made, leaving a current balance of $23,796.95; and

WHEREAS, the Country Club Professional Park has recently filled the
aforementioned vacancies and has requested a modification to the existing
amortization schedule; specifically, by making an immediate $10,000 payment and
amortizing the balance over a ten-year timeframe at the standard 6% interest rate;
and

WHEREAS, the Finance Director and City Administrator recommend approval
of the modified special assessment and payment plan, provided that $10,000
principal be paid by October 31, 2010 and annual payments of $1,874.56 be paid
against the remaining balance of $13,796.95 by October 31 each year beginning
October 31, 2011 and ending October 31, 2020.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Adrian City Commission, by this
resolution, hereby approves the modified sanitary sewer special assessment (55209)
and payment plan described above for the Country Club Professional Park at 1136
Country Club Road (East 6 Acres of Southeast 14 of Southwest 1/4 Sec 27).

On motion by Commissioner , seconded by

Commissioner , this resolution was _

by a vote.
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DEPARTMENTAL REPORT

OCTOBER 18, 2010

SEPTEMBER AUGUST SEPTEMBER YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR TO DATE
2010 2010 2009 2010 2009

POLICE DEPARTMENT
Complaints Answered 876 897 864 7,486 7,637

VIOLATIONS
Moving Citations 105 117 120 1,252 798
3-6 am Parking Tickets 249 136 229 1,615 1,585
Non-Moving Citations 23 46 20 262 329
Downtown Parking Tickets 148 310 219 761 1,410
TOTAL VIOLATIONS 525 609 588 3,890 4,122
ARRESTS 114 126 125 1,082 1,034

FIRE DEPARTMENT (See M-4)

INSPECTION DEPARTMENT
Building Permits 33 25 32 216 249
Electrical Permits 26 34 14 175 157
Mechanical Permits 25 38 20 188 158
Plumbing Permits 9 15 6 66 49
Sidewalk Permits 3 1 0 8 12
Sign Permits 4 7 2 46 34

TOTAL PERMITS 100 120 74 699 659

Estimated Bldg.Costs $1,740,068 $436,463 $215,659 $5,232,689 $2,911,900

PARKING SYSTEM
Meters in Operation
Parking Assessment $0 $7,717 $0 $29,656 $13,548
Lot Revenue $385 $0 $0 $1,647 $3,179
Street Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Misc. Revenue $15 $16 $15 $146 $125
Permits $548 $1,100 $100 $18,611 $16,289
Fines $810 $1,005 $730 $3,739 $6,216
Collection Fees $75 $50 $0 $2,455 $0
Token Sales $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Contribut-GenFund iQ iQ iQ $6,000 $26,000
TOTAL REVENUE $1,833 $9,888 $845 $62,254 $65,357

WASTE WATER DEPARTMENT
M. G. Pumped 128.172 132.811 127.206 1,313.495 1,476.570
Cost of Plant Operation $424,197 $209,019 $2,986,364 $2,687,880

WATER DEPARTMENT
M. G. Pumped 84 86 83 723 796
Number of Customers 6,269 6,192 6,308

Industrial Commercial Residential Other TOTAL
M. G. Sold 69,584
Revenue $35,994 $84,958 $121,857 $8,988 $251,738

*Figure not available



Fire, Other

Building fire

Mobile property (vehicle) fire, Other

Passenger vehicle fire

Adrian Fire Department

Monthly Report

September 2010
Total Property Loss Content Loss

1 $1,500 $0
1 $8,000 $0

1
1

4

Rescue

Rescue, EMS incident, other

Medical assist, assist EMS crew

EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury

EMS call, PDA

EMS call, refused treatment/transport

Motor vehicle accident with injuries

Vehicle accident with injuries, refused treatment

Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident (MV Ped)

Motor Vehicle Accident with no injuries

Extrication, rescue, Other

Hazardous Condition

Hazardous condition, Other

Gasoline or other flammable liquid spill

Power line down

Service Call

Service Call, other

Person in distress, Other

Smoke Investigation, No action taken

Assist police or other governmental agency

Public service

Assist invalid

Unauthorized burning

Good Intent Call

Good intent call, Other

Dispatched & cancelled en route

No Incident found on arrival at dispatch address

Smoke scare, odor of smoke

False Alarm

False alarm or false call, Other

Malicious, mischievous false call, Other

Local alarm system, malicious false alarm

System malfunction, Other

Smoke detector activation due to malfunction

47

5

115
2
6
3

1

1

1

1

182

4
2

3

9

7
1

2
1

1

3

5
20

2
2
1
1

6

3

1

1

1

1

7

235 $9,500 $0

H:\My Documents\Fire Reports\2010\September 2010



Bohn Pool 10 Year Summary Comparison
2010

Open Swim Pass Swim Swim Total
Years Attendance Passes Sold Holders Lessons Team Rentals Attendance
2000 13,631 225 914 61 19
2001 15,843 174 612 73 12
2002 15,423 247 586 68 15
2003 *10,772 169 591 66 16
2004 10,740 178 587 69 14
2005 14,195 186 660 74 14
2006 13,314 184 629 111 22 24,059
2007 13,179 247 602 711 174 15 24,243
2008 14,663 247 609 545 148 18 24,537
2009 12,942 244 584 487 157 15 21,906
2010 13,243 217 A518 502 139 13 22,269

*2003 marked the the first year of having one, instead of two separate daytime open swim sessions
"We ran out of scholarship money in 2010 resulting in 36 fewer scholarship aided pass holders than 2009.

NOTE: Open Swim Attendance = Open Swim attendance (Res, NR, & Senior for Day, PM & Evening session) +
groups (Tota/Group$/3)

NOTE: Total Attendance = Open Swim Attendence + (Swim Lessons x average attendance 8 of 10 days) + Special
Events + (Swim Team x average attendance 3.5of 5 days per week x 6 weeks) + Rentals + Lap Swim + Aerobics

Years Total Revenue Total Expenses Net
2000 $58,026.37 $95,837.70 -$37,811.33
2001 $71,340.69 $81,097.29 -$9,756.60
2002 $71,181.43 $93,269.05 -$22,087.62
2003 $61,428.75 $99,843.91 -$38,415.16
2004 $63,760.30 $105,554.92 -$41,794.62
2005 $81,792.29 $129,499.32 -$47,707.03
2006 $85,570.32 $135,423.34 -$49,853.02
2007 $87,155.38 $123,453.09 -$36,297.71
2008 $90,634.70 $134,214.69 -$43,579.99
2009 $81,442.22 $138,295.68 -$56,853.46

*2010 $81,993.31 $120,966.30 -$38,972.99
*Expenses 2010 = $112,066.30 (Actual Jan-Sept) + $8,900 (Estimated add. expenses Oct-Dec; 2009 = $8,871)

NOTE: In the fall of 2008 any remaining expenses associated with the former Ice Rink were rolled into the pool
account adding approximately $4,000 to $5,000 in additional expenses to the pool.

NOTE: One major expense that should be included when analyzing the true cost ofoperating Bohn Pool, but which
is not included in the information above, is the Wage Expense of the Pool Maintenance Person. For the current Year
(2010) that expense equaled approximately $8,493 (Assuming 90% of his/her time was spent working at the pool);
this expense should be representative of recent years.

Boh" Pool Concessions

Year
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010

Total Revenue
$16,369.26
$17,463.04
$16,500.97
$13,260.25
$15,039.36

Total Expenses
$22,414.00
$13,031.07
$12,994.81
$11,481.10
$11,823.82

Net
-$6,044.74
$4,431.97
$3,506.16
$1,779.15
$3,215.54

NOTE: In 2007 the concession prices were raised significantly resulting in a large decrease in volume sold, a
dramatic decrease in expenses and nearly constant revenue.


